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L. C. 7. Who and where?

Mr. Dangerfield. In general, my Lord.

L. C. 7, Ingeneral, where?

M. Daigerfield. By my Lady Powis, and the

Lordsin the Zower. .

L. C. . Were you by when the Lords in the
Totoer did agree to it ?

M. Dangerfield. \When my Lord Petie and my

Lord Arunde! did.

L. C. 7. What did tiiey agree to ¢

Mr, Dangeifield. My Lord, the Thing 1s ths,
after they received an Account from one Mr.
Paine, 1brought a Billet from that Pasnc; where.
m was contained a Ground or Scheme of the Pref-
byterian-plot ; fo from thence it derived it’s ﬁl"ﬂ:
Name, my Lord: So that when I came to dif-
courfe with the Lords in the Tower about it, they
called it the Prefbyterian-plot; and Murs, Cellier
and the Lady Petors fad, This 1s a Notion that
will do the Bufinefs, as it 1s moft obnoxious, and

as beft to our Purpofe,
iy, Juft, Fenes. How far was my Lord Caff’e-

ineine concerned in this? _
Mr. Dengerficld. 1 have not heard his Lordfhip

fpeal of it under that Notion.

L. C. . Pray let us hear what you can fay a-
oainft my Lord Ceffleinaine.

Mr. Daugeifield. Now, my Lord, fome confi-
derable Time after I had gotten Lawe out of Pri-
{on, I was employed by feveral other Perfons,
his Lordfhip was one, and he fent me to his
Lovdithip’s Sollicitor, that 15 now in  Court.
A pretty while after this, and the Letters and
Lifts of Names, containing Matter to the fame
Effect as 1 told you before, as thofe in Manfei’s
Chamber, and all tending to the Credit of the
Sham-plot, or the Prefbyterian-plot.  Now, my
Lord, a prefty while after thiS, i JI:’g!{[i‘, s near
as I can remember; about the Middle of Auguft,
[ wentto wait upon his Lordihip, the very next
Dovafrer [ had been treated withal i the Tower
to kill the King, whom God preferve, my Lord ;
and his Lerddhnp had a Servant then in the Room,
and he font his Servant down Stawrs, and looked
uron me with a very auftere Countenance: Said
12, Why would you offer to refufe the Bufinefs
for which vou were taken out of Prifon ?

L.C 7. Tovou?

Mr. Daigerfield. To me, my Lord.

L.C 7. Who was by ¢

Mr. Dorgape’. No body but his Lordfhip and
may felts for he {ent lus Servant out before: So
he aflced me, VWhy I would offer to refufe the
Bufinefs I was taken out of Prifon for? [ afked his
Lordflup, What that was? Said he, Was not
vou at the Teeor Yefterday ? Yes, my Lord, I was.
Yould your Lordfhip have me kill the King, I
fuppofe that’s the Bufinefs? Yes, that 1s, faid he.
Upon which my Lord fell into fuch a Fury, thae
I was forced rudely to leave the Room, and went
down Stairs. [ think at the fame Time his Lord-
fhip was writing the Compendium of the late
Plot 5 for there I faw fome Words in a Paragraph
that ay upon the Table, which I afterwards fuw
i that Book.  There was Lok fet upon the 13-
ble, and open 1 lus Lordfhips Hand,  And his
Lordfiup did ufe i hus Difeowr{e to call his Ma-
jetty Tyrant,

L. C. . Have you heard him ? In what Com-
pany

Mr. Dargzifold, In his familiar Difcourfe,  As
to afic when his Majefty will return from 77t

2

fir 2 Says he, When the Tyrant ple_nﬁis. And ]
remember I heard his Lordfhip mention the Word
Tyrant to Mrs, Gellier at Powis-noufe.

Mr. Att. Gen. How came that Difconrfe about
killing the King ? What was the Occafion of that
Difcourfe ?

L. C. %, Had you refufed it to my Lord ?

Mr, Daigeifield, Yes, my Lord, I refufed;

L. C. 7. What did you fay to him ? .

Mr. Dengerfield, 1 fad any body but my King,
my L{Jl‘d.

L. C. 7. He fad, Why did you refule to do
that for which you were taken out of Prifon?
What 1s that, my Lo:d? Was not you at the
Tower Yefterday ¢ Why wor’t you do it # 'What
istt, my Lord? Is it to kill the King ? I fuppofe
that 1t 15, fauith he, that your Lordfhip intends,
Ycs, fays he, That 15 1t, why won’t you do it ?
That is what he favs,

Mr. Az, Gen. That is the Evidence we give,

Mr. Juft. Feucs. You fay he was very violent 2

L. C. ¥ Wasyou ever m his Company after-
wards ?

Mr. Deigeifield. No, not after that, my Lord,
that I know of.

L. €. 7. What kind of Fury did he fhew to you
at that Time ?

Mr. Dangeifield. My Lord, he was in a great
Rage, as his Lordfhip is very cholerick ; he was
bufthng about, and I knew not what he intended
to do, and [ was unwilling to fland the Teft of
Ius Anger.  His Lordihip feemed by his Look to
be meditating Revenge.

L. C. 7. How?

Mr. Dangerfield. 1 fay this, After his Lordihip
bad fent his Scrvant out of the Room, faid he,
Why would you offer to refufe the Bufinefs for
which you were taken out of Prifon ? Said he,
Were not you at the Tewer Yefterday ? Said 1,
Yes, my Lord, 1was. Would you have me kil
the King ? Is that the Bufinefs? Yes, that it is,
fuid my Lord very angrily.

Prif. When did you go to the Tosper 2 Was this
the next Day after it ?

NMr. Daigerfield. The next Day after it.

Prif. Mr. Deageishold, Pray let me afk vouone
Quethion. Did not I threaten to kill you, or have
fome of my Servants kill you, if you came unto
me aga ?

Mr. Daigerfeld. One Time his Lordfhip faw me
at my Lady Peweis’s Houfe, and he thewed me 2
very particelar Favour, I fpeak it in the Prefence
of Almighty Gad, nothing out of Revenge, nor
for anv Sort of Intercft, )

Pritf. Was I never anocy
Time? -

Mr. Denzerfi-ld. No, my Lord, I know not of
any other Time that your Lordihip was angry.

L. Cf. Now what fay you, my Lord?

Prit. Vhe frft Thing I defire to do, is, Fere
are t oo Gentlemen give in Evidence againft me,
the onc is M. Odfes, and the other M. Dangeifiedd,
Mr. Oazes fays, That he in §pain did fee feveral
Jetters from me: That when he came over into

sigliicd, he brought a Letter from Spain to me,
that that Letter was given to the Provincial, and
the Provincal (he fappofes) gave it to me. Now,
my Lerd, Tonly defire this, that the firft Thing
that (hall be done, is, that you will pleafe to call
Mr. P ker, who will thew you what a kind of
Man Mr. Ozter is. And Tam glad, fince you fay
that Mr. Dargeificld is a cood Witnefs, that I

can

with you but at that
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can prove that cvery word he faysisa Lie, And
{o begin with Mr. Oates.

Prif. 1 would offer you a Record, 2 Record of
fome particular Actions from Haftings.

L.C. 7. Read the Record.
The Retord read,

L.C. ¥. What Ulfe can you make of this?

Prif. My Lord, the Cafe 1s only this, my
Lord, I will tell you, here 1s Mr, Oates, this is on-
ly to fhew what kind of Man this Mr. Oazes s,
Mr. Oafes he comes and accufes a Man at Haflings
for Buggery, there he is indiCted and comes to
his Tral, and then he 1s found mnocent: Now,
my Lord, I fent for this Mr. Parker, to tell your
Lordfhip what kind of Man this Mr. Oates was,
and for that Purpofe fhew the whole Proceed-
ing.

gL.C. ¥. My Lord, you fhall have all the Ju-
ftice in the World ; but we muft have right done
to the King’s Evidence. You have brought in a
thing, whereby all you can make againft Mr. Oztes
is this, that he was the Profecutor of a Man for
the Crime of Buggery, and 1s fuppofed to have
taken his Oath there, and notwithftanding the
Jury would not believe him, and found the Man
Not Guilty.

Prif. My Lord, I come to fhew you the Mo-
tives how the Jury came to clear him, that 1s,
by proving this Man was in another Place at that
time, and fatisfied the Court and Jury, that he
was from Eleven a-Clock or fooner, till Eight or
Ten a-Clock with them 1n Company ; where it
was only the Malice that was between Oates and
Porkery and feveral Witneffes that were in the
Place where he Jaid the Buggery was committed,
faid that he wasnot there; and the Witneffes po-
fitively fard they were with him, and all looked
upon Mr. Oates asa deteftable Man, and fent him
out of the Court.

L.C. 7. Do you prove this by any but Par-
her 2

Mr. Jult. Rayiond. This ought not to be ad-
mitted ; for if it be, Mr. Oztes {tands here to an-
fwer all the Faults that ever he committed.

L.C.}. Here is the Cafe; Suppofing it be
ttue now, that Mr, Oates profecuted a Man for
Felony, and he gave Teftimony, fuppofing it
fhovld be fo, and yet the Jury acquitted him;
what ufe can you make of it? You can make no
Inference; it is a thing we muft allow all the Ju-
ries 1 England: For there is Witnels generally
given on both Sides; and when there are for the
Plamtff, the Defendant’s Evidence are all perju-
red; and when for the Defendant the Plaintif’s
Evidence are perjured.

Prif. My Lord, this is the Infetence. Thus
much I make of it, that this Parker is innocent.
Oates {wears pofitively he did fo, the other fwears
pofitively this Man was not there; to fhew the
Malice Qares had againft him.

L.C. ¥. My Lord, you can go no further than
you have gone. The Refult of all is, that the
Jury found him Not Guilty ; for what Grounds
no Man can come to fay, but the Jurymen them-
felves. No Man can tell what prevailed with the
Jury to find him Not Guilty, that is in their own
Confciences, and thefe are Things that cannot be
examied. His Jury, notwithftanding Mr. Oates
was the only Profecutor, they found him Not
Guilty, and it amounts to nothing,

Vou. III.

Prif. My Lord, there is another thing: While
this Man was in Prifon, what does Oztes do, but
comes here to London, accufes the Father, who
was a confiderable Man in the Town, a Juftice
of the Peace, and Mayor the Year before; accu-
{fes him becaufe he fhould not affift his Son ; accu-
fes him before the King of {peaking fcandalous
Words; then he gets him by a Meffenger brought
up before the Council : The King was prefent at
the Hearing, and there it was proved to the King,
as the Order of Council fhews, that he was an
honeft Man, and {o the Council fent Oates away
with the greateft Contempt, and freed the other
Man.

L. C. 7. Was this before the Plot was difcover-
ed?

Prif. Yes, my Lord, in purfuance of it.

L.C. 7 You faid it was that he fhould not
help his Son, his Son was not free.

Prif. No, he was in Prifon, my Lord, -

Mr. Recorder. My Lord may think it hard if he
hath not fome competent Liberty ; but he muft
keep to the Bufinefs. You fay, that notwith-
ftanding he hath the Opinion of the Court, that
the Jury muft take Notice; then the Jury muft
take Notice it fignifies nothing.

Prif. Very well. Having told you this, I de-
fire you would be plealed to take Notice, after
Oates was thus forced to run away from Haffings,
here it feems he was converted to be a Papift, by
a Perfon whom Mr. Oates hath fince converted to
be a Proteftant ; and you fhall fee what an Ac-
count this Gentleman will give of him.

L.C.¥. What is his Name?

Prif. Hutchinfon.

L. C. ¥. What will you do againft him ?

Prif. Several things, my Lord.

L.C.¥. You muft not do it: If you are able
to difprove Mr. Oates 1n any of thefe Particulars,
you may do it. If you alledge Teftimony a-
gainft the particular Matter he hath fworn, you
will do very well; but pray, my Lord, keep to
that,

Prif. Iwill, my Lord I will fubmit any thing
to your Lordfhip’s Commands; and therefore, my
Lord, I will tell you for what Reafon I fent for
this Man, to tell you how Mr. Oates went to Spain,
and how he lived 1n Spain.

L.C.F. If you can thew the Jury any Reafon
why they fhould not believe his Evidence, that
will be very proper.

L. C.¥. What is your Name?

Huichinfon, My Name is Hutchinfon.

Prif. Mr. Hutchinfon, pray fay what you have
to fay, and not follow Mr. Oates’s Method: I only
afk you this Queftion, Sir, Whether you did con-
vert this Man, that is, reconctle him to the Church
of Rome?

Hutchinfon. Yes, my Lord, that I did.

L. C. ¥. You ought not to atk him fuch Que-
ftions, you bring him in danger of his Life; you
are not to afk him fuch Queftions.

Mr. Recorder. Let us fee the Statute-Book.

Cl, of Cr. 1t 1s High-Treafon.

L. C. 7. You thought this had been meritorious
now, and it 1s High-Treafon.

Mr. Recorder. This it is to abound in 2 Man’s
own Senfe. 'We muft beg your Lordfhip’s Ad-
vice 1 this.

L. C. . Are you a Proteflant now?

Hutcbinfon, Yes, my Lord.

Prif. He was a Prieft, and confeffes his Error.

H L. C. 7 Dd
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L. C. ¥. Did you know Oates firft in Spain?

Hutchinfon. No, my Lord, I knew him firft
here; and we were in Company, and I told him
he could not be a true Prieft, fince he was of the
Church of Englaud.

Mr, 4t. Gen. He offers fuch Things as are not

Evidence,

L. C. . Pray what do you know of his Em-
ployment in Spain ?

Hutchinfon, 1 received Letters from him when
he was in Spafn.  He went over to ftudy Philofo-
phy and Divinity there, and I faw his Recom-
mendations to the Rector of Licge.

L. C. ¥. Did you fee him?

Hutchinfon. Yes, my Lord, I did fee him be-
fore he made this Difturbance.

L. C. . What Difturbance? Do you know?
‘What Difcourfe had you with him ?

Hutchinfon. 1 employed him in writing for me.

L.C. 7. Wrting what ?

Hutchinfon, In writing certain Things apainit
the Corruption of the Church of Rome, He had
105, I gave him, and this was before the Difcove-
ry he made (as he pretends) of the Plot. And he
told me he would f{uffer no more for Conicience-
fake: It is an bard Thing, faid he, Mr. Berry, for e
Man to want Bread; upon which I gave him 1034,

L.C. 7. He fays, Having been formerly with
Mr. Oases, he employed him to tranferibe many
Things for him; and Mr. Oztes faid to him, Fe was
refolved uo more to fuffcr far Confeicnce fake.  Hew,
faith he, not fo? Ob bt My, Berry, faid he, it is
a very fad Thing to want Bread. And upon that, he
fays, he gave him 103, for his Pains in writing,

Hutchinfon. And hereupon, my Lovd, m Mey
was Twelvemonth he fent for me, when I heard
he had done fome more Mifchiefs and 1 went to
him, my Lord.

L. C. 7. That was after the Difcovery ?

Hutchinfon. Yes, my Lord, upon that he was
very kind to me, and gave me 205 Said he,
My, Berry, you have becir civil to me, and vou fhal!
acver want ary thing fo lonr as [ Fave it. Said 1,
M. Oates, arc thefe Things iyt that you fivear Ggainft
the Fefuits? Sad he, As I kope for Salvation they
are. And that was the trueft word he {pake thefe
three Years. Then, faid I, My Oates, anfiozi ine
thisonty one Thing.  Theve arve anbundred and tsventy
Perfons that faw you every Day, and dined and fiipocd
witnryou af 8t. Omers, and thefe you bave reccomiicid-
ed to me for virinous People, and I kueww them 1o be
fo. He {aid, They are Outlew’d Men.

L. C. J. What did Mr. Oates fay more?

Hutchinfon. He was with me frequently, my
Lord,

Mr. Recorder. He paid you your 4igel well when
he gave you 20 &

Hutchinfon. Mr. Oates, {peak the Truth: There
15 2 God in Heaven.

Dr. Oztes. Shall I be allowed to fatisfy the Court
as to this Evidence ! I will give the Court a very
good Account,

L. C. 7. The Subftance 1s this; that you were
poor. Is it true that he gave you 104,

Dr. Oates. My Lord, Ibelieve I might not have
much Money among them.

L. C. 7. And you faid, Zor would [uffzr ito inove
fer Confeience Sake ?

Dr. Oates. That is not {o, my Lord.

L. C. 7. And, That it isan hard Thing to want
Bread ?

Dr. Qates, My Lord, I never wanted Bread.

Hutchinfon. But you faid {o to me, M. Ouse.

Mr. 4¢. Gen. Hark, Mr. Hutchinfon——o

Dr. Oates. To thew the Invalidity of this Evi-
dence, my Lord, the Bifhop of Loadon hath turn-
ed him out of his Living at Barkiu.

L. C.f. What 1s that;

Dr. Qates. To fhew that he 1s not fit to be
trufted.

L. C. F. Why you have never a Living,

Dr. Oates. Yes I have, my Lord.

L.C.F. Where?

Dr. Oates. In Kent, my Lord.

L. C. . How long have you had it?

Dr. Cuser. 1 was reftored to 1t laft Summer.

Mr. Recorder. He fays that he had Difcourfe
with him concerning his Priefthood 5 whether M.
Qates thought himlelf 1o be n good Prieft; that s,
as he was made by the Order of the Church of
Fusland ?

Mu, At Gen. He fays, Fle converted Mr. Qates
to be a Papuit.

Dr. Outes. And [ have a Charge of High. Trea-
fon againft that Man, for feducing me from my
Relgion, my Lord; I will fwear ke turned me
to the Church of Reine, and I defire it mev Le
Recorded. '

Dr. D. I have one thing to t:ll
the Man 15 mad, he is diftracted.

L.C. 7. This Dottor of Divinity is a very ho-
neft Man, he will tell you. |

Dr.D. He was my Curate at Barlin, and mv
Lord of Leadon having {ome Information ﬂg:ti:‘.i-jt
the manner of his Preaching, fent me worl 1o
R.?psir he would provide me ancther Curare s on
§a'urdy laft, dining with him, my Lord told me
he was diftrad&ed.

Mr. Recorder. His Behaviour is a very concur-
rent Teftimony,

Mr. Juft. Rayiond. I appeal to my Lord, if I
did not tell him, as he came into the Court, that
e was a diftratted Man.

L. C. ¥. Call another Witnefs.

Prif. Here’s 2 Gentleman was his School-fe)-
low at Felladolid. T alk you, Mr. Ariiftrang,
Whether you knew any Thing of Mr, Oaies
there ?

L. C.F. How long had he heen theye ?

Arinftroiy. He was three Months there before
me.

L. C.F. How long was he there in all?

Arinftrong. A matter of a Month.

L. C.¥. Was he not there four Months ?

Arinftrong. Yes, a matter of four Months in all.

L.C. 7. He fays, he had been there thyce
Months before he came, and a Month after he
i:nme; and that then he was but a common Scho.-
ar.

Dr. Oates. My Lord, T will fatisfy the Court
when they queftion me.

L. C. 7. In what would you fatisfy us ?

Dr. Oates. About being a Scholar,” 1 was ready
to commence when they came; but beine they
were Strangers in the Town, not being Town.
Scholars, and not undertaking Philofophical Dic-
tates, the Fathers did pray me to fhew them the

way to School; and I went with them two or
three times.

L. C. 7. Call another, my Lord.

Lrif. Mr. Palner and M, Daddington.

L. C. 7. Did you know Mr. Oates at St. Qpposes 2

Paliner. Yes, my Lord, and he was an ordina-
ry Scholar there, and din'd and fuppd with us.

L.C. ¥ You

ﬂ

L =

your Lordfhip,
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L. C. ¥ You faid h = di’d at another Table.

Paliwer, Yes, my L ord, hedid dine ata Table
by himfelf, but 1t was ait the fame time.

Dr. Oates. Had I Sche lars Commons? Pray, my

[ord, alk them that.
Paliace He had the :fame Commons that we

had 5 but they had a Refp et for him as he wasan
.ancienter Man, and that vvas the Reafon that he
had more Freedom than th e reft.

Prif. My Lord, he fays 1he came from St, Omers
at the Confult: Pray, Sir, who did you come
along with? Did you come with Hilfley ¢

Dr. Oazos. Hilfly came wit h me m the Pacquet-
Boat.

Prif. Call Ny, Hilfley and Cfborine—My Lord,
this Gentleman : [ would briny r nothmg to oftend
vour Lordihip, or nothing tha t hath been cld, if
it had not fome new Iuference from it; therefore,
mv Lord, this is the Realon that I {ent for Mr.
(v, WNr. Hilfy, did youcorae with Mr., Oztes
in pril in the Pacquet-Boat ?

[ilflv. INo, my Lord.

Piif. You left him at St. Omciy ¢

Hilfley, Yes, my Lord,

Prif. Now, my Lord, Ihave feveral Witnefles
to prove this. And pray, Mr. Ofpcarie, tell my
Lord what he faid to you,

Ofboiie. My Lord, about the lait :r end of A4-
il 1 heard Mr., Hilfley was o Town s 1 went to
fec him, and one time at 2 Coftce-hout ¢ about the
Turinfhile we fell in Difcourle.

L. C. ¥. My Lord, you fay you hav:: two Per-
fons of Quality : [ will tell you, my Lard, what
you fhall exped; I will not be for one, and not
for t'other; but be equal asnear as I can.  If he
comes only to teflify what £y told him, it

lonties nothine
- w

Prif. 1 do depend upon Hilfley s but this is that
Hilfley told him, that there was one Oafer at St.
Oiici's.

L. C. 7. That is no Evidence, nor can Ladies
of Quality prove by their own Experience what
Mr. Hilfzy affirms, that Ocfes came not over with
him,

Prif. My Lord, they can tell 5 and one Lady;
a Proteftant, that talking with this Gentleman
before the Plot——

L. C. 7. This is only Difcourfe what another
Man fays; if Mr. Oates himfelf {houid have {ad
{0, then indeed it is proper: But to fhew vou this,
it is impoiiible, fuppofing they fpeak truth; that
is, if they do witnefs what they do not, that long
before they heard of the Name of Oafes, this Gen-
tleman {hould tell them, one Qazcs was leit at St.
Ouicirs 5 1t igmhes nothing.

Prif; Does not that confirm Mr, Liifley’s Te-
ftnony ¢

L. C.F. No, indeed.

Piif. T only refer this to you, my Lord; /-
Fey {avs, in April he did leave Oates, and here are
four or five Witneffes that £:/fliy told them fo,

Mr. Juft, Feaes. All that my Lord fays, is this,
that he did leave Mur. Oaies at St. Qiners. I 1t be
objelled, they are Catholicks, as they call thems;
Says my Lord, Hilfley did tell this Story before
there was any Plot. Why ‘honld he tell them
fo? It is not in favour of thit Reloion that he
fpeals; buc -the ;time of teftifying fuch a thing,
{hews he {peaks true.  This 1s all.

Prif. This is the Inference; this 1s ouly to cor-
reborite and fhew you the Credit of his Tefli-
Mony.

11‘1}1.. I11.

‘Mr, Juft. Raymond. -'It may be a Miftake, tho’

and it is .of no more Force than what he fays

now.

Mr. 4t Gen. They were all miftaken m that
Matter.

‘Dr. Qazes, My Lord, he did leave me at S¢t. O-
weirs, but 1 overtook him at Calais,

L. C. 7. Will you {wear it, Mr. Oates?

Dr. Ostes. T fay, upon my Oath I did it.

L.C. 7. 1t were a great Matter if you had u-
ny body to prove, that this Gentleman came a-
lone; but that s fhll but one Man’s Teftimony.

Prif. Bat here is Confirmation to his Evidence
that he could not invent it.

Mr, 4. Gerr, You had 16 once, but the con-
trary was proved and believed, and fo it may be
acain,

Prif. Call Mr. Gresforr and Mr. Righy, DM,
Gregfoir, were not you Landlord to Mr. Oates be-
fore the Plot was difcovered? How long before
the Plot did he lie at your Houfe?

L. C. 7}, What time?

Gregfon. A Week before Eafter, 77.

Mr. Juft. Raysond. When did he go away from
you, Sir?

Greg fon. The Sunday after Eaftcr-dey.

Mr. Juft. Raymond, When did you fee him a-

amn ?
- Gieg foir. Ile came to me about A/ Saints.

Mr. Jult. Reymond, The fame Year?

Giegfon. Yes.

Dr. Oates, Who paid for my Quarters? Pray
afk him that, my Lord.

Greg fon. He paid for it himfelf.

Dr. Oates. Did not Mr. Fenwick pay for it?

Gieg fon. He did after you came from St. Omers.

Dr. Oates. My Lord, whenlcame laft from St.
Oiiers, 1 went directly to his Houlfe,

Prif. Was not he 1 a poor Condition ?

Gregfonr, He was then mdifferently poor.

Pitf. My Lord, this is only to prove his Con-
dition,

Dr. Oates. My Lord, Ihad only what the Jefu-
its allowed me.

L.C.¥. You had nothing but what they al-
lowed you ?

Dr. Oates. Nothing elfe, my Lord.

Mr. Juft. Fones. They allowed you a very {can-
ty Living,

Peif. Call Mr. Littcatt.  Mr, Liticatt, Do you
know any thing about a Divorce ?

L. C. ¥, What fhould he know ?

’rif. Pray, my Lord, don’t difcourage me.

Mr. Juft. Raymond. But you mult not afk things
that are not to the Purpofe.

Litteott, My Lord, 1t was morally impofiible
there fhould be a Divorce.

L. C. F. Was there any Iindeavour by my Lord
concernings 1t?

Litteott, There was no {fuch Defign.

L. C. /. How was that? Bat pray mmd, you
will be morally not believed elle: Do you know
my Lord ufed any Endeavours, in order to obtain
a Divorce?

Mr, Record:r. Thats all that he fays, [de newr
bircww any thing.

Prif. Tonly {ay this, my Lord, Mr. Oates comes
here and fays, that he heard me fay, that I diud
fpend a great deal of Money. Now if I fatisty
the Court that I never.fpent a Farthing towards x

Divorce ———m—

FI » I.C.7. If
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L. C. ¥. If he had faid, your Lordfhip la:d out
Sums of Money, thenit had been an Anfwer to
that, if you could prove you had not,

Prif. You know I ftand here accufed for a great
Crime ; ‘pray give me Jeave.

Mr. Juft. Raymond. If it were a matter of Mo-
ment we would.

Prif. Pray, my Lord, hear me: Here’sa Man
fays, 1 {pent a great deal of Money about a Di-
vorce ? I come to tell yoar Lordfhip, that this ve-
ry Man, before your Lordfhips, and allo betore
the King, and if your Lordfhips have forgot i,
I will thew you Witneffes that he fpake it before
the King, and before the Houfe of- Commons,
that T did acually fue out a Divorce: Now T will
fhew, my Lord, that I neither could, nor did go
about i1t.

L. C.F. We are not to take Notice of that
now. If he did fay 2 falfe Thing before the Floufe
of Commons, we cannot take Notice of it now;
for we cannot go to try whether he faid fo, and
whether that be true or falfe.

Prif. T humbly beg, my Lord, if this Man that
is upon his Oath hath fworn before the King
that he did actually fee the Divorce, and I prove
that it was impoflible that he fhould fee the Du-
vorce, becaufe it was impoflible to get a Di-
VOICE——-

L.C. 7. What then?

Mer. Juft. Rayirond, You muft not be permit-
ted to prove that, it 15 not pertnent to the
Queftion.

Prif. My Lords, with humble Submiffion to
you, he hath told me this before your Lordfhips,
that [ fpent = great deal of Money about a Di-
vorce.

L. C. ¥ Wy Lord, you will be fatisfied, when
we have acquainted you what the ordinary Pro-
ceedings of a Court of Juftice are in Matters of
this Nature; what is and what is not to be ad-
mitted. If you fhould come to prove Mr. Oates
had falfly {worn a thing in another Court, aund five
or {ix Witnefles fhall come and fay 1t is not true s
we are not to hearken to 1t The Reafon 1s this,
firt you muft have him perjured, and we are
not now to try, whether that Thing {worn m
another Place be true or falfe: Becaufe that s
the way to accufe whom you pleale; and that
may make a Man a Liar, that cannot imagine
this will be put to him: And fo no Man’s Te-
ftimony that comes to be a Witne(s, fhall leave
himielf fafe.  And thisis another Cafe, If he {wore
in another Place what 1s contradiory to what
he fays now; then it 1s proper. If you could
prove that he had fworn in another Place that
he never faw you, it is very proper: But now
tous he fays, that he doth not remember whe-
ther ever he had fcen a Divorce, or that you had
fued out a Divorce. All that he remembers, s,
that you fud you had expended a grear deal of
Money about a Divorce, and this 1s sll he te-
ftifies here. .

Prif. My Lord, my Evidence aganft Mr. Oaves
is this, that he waves what he fuid before, when
I came to aflk him, and fays, I don’t remember,
Now, my Lord, if he liesin one thing he may
in another,

M. Jult, Raymond. No Man can remember all
the things that ever he did in his Life.

Prif. 1 have Witnefles to appeal to, to witnels
cvery thing; and I reprefent it here to you,
that I would with all my heart have indiGed him
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of Perjury, but for Mr. Attornzy General: For I
employed two to attend the Clerk of the Peace
for Copies of the Indiétments againft Mz, Lang-
horn and Mr. Ireland 3 they did come to th: Clerk
of the Pecace; faith the Clerk of the Peace, I
can’t do it without Mr. Attorney’s Authority.
My Lord, faith he, I would give them you with
all rln)r Heart, but I muft have leave from the
Table,

Mr, At, Gen. No, my Lord, I told you I would
not give it you without you had an Order from
the King, and the Council did not think fit to
give It you.

Prif. T think this a hittle pertinent.

Mr. Juft. Fones. How doth any thing that your
Lordfhip excepts agamft in this Gentleman’s Te-
fimony contradidl it felf? All that you accufe
hum of 1s, that Mr. Oates had faid he heard you
fay, you had fpent a great deal of Money about
a Divorce.

Prif. I only fhew, if you are pleafed to hear
it, that he reported to the King that he actually
faw the Divorce.

Mr. Juft. feanes, That agrees well enough with
what he fays now.

Prif. He fad fo in your Lordthip’s Hearing.

L.C. 7 I don’t remember it, it 1 did [ would
{peak of it; [ don’t remember it upon my word.

Mr. Juft, Raymend. 1 proteft I don’t remember
a word.

Mr. Juit. Fones. In the Court, did he fay it?

Mr. Juft. Rayimond. Here we have all three that
were prefent, Iproteft I don’t rememberit; but
as to the Bufinefs of the Divorce, I might look
upon it as impertinent, and {o poffibly might not
mind what he faid.

Prif. Tonly offer this to you, and if your Lord-
thips command me to defift, I will defift.

Dr. Oates. 1defire my Evidence to prove that |
was o Town.

Mr. Juft. Raymond, Pray, Mr. Oates, youarean
Evidence, you muft be govern’d by Mr. s
torney.

L. C. ¥. It would be very fit, Mr. Attorney, to
prove that Mr. Oates did come over with Hilfley in
the Pacquet- Boat.

Mr. Juft. Rayinond. Mr. Oates, 1 remember very
well, gave an Account of his coming over, fid
he, Idid come over with fuch and fuch Perfons,
and among the reft was Mr, Hilfley. ‘This is on-
Iy to prove that he was at the Confult.

Mr. 4r. Gen. 'We can prove it.

Records produced againft My. Dangerfield,

L. C. J. Here is, that he was burnt in the Haud,
and Out-lawed for Felony, Pilloried for Cheat.

ing, twice Pilloried; and fee whether h
“rhippld . e CLNEr ne was

Mr. 821, Gen. 1 know nothing of the Pillory.
Mr. Juft. Raymond, Here was a Record of be-

ing burnt in tg]t: Hand, and a Record for putting
away falfe Guineas.

L.C.F. For that he was to ftand in the Pil.

lory.
| Cl. of Cr. Here is one Record for another Shil-
Iing Gilt.

L.C. 7. Was that in the Pillory top?

Mr. At. Gen. He was fined Fitty Pounds.

Cl. of Cr. Here are three i Salifbury for three

feveral Guiness, and he wqg adjudged to the Pil-
lory for them all. ‘

My, A4t Gey, Tt

s
)
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Mr. At. Gen. It was all at one Aflizes, my
Lord. _

L. C. . My Brother try’d him,

Cl. of Cr. He was tried before Mr. Juft. Fones,
and to ftand in the Pillory for all threc.

L.C. ¥. What have you elfe to fay ?

Prif. Call Mrs. Cellier and Mr. Dowdal.

L. C. 7. What is your Name, Sir?

Dowdal, My Name is Bennet Dowdal.

L. C. . What have you to fay to him, my

Lord?’ o
Prif. Mr. Dowdal, the Cafe 1s this, Mr. Dan-

gerfield tells me I was angry with him at fuch a
time for a Bufinefs at my Houfe; Was I not an-
gry with him at Powis Houfe for going to the
Lords in the Tower ?

Mr. 4. Gen. Then he did go about 1t ?

Docwdal, Mis. Cellier {pake to me to fpeak to
M. Dangerfield not to be troubled at your Anger.

Mr. Juft, Raymend. When was this?

Dowdal. After the Jefuits died.

Prif. He proves this, That Mrs, Cellicr {pake
to him to pacify Mr. Dangerfield, and Dangerfield
did tell him I was angry with him for going In
my Name to the Lords. ‘

Mr. Juft. Raymond, He fays no fuch Thing, my
Lord.

L.C. ¥ You muft not afk him what Mus. Ce/-
fier faid.

Mrs. Cellier. This Day twelve-month he and I
had been employ’d in writing Copies of fome Let-
ters, and I fent him to my Lord to know if he
would go fomething towards the printing them,
and he went from him to the Lords in the Tower,
In an Hour and half after, my Lord came to me
very angry: Mrs. Cellier, faid he, [ thought you
would not forfeit your Difcretion to fend fuch a
Rafcal to me; if you fend him to me again, I will
bid my Servants kick him. And, fad I to Mr.
Dangerfield, you are not to note that; for he isa
very good Man, and may be angry one time and
pleafed another ; and I would have fent him ano-
ther time, and faid he, Pray, Madam, don’t fend
me thither; I would rather go an hundred Miles
of your Errand.

L. C. F. Dangerfield, that Difcourfe you had with
my Lord, was it before the Jefuits dy’d or after ?

Mr. Daagerfizld. What Difcourfe ?

L. C.}. When you difcours’d about killing the
King.

Mr. Dougeifield. No, my Lord, two Months
after.

L.C. 7. When was the time that thefe Words
were {poken ?

Mr. Dangerfield. When his Lordfhip was in that
Paffion,

L.C. . When was that?

Mr. Daugerfield. My Lord, 1t was about the
Middle of Auguf.

L. C. 7. Was you ever in his Company after?

Mr. Dangerfield, No, my Lord, I faw him once
at Powis Houfe.

L. C. 7. Had heever been angry before ?

Mr. Dangerfield. No, not till this time, my
Lord.,

L. C. ¥. Here Mrs. Cellier witnefles, that this
Day twelve-month, my Lord was extremely an-
ory, infomuch, that when fhe would have had
you go on an Errand, you would not.

Mr. Dangerfi-td. My Lord, that ;time I had
been with my Lord Cafflemaine, 1 went home to
Mrs, Cellier’s Houfe, which I did then call my

home, and faid I, my Lord Caflemaine is moft vi
olently angry with me.

L. C. 7. When was this ?

Mr. Dangerfield, This was the latter End of
Auguft,

L.C. 7. But fhe talks of this time twelve-
month,

Mr. Dangerfield. Itis no fuch thing, my Lord.

Mrs, Cellier. 1 faid, pray carry this Letter to -
my Lord Caftlemaine : Pray excufe me, faid he, I
I]])ad rather go an hundred Miles than g0 by his

oOr.

L. C. ¥. Whereas Dangerfield fays, He had this
Difcourfe in Auguff, Mrs, Cellicr fays in Faune or
July 5 this Day twelve-month particalarly fhe gave
him a Letter, and he faid, Pray excufe me, I
would go an hundred Miles for you; butl would
not go into my Lord’s Company again if I could
help 1t.

Prif. My Lord, Mr. Dowdal can tell 1t.

L. C. ¥. Did he acknowledge to you my Lord’s
Anger in the beginning of Fuly ?

; gm'drz]. It was within a Week after the Jefuits
ted.

L. C. ¥. Idor’t know that,

Dozwdal. It was about the twenty-firft of Fure,

L.C. 7. Here are two Witnefles, one faysin Fune
or the {:gfnning of Fuly; fays Myrs, Cellier, this
Day twelve-month he came and told me my Lord
was extremely angry with him. And fhe would
afterwards have had him carried a Letter: Bat he
fadd, Pray excufe me, I would go an hundred
Miles, but he would not go apain to him if he
could help it. And Dowdal fays he told him a-
bout that time of my Lord’s Anger with him.

Mr. At. Gen. Hold your Tongue, Mr. Dan-

gerfield.

Mr. Juft. Raymond. What Jefuits?

Dewdal, The five Jefuits.

Prif. If you pleafe, my Lords, I would only
tell you this. My Lords, you fee that thefe two
Witnefles teftify that I was angry with Mr, Dan-

gerfild in Fune ; my Lords, Ionly fay this to you,

that when I was examin’d at the Council before
the King of this Particular, my Lord Chanceflor
aflk’d him the Particulars of it, and he did confefs

this thing which I now prove. Now, my Lords,

I infer this, if T was fo angry with him for offer-
ing to go to the Zower, when he went to the

Tower 1n my Name

L.C. 7. That they have faid, that you were
very angry.

Dowdal, Dangerfield told me fo, that he was
angry about his going to the Tower in my Lord’s
Name unknown to him. +

L. C. ¥ Here are two Witnefles to prove that
my Lord was angry with him for going to the
Tower in his Name 5 and they both teftify he was
extremely high, and refufed to carry a Letter to
my Lord; and yet he fays in Auguf? following he
had this Difcourfe.

Prif. 1 have now only one thing to fay, what
hata pafs’d between Mr. Oates and Mr. Danger-

feld,

L. C. . Do it as near as you can.
Me. Sol. Gen. We have fome other Evidence to

an{wer this, |
Mr. At Gen. If your Lordfhip pleafe, we will

call two or three Witnefles to prove the Point.
Firft, to prove this laft thing, that we have been
in my Lord’s Company later than my Lord {peaks

of.
L. C. 7.
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L. C. §. He fays Augufl. ‘

Mr. At. Gen, We will prove after that time,
that is the time that pinches us. |

Prif. My Lady Powis 15 in Court, will you hear
her? |

Lady Powis, My Lord 1 never did fend a
Letter by Mr. Dangerfield to any body m my life,
nor I never read a Letter in Mr. Dangeifield’s Pre-
fence, nor never had him fo much in my Com-
pany to read 2 Letter or any Tittle to hin.

L.C.¥ 1 wil tell you Gentlemen, what he
fays ; Mr. Dangerfield fwears he carried Letter
from my Lady Pswis tomy Lord Cofflematine,
and there was an Anfwer brought back, and
that that Anfwer of my Lord Cafflemainc’s was
read before him, and (you will do well to call
Mous. Cellier in again) my Lady Perets doth deny
that fhe ever fent a Letter by him to my Lord
Caftleinaine, or any bedy elfe, by himin her Lite;
or that fhe ever communicated any Letter to lnm:
This is apt Evidence, this is the Truth of 1t; for
it anfivers dire@ly to what he fays agaieft my

Lord Caftleinaine
Sir Rilard Barker,
L. C ¥ What fay vou, Sy Rickerd Berka,

can you give an Account of Oates 7 When was
Mr. Oates in Town ? What time that you know
of ?

Sir R. Barkir, My Lord, I remember we were
once upon this before your Lordfhip.

L.C 7. Iny8e¢

Sir R, Barker. Yes, my Lord ; the Ewvidence
that I gave, my Lord, was only this, that my
Servants told me that Mr. Oates had been at my
Houfe : It was before [Fbitjsutide m May %5.

L.C. 7 Did you fee him then? When was
it you faw hm?

Sir R. Barker. My Lord, I fawhim after,

L. C. 7. How long after ?

Sir R. Berker. My Lord, 1t was about the
latter end of Fuire.

L. C. ¥ He fays to his own Knowledge he
faw him 1n Fuse,

Mr. A2.Gen. But we have lhis Servants here
too, Philip Page, and Cecily Ao,

L. C. 7. Doyou hear, Mrs. Ccllicr, was there
any Letter fent by my Lord Copflimaine to my
Iady Powis, that was read before you and Dai-
gerfield ?

Mis. Cellier. No, my Lond.

L. C.F. Here are two Witnefles, my Lady fays
there 1s no fuch Thing, and Mrs CGellicr fays it.

Piif. There is another Thing, that 1s, The
teaching the Scholars at St. Owers, that I taught
the Scholars their Leflons.

—

HiTHCE,

Mr. Sol. Ger, Pray 1nform my Lord and the

felf in any thing, but when you faw them to-
gether. .

Turner. 1 was coming down Stairs, my Lord.

Mr. Tuft. Reymond. You don’t tell when it was.

L. C. 7. Tell us whether you can tell or no:
If you are doubtful, fay you are doubtful; but
{peak the Truth.

Tuirer. T can’t be pofitive.

L. C. 7 Tt might be m Ffune, or July, or An-
gyt 5 but you think Fudy.

Turaer. Yes, Sir.

M. Sol, Gen. The fooner 1t is after that, the
Evidence is the better agaimft it.

Mr. . Gen.  Madam I think your Ladyfhip

fays you never {enta Letter by Daugerficld,
Lady Powis. Yes, Sir.

Mr. At Gen. INor did you never receive any
Notes from him ¢

Lady Pecvis. I have received fome Notes from

Mrs. Collier, which were his Witing,

L.C 7 Butdid yeu ever recave a Letter
from my Lord Cafileiinaiie ?
Lady Powis. Never, my Lord.

I Geranzi,

Mr. Joft. Ravirend. What do you fay, Mr.
Arteripy 2 |

Mr. A Gea. Heark you, /eocinen, veere you
fent with any Letter £

I7s0dman, To whom ?

Mr. .1t Gean, To my Lord Caffloncine, of any
body ?

[Veodinen, T was fent with one Letter, it was
Mrs, Celliei’s, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Towhom ¢

Weodiman. To my Lord Cafllemainey as 1 re-
member, my Lord, I took 1t tfrom Mrs, Gilieis
Daughter.

Mr. A1 Gei. Did you ever receive any Money
of my Lord Cofflenaiize 2

Woodinan Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. What was it £ How much was 1t ?

[Foodinan, About three Pounds, or thirty Shil-
lings, T believe. '

L. C. 7. How do you believe it 2

[Vacdiair, To the beft of my Thoughts it was.

Mr. At Gzin. Wasat for Davmeifield ¢

IWoodinan. My Lord, I don’t know that.

L.C. 7. Have you any more?

Mr, Sof. Gein. My Lord, T have this to fay to
prove Dr, Oafes was in Loidoir in il 78.

L. C. F. He doth not deny but he micht be
here too. ' 7

Prif. Tdow’t difpute it, my Lord, I have only
f:his one word more. It 15 not of Treafon, but
1t 1s agamnft my Reputation 5 becaufe this Man,
before your Lordfhip, I think, has accufed ma
of it; and I think, my Loid, [ fhall give you
very good Satisfaction: That is, that the Bovs
that came from St. Omeis were not inftruel

Jury, what time it was you faw Mr. Dangeifie/d and taught by me.  Now if you pleaiz, my Lord,

atmy Lord Cuffleinciics.

L. C . What Month can you charge your
felf to fay you faw Dangerfieldin my Lord Coftle-
matir’s Company ?

Turner, Tcan’t fay juft the time,

L. C.7. Whght 1t be uguft ?

Turier, Tean’t well tell, I think it might be
about Fuly.

Mr. Jult. Raymond. Why do you think fo

L. €. F. You are not afked to accule your

to give me leave to thew it, I have done, L.ook,
my Lord, the thing that I can fay, is this: Mr.
Littcott,

Mr. Juft. Raymoud. You fee he faid it was mo-
rally mmpofible,

Prif. Pray, my Lords,
Mr. Jult. Raymond, T will undertake

fay 1t 1s time loft,

L.C.¥. Twill flay fome time to obferve to the
Jury what I have taken notice of with all- my heart,

but I fhould be gone. Prif.

.

you will



1680. B. R. Ear/ of Caftlemaime, for High-Treafon. g3

Prif. 1 have done, my Lord, I would not fay
any thing to difguft any body. _ _

L. C. 7. Gentlemen of the Jury, I will c_lelwer
my Obfervations in this Caufe as I would m any
Caufe, to the beft of my Underftanding, and I
will make thofe Obfervations that are as natural
as I know how to dos and proper for you to take
notice of. It 1s in vain to difpute what my Lord
{tands indicted of : It is for attempting to murder
the King, and change our Government and our
Religion. To prove this there have been two
Witnefles only that are material, and that is Mr.
Oates in the fieft place; and Mr. Oates his Evidence,
the Sum of 1t is to be reduced ——-

L. C.¥. Mr, Attarney, do youftand up to {peak
any thing?

Mr. At Gen. If your Lordfhip pleafes, we will
fum up the Evidence for the King, not to offend
your Lordfhip.

L.C. ¥ If you would be thort, Mr. Attoruey,
we would not hinder you of any thing.

Mz, At Gen. T will be very fhort.

If it pleafe your Lordfhip, and you Gentlemen
of the Jury, my Lord Cafflesaine is here charged
with High-Treafon. The Proof that we have
againft him 1s by two Witnefles, that 1s, Dr, Oates
and Mr. Dangerfield. Mr. Oates he doth {wear
this, namely, That after the Confult (for I will
bring 1t in fhort) that after the Confult that was
for killing the King and altering the Government,
my Lord Caftlemasne being acquainted with it at
Mr. Fenwick’s Chamber, did hope i1t good Suc-
cefs, and that he fhould come to be reveng’d.
M. Daugerfield he hath prov’d, That being treated
with to kill the King, and having refus’d to do 1t,
my Lord Cafflemaine was very angry with him for
it, and faid, #hy won't you do that for which you
were taken ont of Prifon? Here are two Witnefles
exprefs, What 1s faid agamft Mr. Oazes fignifies
nothing. As to Mr., Dangerfield, there are fome
Exceptions, which we muft confes to be true;
but he 1s 2 Witnefs, and my Lord, fuch Matters
are to be expedted to be proved by fuch Witnef-
fes: For if a Man will difcover Robberies, he
muft go to {uch Perfons as do fuch Things; and
if Treafons, it muft be among them that have
been employed i fuch Thirgs. Tho’ he werea
dithoneft Man before, yet he may be honeft now:
He was never guilty of any Trealon but as he was
employed among them. There are fome Witnef-
fes brought to encounter him, and one is my La-
dy Powis, who, as he fays, f{ent him with a Let-
ter to my Lord Caffleimainey but fhe fays fhe did
never {fend a Letter by him: And others fay, he
would never come at my Lord Coffleinaine after
he was angry, which was in Funz. Now for that,
Gentlemen, you do hear Turuer fay, Thatin Fuly
or Auguft, for he can’t tell which, he thinks it
might be Fuly, he faw Daugeirfield at my Lord
Caftlemaines; fo that That encounters that Evi-
dence.

L.C. 7. If Mr. Attorney had not interrupted me,
I would not have left out any thing of this Na-
ture, for I would be certainly careful where the
King’s Life lies at ftake: I would be fure to pre-
ferve my Sovereign above all things; and there-
fore no Man ought to think that I fhould be par-
tial in a Caufe wherein our Religion, and the Life
of the King and the Government is in Danger.
But I muft fay on the other fide, That there fhould
be good competent Proofs of thefe Things againft
thofe accufed, becaufe their Lives and' Fortunes,

and Honours, and all are at ftake. And fo, Gen-
tlemen, we fhall difcharge our Confciences to the
beft of our Underftandings, and deal uprightly on
both hands.

For the Cafe it ftands thus: It is truly obferved
by Mr. Atorney, That there are but two material
Witnefles to the Charge of this Indi®tment, that
1s to fay, M. Oates and Mr. Dangerfield. Me, Oates
his Teftimony is in two Things, the one clofe,
the other 1s more remote. That more remote is,
That he had a Letter to fend to my Lord Caftle-
maine, which he gave to the Provincial to fend 1t,
and as he fays, he faw a Letter fubfcribed Coftle-
maine; and that afterwards by feeing him write a
Superfcription, he could recolle¢t the Charaer o
well, that he believed that to be his Hand which
he faw i Spain among the Jeluits or the Fathers,
as they call them there, to whom they communi-
cated that Letter; wherein he mentioned the ge-
neral Defign, that is, the bringing in Popery,
which is the bringing 1n the Catholick Religion,
as they callit, That is more remote. He fays,
there were Letters pafs’d between them, wherein
my Lord approved of fome Things, and difappro-
ved of others, which related to the Defign; by
which, fays Mr. Oates, we meant the whole Mat-
ter and Tranfadion of killing the King 3 and that
doth appear by that Letter he faw of my Lord
Caftlonine’s, for that annexes to Defign the ad-
vancing the Catholick Religion. The firft time
he faw him he did not know who he was; and
there, at #Wild-houfe, he fays, That my Lord Ca-

SHemaine thould drop out fome Words which were

fufpicious, and one thing, asif he underftood
fomething of this Matter that they had in Agi-
tation,

But more particularly he fays, That when he
came to Feumwick’s Chamber, there was the great
Mattet. They talked before but of the Defign
in general, at 2/7d-boufe 3 but afterwards mecting
in Lincol’s- Inn-Fields, where he was told who he
was, they went to Fenwick’s Chamber, where they
fell a difcourfing about feveral Things that related
to the Concern, and at laft they fell upon the
Matter in hand, and {aid, they were glad to fee
the Fathers fo unanimous 1n this Matter: I afked
about what Matter? He faid, the killing of the
King and bringing in Popery ; to which, he fays,
that my Lord fhould make anfwer, He wifhed
them good Succefs in their Defign, and that then
he thould be revenged. This ‘¢ the Subftance of
what Mr. Oafes fays; againft whofe Teftimony, I
muit tell you, there hath been but little.  There
1s but little thrown upon Mr. Oates by way of Dif-
orace and Infamy ; for that Verdict that the Jury
found agammft his Evidence, it is not maternal, for
then every Man muft be accufed when the Jury
does not go according to the Teftimony he gives.
It is not to be denied, but there 1s fomething fa
againft him 1n another Particular, and that is hss
coming ovet from St. Omers; where he fays that
Mr. Hilfley came over with him in the Pacquet-
Boat, but Mr, Hilfley denies it; Mr, Oazes would
have falved it, by faying he left him at St. Owers.
"T's true, fays Mr., Oazes, but I overtook him af-
terwards ; but he fays to the Point, that he came
not with him. Now it is not to be demed on the
other hand, but Mr. Oates might be here, and my
Lord of Coftlemaine feems to admit it, and it 1s
probable enough Mr. Oates might be here. This
15 2l I remember in reference to Mr. Oates. You

muft weigh well with your felves how probahle
)3
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or not probable what he does {wear is, Butl
muft tell the Jury they are to weigh the Natures
of People among themfelves, as they carry Pro-
bability or not, or elfe the Confidence of a Swearer
{hall take away any Man’s Life whatfoever. And
to that Mr. Oates fays firft, I underftand not how
he fhould be fo free, Mr. Oatesbeing a Stranger to
him, when he knew not my Lord, and doth not
know, whether my Lord knew him or no. But
he fays, my Lord muft needs fee the Jefuits truft-
ed him, and that might make him more confi-
dent : That afterwards going to Fenwick’s Houle,
he fpoke broader in plan Englifh. They were
talking of a Defign to kill the King and bring in
the Catholick . Religion; and Mr. Ogfes fays, he
wifl’d them good Succefs in the Defign, and that
then he thould be revenged. How far this Oath
is to be taken or not, I muft Jeave to your Confi-
deration.

The next is Mr. Dangerfield; for nothing nfa-
mousis proved againft Mr. Oazes.  Dangerfield is a
Man of whom there is enough. You fee what
Crimes there are; for it is the Duty of every
Judge s and I can’t fee how he can dilcharge his
Conlcience, and the Duty he owes to the Go-
vernment, in refpe¢t of his Oath and Place, if
he doth not make thofe juft Obfervations to the
Jury which are done in all Cafes: That 1s to fay,
when Men have contradted great Crimes upon
themfelves, tho’ by Law they may be Witneffes;
yet it hath always been obferved, and their Cre-
dit left to them to confider of. Youfee how
many Crimes they have produced, a matter of
fix great enormous Crimes; and by them you
will fee how far you ought to confider his Te-
ftimony. Had Mr. Dangerfield been guilty only
of being concerned in the Treafon, and come
as a Witnefs, I fhould have thought him a very
competent Witnefs, for that 15 Mr, Oates’s Cafe;
but they prove Crimes of another Sort and Na-
ture, and whether the Man of a fudden be be-
come a Saint, by being become a Witnefs, I
leave that to you to confider, and how far you are
fatisfied in the mam.

"The next thing is the Oppofition to his Tefti-
mony. He hath {worn that he carried a Letter
from my Lady Powis to my Lord Caftlemaine, and
an Anfwer returned back from my Lord to her,
and that my Lady Pewis did read it i the Pre-
{ence of Mrs, Cellier and him.  Of this my Lady
Powis hath been 2fted (it is true they are not up-
on their Oaths, but that i1s not their Fault, the
Law will not allow it) and my Lady Powis hath
affirmed to it, as much as lay upon her to do, that
fhe never {ent a Letter by Mr, Dangerfield to my
Lord Caftlemaine, nor any body elfe. And whereas
he fays Mrs. Cellier was prefent, fhe fays fhe knows
of no {fuch Letter, nor was any read in her Com-
pany., And this is a contraditting his Evidence,
fuppofing him to be a Man otherwile untouch’d.
And whereas Dangerfield fays, that in Auguft he
was with my Lord, and he faid, Ilow chance you
would not do that thing for which you were
brought out of Prifon? /hat? IWould you have
me kill the King 2 Tes, fuith he, that isit. And
my Lord {peaking very angrily and very roughly,
made him think 1t time to withdraw out of his
Company, and never come into his Company
more 3 and that this was the time of his Anger,
and no other time, my Lord rather compliment-
ing him, as he wonld fay, with friendly Salutati-
ons. But they produce Witnefles againft this.

06. The Trz"c;[tsyf Roger Palmer Ejj, Trin. 32 Car. 11. ‘

Says Mirs. CéllierS This Day Twelve-month; and
fays t'other, about a Week after the Jefuits were
executed, which was about the beginning of Fu-
ly, faith fhe, I would have you carry a Letter to
my Lord-Gafilemaine 3 {ath he, I would not do
that, Iwould go an hundred Miles upon another
Errand, but 1 would not go to lum. Another
Witnels fays, my Lord was mighty angry with
him, and told him the Caufe, becaufe he wentin
his Name to the Lords in the Tower. Firft, ;s
contradifts what he {aid, as if there had been no
Angerbefore. The nextis, that it is very impro-
bable that my Lord fhould be angry with him fo
much, that my Lord fhould be very angry with
him for going my his Name to the Tower, and af-
terwards for his refufing to kill the King; when
he faid, #hy did you not do that you came out of
Prifon for ¢ What, ny Lord, to kill the King 2 e,
that. This 1s an Argument in Oppofition to his
Teftimony.

The next 1s a Confideration for his Teftimony.
Turners fays m anfwer to that, i Fuly he takesit,
but can’t charge himielf whether Fane, or Fuly,
or Auguft, but he himfelf thinks Fuly, that he faw
him at the Lord Cafflemaine’s Houfe, And the
King’s Councll would gather from that, there
could not be fuch an Unwillingnefs to go before
that time, it being after the time they fpeak of
that this Man faw him there. Whether or no it
was in June, or fuly, or Auguft, is fomething un-
certain, So that I have repeated, as nearas| can,
all that 15 {ubftantial on either Part; and I have,
according to the beft of my Underftanding, dealt
fairly on both Sides, and obferved to you what
hath been fworn againft my Lord, and what hath
been faid in Contradiction to what they f{wear,
and what appears upon Record, as to Danger-

field.

There 15 a great deal of Difference between
M., Qates’s Teftimony and Mr. Dangerfleld’s ; for

you may believe one, when you may perchance

not believe another. There are not thofe Things
caftupon Mr, Octes that are upon Mr. Dangerficld,
Now I muft tell you, tho’ they have produced
two, 1f you believe but one, I think (if fo be
my Brethrens Opinions be otherwife, I would
be very willingly contradicted in this Matter) if
two Witnefles are produced, both fpeaking ma-
terially to the thing, the one is believed and the
other not; Whether upon thefe two Witneffes
the Jury can find a Perfon guilty, orno? I am of
Opinion, is 1t but one Witnefs, if you don’t be-
lieve oney and I am fure one is not fufficient to
find one guilty: And therefore if fo be you are of
another Opinion, let us deal fairly and above-
board, that it may appear we deal rightly between
the King and his Subjects, and fo preferve Men
that are acculed and not guilty.

Mr. Juft. Jores. 1 think in the firft place, my
Lord hath very faithfully delivered the Evidence s
and I do think it neceffary, in a Cafe of T'reafon,
Ehat there muft be two Witnefles believed by the

ury.

Mr. Juft. Raymond. 1 never heard any Man
queftion it. If the Law fays there muft be two
Witnefles produced, it fays they muft be both
believed.

L. C. J. Now you have our Senfe of it.
[The Fury went from the Bar, and returited.]

Cl.of Cr. Are yonallagreed of your Verdié?
3 ’ Fury.



1680. B. R. Eczr%cy"' Caftlemaine, ﬁf :High-Treafon. 37

Fury. Yes. o
Cl. of Cr. Who fhall fpeak for you ?
Fury. The Foreman.

Cl. of Cr. Roger Palmer, EA q-;; Karl of Caftlemaine
in the Kincdom of Jreland, Hold up thy Hand,

D

look upon the Jury.

-

Cl. of Cr. Is Roger Palmer, Efq; Earl of Caffle-
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maine in the Kingdom -of Ireland, Guilty of the
High-Treafon whereof he ftands indicted, or not
Guilty ¢

Jury. Not Guilty. _

Cl. of Cr. This is your Verdi&®, You fay he is
Not Guilty, fo you fay all ?

Jury., Yes.

3

LRI

XCVIII. The Trial of HENRY CARR, af the Guild-hall
of London, for a Libel, July 2. 1680, 32 Car. 11

N Information was filed in the Crewi-Office,

againft Henry Carr, which fets forth, that
a certain Plot of a traiterous Confpiracy was late-
Iy had within this Kingdom of England, amongft
divers falfe Traitors of this Kingdom of Eugland,
to put to Death, and murder our Lord King
Charles 11, and the Government of this Kingdem
of England, and the fincere Religion of God with-
in this Kindom of Eiglend, well and pioufly efta-
blithed, to deftroy and {ubvert, and the Romifb
Religion, within this Kingdom of Exugland to in-
troduce ; and that alfo divers Traitors for High-
Treafon aforefaid, were lawfully convited and
attainted, and other Perlons, for High-Trealon,
aforefaid, were by due Courfe of Law tried and
acquitted. Neverthelefs, one Hewicy Caiiy of the
Parith of Sepulchres, London, Gent. knowing well
the Premifes, but minding, and malicionfly mtend-
g the Government of the Kingdom of Ziglaird,
and the Adminiftration of Juftice in the fame
Kingdom to feandalize, and to bring the fame in
Contempt :

The fuflt Day of Auprft, in the Thirty firft
Year of our now Lord the King, at the Panfh
of Sepulchies, Lowdon, a certain falfe, feandalous
and malicious Book, Latituled, The Il7eekly- Pecket
of Advice from Rome, o the Iifloiv of Popeiys
malicioufly and unlawfuily hath printed, and cauled
to be publithed: In which Book 1s contained a-
mong other Things, as followeth. There is late-
ly found out by an experienc’d Phyfictan, an -
comparable Medicament, calld The I ander-coork-
g Plajfter, truly Catholick in Operation, {ome-
what of kin to the jefuits Powder, but more ef-
feCtual. The Vertues of it are firange and va-
rious. It will make Juftice Deaf as well as Blind,
takes out Spots out of deepeft Treafons, more
cleverly than Caftle-Soap does common Stams. It
alters a Man’s Conftitution in two or three Days,
more than the Virtuofos Transfufion of Blood m
feven Years. Is a great Alexipioraick, and helps
Poions, and thofe that ufe them. It miraculouf-
ly exalts and purifies the Eye-fight, and maies
" People behold nothing but Innocence m the
blackeft Malefadors. It is a mighty Cordial for
a declining Canfe, {tifles a Plot as certainly as the
Itch is deftroyed by Butter and Brimftone. Ina
word, 1t makes Fools wife Men, and wife Men
Fools, and both of them Kwnaves. The Cojour
of this precious Balm is bright and dazzling, and
being apply’d privately to the Fift i decent Man-
ner, and a competent Dofe, infallibly performs all

Vor. HI. |

the fard Cures, and many others, not fit here to
be mentioned.

To the great Contempt of our Lord the King,
and his Laws, to the great Scandal of the Go-
vernment of our now Lord the King, and the
Laws of this Kingdom of Ergland, and the Ad-
miniftration of Juftice in the fame Xingdom; to
the evil Example of all others in fuch a Cafe of
fending, and agamnft the Peace of our Lord the
King, his Crown and Dignity.

To which Information appeared in the Court
of King's-Bench, Henry Car, by his Attorney,
Benediét Browa, the eleventh of Feoruary, and hav-
mg heard the Information aforefaid, faid that e
was not Guilty,

Iffue being jon’d, 1t was tried by Writ of Nif
Prius, at the Guild-hall, before the Lord Chicf-
Juftice Screggs, upon the Second of Fuly, 1€80,

where a Jury was fummon’d, whofe Names are
as followeth :

Benjamin Thoregoed.

Feremiah Gregory,
Richard Blackbourn. v

Nicholas Bondy.

Godfrey Richards. | George Day.
Leonard Bates, | Nicholas Dawes.
Philip Haiinan, | Richard Blaney.
Lrancis Brzerwood, I Henry Averie,
Thomas Kemble, Fofeph Hall,
Willian Leuginan. I William Bridges.
Jovn Debman, Themas Lee.,
Lewis Wilfon, Richard White,
Henry Lafboe. Randal Dad,
Theinas Salter. l Richard Bowater.

Of all which only Four appear’d and were

Swornh, iz,

Henry Averie.

Nicholas Bowdy.
l Randal Dad.

Leonard Butes.

Whereupon a Tales was prayed and granted,
and then were fworn and added to the principal
Pannel, according to the Form of the Statute.

Nicholas Caplin, James Woed.
Richard Cawtham., Thomas Gilby.
Arthur Toung, Fobir Odonfzd.

William Tap. | Lmannel Conyers.

After which the Court proceeded, and the Re-
corder began to open the Offence, as follows.

1 " Mr. Re-
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Mr. Recerder. This Perfon among
Sir Georgé  others, intending to fcandalize the
Jefferie: Government, hath caufed a Book to
be publithed, which I have here in my Hand,
called, The Weekly Packet of dvice from Rome ;
there are fome Papers befides what are bound up
together, that are continued on, which, my Lord,
would not be amifs for us that are of the King’s
Council to take Notice of, not only for the Jury’s

Satisfaction, but likewile for the Satisfaction of

this great Auditory, fome whereof I know come
to pick Advantage, and to know whether or no
Rafecals may have Liberty to print what they
pleafe. Now all the Judges of Eiglend having
been met together, to know whether any Perfon
whatfoever may expofe to the publick Knowledge
any manner of Inteiligence, or any Matter what-
foever that concerns tie Publick : They give 1t in
as their Refolution, that no Perfon whatloever
could expofe to the publick Knowledge any thing
that concern’d the Affuns of the Publick, without
Licence from the King, or from fuch Perfous as
he thought fit to entruit with that Afta.  But
fuch is the Age that we live m, thata Man that
hath Wit enough to libel any Man m the Go-
vernment, thinks he hath Licence enough to ex-
pofe that Man to publick Knowledge alio. And
they do it under {pecious Fretences, becaufe they
think that any Man may be expofed to the pub-
lick Cenfure, that they car either call a Papift,
or but popifhly affetted, and that Man 1s cither
the one or the other, that is not agrceable to e-
very Rafcally Humour that {fome People affect.
I acknowledge, my Lord, that any Man that
will in a legal manner endeavour to fupprefs Po-
pery, ought to be encouraged in his Endeavour, to
the utmoft ; but 1f in cafe any Man will be tranf-
ported with Zeal, becaufe he is of a Party, and
under Pretence of endeavouring to fiipprefs Po-
pery, fhould fupport a Party, that Man ought to
be deteéted. The Author of this Packet of Ai-
vice from Rome, or the Publifher of it, Mr. Carr,
that 1s new the Defendant, he thinks he can
{cratcn the Itch of the Age, and that he may Ji-
bel any Man concern’d in the Government, if 2
can but call hima Papift or popifhly affeCled ; let
a Man be never {o honeft, let 2 Man be never fo
much for the Support of that Religion that every
honeft Man ought to fupport, that is, the Prote-
ftant Religion, as 1t is eftablif’d by Law, with-
out going to Rome or Amfferdan for Afliftance.
I will not mention the Perfons that are concer’d
in 1t, but I will apply my felf wholly to this Mat-
ter, that 1t 1s the Opinmon of al the Judaes of E- g-
land, that 1t 15 the Law of the Land, that no
Perfon fhould offer to expofe to publick Know-
ledge any Thing that concerns the Government
without the King’s immediate Licence. Now
we are to try whether this Perfon expofed this
Thing to publick Knowledge, and that is the Mat-
ter, Gentlcmen, that you are to try, The other
is the Bufinefs of the Court, we are to {ay whe-

ther, if we prove the Fa&, this Man is guilty of

Pumfhment, and to doubt the Juftice of the Na-
tion will punith him. But when I {ee {o many

{warm about me, I am willing to hear what Proof

there is.

S Francis Winnington, 1am of Council for the
Defendant, I only offer it to your Lordfhip, that
the Intormation may be proved.

L. C. 5. Here are two Things we are to keep
to, the Matter of Proof according to the Infor-

mation, and accordingly are we to proceed as m
common Juftice we find the Cafe to be. 1 muift
fay that for the Prifoner, he has behav’d himfelf
with as much Modefty as in Duty and Honefty
he ought 5 but I find that Sir Franeis Winningt.
puts you upon proving,

Sir Frencis Fithins, Ny Lord, we will prove.

it.

L. C.%. Let them that are not of
SirWillim ¢ r go forth, the Jury 15 no more
Seranas. the Jury go forth, the Jury e

to be corrupted than the Judge,

Sir Frensis Withas, We muft be allowed the
it Part, that there was a Plot.

L. C. %#. The Jury may take that upon ther
Qaths, they koow there was a Ploi, the cor-
taineft of any Thing of Fauét that ever camne
before me.

Mr, Stvwans, Prnter,

L. C. . Did Mr. Cairr own he writ this Pacquet,
kad you any from nim ¢

Pripece. T had feveral from him.

L. C.7. Of whom ¢lfe had you any ¢

My, Recorder, Belides Copr ?

L. C. °F. You are unon your Oath; from whom
ever had you any befides ?

Printer. 1 do not remember that had any from
any body elfe.

L. C. F. You pnuted them, did you?

Printer, Yes, my Lord, ] did,

L.C. 7. And you kmow of rone from any ¢liv,
but by him or his Orders?

Printer. No, my Lord.

Siv Freucis Winaingtor.  Snew him the Paper,
Can you fwear upon your Outh, that Mi. Gy
did fend or deliver to you that very Paper?

Printer, 1 can’e tell that any body chiz did fend
it.

L. C. 7. We muft do heve, as we doin all Ca-
fesy He faith, 1 had divers of thefe Papers hom
him, I printed them, and [ know of none thut
ever was but by him or his Crder.

Swr Francis Wininingion. He faith {o, but, my
Lord, the Infermation 1s to fuch a particulse
Book, Entitaled, A Pacqrer of Advice from Rome,

L. C.7. He fays this in Anfwer toit, I can’t
charge my f{clf with this Particular, to fay pofi-
tively 1 had it from him: But this [ can fay, we
had feveral from him, and I krow of none ¢lit,
but all were by him or his Order.

Stv Freieis Waniington. Will your Lordihip give
me Leave to atk hin one Queflion; Can vou
{ivear that any that came from him contained che
very Matter  that Book ¥ Was it the Matter or
Words ?

Mv. Recerder.  Ds yon believe it ?

Swr Fraucis Winniigton, Good Mr, Recerdir iot
me alone.  Can you fay it is the very Master con-
tam’d in that Paper ?

Printer. 1 can’t fay that.

L.C 7. It is not an cofy Matter for a Mo
to remember the Matter of a Paper thar is
writ onall Sides.  He fwears that they had feve-
rals and that they had none, tlmugh' he printel
them,_ fron} any but him or his Order., Tihis
Queftion Siv Francis Winzsineten afks, Fad von
this particular Paper from him, he cannot {ivar
it was the fame he had from him; but he does
fwear all the Weekly Intellicences were from

him or his Order; he does not fwear for the
Matter of this Book, which no Man will do :

Bue
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But he does fivear that thefe Papers were always
by him or his Orders, and that feveral were re-
ceived from him,
Mr. Williams. I alk you upon your Oath, he
brought it to you in Writing, did he not ?
Printer. They came in Writing,
M. Williams. Have youany of thefe Papersto

fhew?
Printer. We did not regard them when they

were printed.

L. C.¥. His Caufe fhall be try’d very juftly,

and very indifferently.

Mr. #i%:gms. Had you ever a Paper from
“Cari’s .aand or no?

Priunter. We had few from his own Hand.

Mr. Williams. Had you any ?

Printer. I can’t remember.

L. C. 7. Had you any? You are upon your
Qath.

Printer. My Lord, I can’t remember.

L. C. 7. Had you one, or two ?

Printer. Indeed, my Lord, I can’t remeniber,
I can’t fay upon my Oath he ever brought one.

L. C. 7. How then came you to {ay, you had
{everal from hun ¢

Printer, Ay, my Lord, from him, that 1s, by
him, or his Order.

- L. C. 7. Are you fure it was by his Order ?

Printer. 1 did conceive fo, my Lord.

L. C. J. Had he any Money?

Printer, From me?

L. C. 7. Had he any Money from any body
for printing any of thefe’Papers, as you can re-
member ?

Printer. 1 do fuppofe fo, I have heard he had.

L. C. ¥. Did you give him any ?

Printer. No, my Lord, I was not concern’d.
The Publither, my Lord, wasbetween him and
me.

L. C. . Who 1s that ?

Printer, That 1s one Curlis.

L. C. 7. Dd Curtis pay him any Money ?

Printer, 1 never faw him pay him any, my
Lerd. |

L. C. 7. Hath he owned at any time he had
any Money ¢

Prmter. My Lord, I never had any Occafion
for that Queftion.

L. C ¥. Have you talk’d with Cary ?

Priter. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Now I fhall have you: For I do be-
lieve you are an honeft Man. Did Carr ever own
himfelf to you to be the Author of this Book, or
any of thefe Papers ? ;

Printer. My Lord, as I faid in the other Cafe,
{fo I fay in this, I had no Occafion to dilpute i,
I took 1t for granted.

L. C. 7. Have you ever heard him own it ?

Printer. 1 have heard him deny it.

L. C. 7. How did you come to take it for
granted that he was the Author, when he did
once deny, but never own’d it 2 An{wer me that
Queftion, and thou fhalt be a brave Man.,

Printer. My Lord, there was never Occafion
for that Difcourfe.

L. C. ¥. Look you, Sir, you muft anfiver me
In a way agreeable to common Reafon and Un-
derftanding. Why did you fay juft now you
took 1t for granted that he was the Author,
and yet you fay he hath deny’d it, and never
owned it? Why fhould you then believe he was
the Author ? -

Vou. III.
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 Printer. 1don’t fay, nty Lord, he néver own’d
iIf, " . . ,
L. C. ¥. What Tricks we have in this World 2

Mr. Recorder. 1 would afk the Gentleman, [
will not quarrel with him at all, if he thinks
not in his own Confcience he has reafon to
quarrel with himfelf. Did he ever own it to
you? _ |
Printer. I don’t remember he ever own'd it to
me i1 fo many Words. -

L. C. #. Did he treat with you in thefe Circum-
ftances as 1f he were the Author ?

Printer. Yes, my Lord, Igrant that.

Mr. Recorder. But do you fwear it is fo? We
don’t care for your granting : Iafk you upon your
Oath, did you ever difcourfe him as the Author of
thefe Papers ?

Printer. 1 {uppoled him to be the Author.

L.C. 7. Did he deny it, or baulk when vou
difcours’d him of this Matter ? B

Printer. My Lord, I muft needs fay as I faid
before, 1t was taken for granted.

Mr, Williams. You had it in Writing, Where .
are thofe Writings ?

Printer. We feldom regard thofe Writings.

L. C. 7. It s hard to find the Author, it is not
hard to find the Printer: But one Author found
is better than twenty Printers found.

Mr. Williams. My Lord, I will afk this Mam
a Queftion.  Upon your Oath, Who brought you
that Writing ?

Printer. What Writing 2

Mr. Williams., That by which 1t was Printed :
‘Who brought you that Paper ? |

Printer. 1 don’t remember particularly I had
any of Mr. Garr himfelf.

Mr. Williams. Can you name the Perfon that
brought this Paper, or any one Perfon that brought
any one Paper ?

Printer. There wasa little Boy.

Mr: Williams., Whofe Boy ?

Printer. Mr. Carv’s Boy.

M. Recoider. Now 1t 15 out,

Mz, Williams. Name the Boy.

Priater. 1 do not know his Name.

* Mr. Williains. Cin yolt hame another; can jou
name any body elfe ?

Printer, Truly, Sir, I doir’t remember any body
clfe. .

Mr. Williams. Now I will afk you one Thing -
Fad you any Directions for the Printing: this
Paper ? ,

L. C. 7. To what Purpofe was this written
Paper brought to you ?

Printer. To be printed, my Lord.

Mr. WWilliams. Who gave Dire&ions ¢

Printer, It was the Publither that chiefly di-
reted me. .

Mr. Williams, Who was that ¢

Printer. I have named him.

Mr. Williains. Name him again.

Printer. Curtis ?

Mr. Williams. Did Carr never dire® you to
print this Paper 2

Printer. He did not deal immediately with me,

Mr. Recorder. When the little Poy came, who
did you take him to come from ? From Mr. Carr,
or Mr, Curtis?2

Printer, From Mr, Carr.

L.C. #. He fays he was Carr’s Boy, and that
he came from him: This I fpeak to the Jury;

and I promife you this, if my Life and Fortune
I2 were
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were at ftake, I would be try’d by this Jury at
the Bar, and would do in this, as in all Cafes.
Mr. Carr 15 looked upon as the Author of this
Book 3 that 1t etther came from him, or by his
Order, his Boy (he can remember no body clfe)
did bring it. This is now remamning only : Are
you fure Mr. Corr fent him ¢ Saith he, we talked
with Mr, Carr feveral times.

Sie Fr. Winningtoin, Thus it 15, my Lord, m the
Information, Maliciofe &5 illicite imprimi canfovit
(5 publicevit,  Now I would only afle him 2 Que-
ftion, my Lord, Whether or no did Mr. Curir
own to you that he fent the Boy to have 1t
prmted ?

Printer. No, Sir, I think not. .

L.C. 7. Thatis the fame Queftion afked be-
fore. Did Mr. Cari- ever cwn 1t as hisorno?
Upon your Oath, Did Cirr own this Pacquet to be
his, when you difcourfed with him about it ?

Printer, My Lord, I humbly crave your Eeave
to explain myfelf. I mean by the Difcourfe 1 had,

common Converfation, as the diinking a Glals of

Wine; but I xnow not that ever we difcourfed
upon this thing.

L.C. 7. I mean fo: When you talked about
this Matter, Did you take 1t, by his Difcourfe, for
oranted, that he was the Man that publifhed it

Piinter, 1 took it for granted, becaufe I had it

from him.

L. C. 7. What fay you to this? Have you bla-
med Carr for writing, too fharply n this Book a-
ganft the Government ?

Printer. My Lord, Ido confefs I have.

L. C. f. What Anfwer hath he made, when
vou blamed him for writing too fharply, as you
thought ? Did he deny that he did it 2

Printer, T don’t remeinber that,

L. C.°F What fort of Anfwer did he make to
excufe 1t § That he thought it not too fharp ; or
did he fay, [care not.

Priztor, Wy Lord, T can’t particularly fay what
Anfwer he made.

L. .5 When vou blamed him, by the Oath
you have teken, upon that Blame of youws, did
he deny he wrete 1t ¢

Printcr. Wo, my Lord, I do not remember he
dil,

Mr. IFithems. Did Corr at any time deny he
was the Author or Publifher of it 2 ‘

Printeir. He hatn at fome times,

Mr. [Pillicsize, What did he deny ?

Praer. That hewas the Author.

Mr. FF3lems, Of what Book ?

Piinter. Of the Pacquet,

L. C 7. D ke deny he was the Avthor of
this particular Book for this Week, or deny it in
general? Did he deny i general, that he was the
Author of that Book that is called, The Pacguet
ﬂf .:"}Jt’ E:T.:’;;f e 4

Piinici. 1 have heard him {ay {ometimes that
he was not the Author.

Recsrder. And fometimes what ?

Printer. 1 have heard him fay fome time or o-
ther that hie was not the Author,

Mr. Recorder. And what elfe ?

The Printer’s Servant,

Mr. Williains., Are you acquamted with Cair ?

Man. I.:‘L-EE'CI' had any Converfe with him.

Mr. Fitliams. Do you know any thing of the
Pocgret of Advie ?

4
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Mair. T know we have had Pacquets from him :
I fetch’d fome from him.

My, [:iliam;, What, from his Hands ?

Men. Yes.

Mr. IVidfiains. What, from his own I1ands?

Mai, Yes, in Pieces, no whoie Sheets.

Printer. This1s my Servant, I am not always
there.

Sir Fr. I iuniugton. My Lord, I would afk this
dan a Queftion.  This printed Paper that 1s put
m the Information, Did he ever deliver that to
you I

Mei. T can’ fpeak particularly to any one.

Mr, Recorder. But generally to all ?

L.C. 7. Flave veudone ?

NMr. [/7iliicims. T alk you a Queftion ?

L.C I you could, W, /1 fams, Thew me
any Author befides My, Carr, I would fay foine-
thing,

Niv. [i% s, Who brought you this Paper ?

Men. Which Paper ?

Me. IWilligins. 1 dow’t fpeak of this Paper par-
ticularly.  Did any hiing any befides Cair 2

Aan. Yes, his Boy. .

Mr. [Filliains. Did any body clie bring any
from any Place?

Mai. Nobody elfe that T know of.

My, TFilliaiis, The Pacquet he brovght you,
had 1t been printed before ? I afk you upon vour
Oath, wasit printed before he broucht 1t ?

L. C. . 1d he bring Papers to print that were
never printed 2 |

Men, They were never printed, that T know
of.

Mr. [P:dliaims. Did he bring any to print ?

Kien. 1 can’t fay he brought any.,

Mr, [¥illigins. Did Mr. Ciir bring any ?

Meir. Mo, the Bov,

Mr. JFadiains, Who dire¢ted you to print them?
Did Cearr divedt vou

Mo, Tewlt tell, Tama Sorvant in the Houfe.

L. C 7. Twill afluve you a Now o Firffai can't
pafs at this rate,

Mr. Juft. Feres. Who did you take to be the
Man that fent you all the P.wamts ?

M. Tvery feldom took anv, becaufe I was
net always m fight.

LG T Who did vou underftang

Maz. 1underfteod they came from Mr. Corre

L. C 7. Have youany mere? Fead the Words
i the Information,

Clerk, Diidsy the 1f ¢f Lyt 1679. There is
!at:.:ly tound out by an expertenced  Phyfician, an
mcomparable  Mudicament, called, The 1ond-r-
working Plafz 5 traly Catdolich iy Opciitivn s

fn:pw.-'hat of kintothe ¥ its Peeodzr, but more
effectual,

The Virtues of it are fiyanse and vari-
ous. It makes Jultice deaf, as well as blind, and
tak<s out Spots of che deeneft Treafon more cle-
verly than Cafle-Seap does common Stains,  [e
alters 2 Man’s Conflitution in two or three Days

morc than the /iirurf; Trausfufion of Blsed in fo.
ven Years. "Tisa gveat Alexiphaimick, and helps
Poifons, and g]mﬁ: that ufe them. Tt miraculoufly
exaltsand purifies the Lye-fibt, and makes People
]ﬁfﬁﬁ lelﬂtlliljig im;ﬁf :l?:ccxéc?: ji:nfth_c .LL‘LE[{C&'MR-
: _ oty Corazal for a declining
Caufe 5 it ftifles a Pl as certainly as the Jzch s
deftroyed by Butter ane Brimflone,  In a word

it males Fools wife My, and wife Mz Fools anci
both ot tiem Kisves,  The Colanr of this pr:*cfa:f.r
Balir 15 bright and dazzling, and heing applicd

" privately
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privately to the Ifi[’c, in_decent Manner, and 2
competent Dofe, infallibly performs all the faid
Cures, and many others, not fit here to be men-
tioned. Probatuin cf.

Sir Fr. Winnington. May 1t pleafe your Lord-
fhip, and you Gentlemen of the Jury, Iam Coun-
cil in this Caufe for the Defendant : And the Quel-
tion is, Whether or no we muft take the Infor-
mation as it Jies? And truly, for the firft Part of
it, whether there was a Plot or no, I do not in-
tend to make Exceptions; for I believe there was
one, and do intend to take itas m the Information.
Gentlemen, we are to procced now to this other
Qlcﬁion; which 15, my Lord, Whether or no
this Defendant, that is, Carr, did falfly end mal:ci-
oufly, and with Defigi fo [eandeliz: ;‘Zw. Goveirmmncit,
caufe to be printed and publifhed th:s/fﬂ]fc Libel
thatis in the Information. Now trulf, my Lord,
we that are for the Defendant, fay we are not
guilty. My Lord, we very well know how pe-
nal 2 Thing it is for a Man to be the Author of 2
T ibel that relates to the Scandal of the Govern-
ment. And, my Lord, whether this Defendant
be guilty of this, or no, we muft fubmit that to
your Lordfhip’s and the Jury’s Confideration,
They have produced two Witnefies, that 15 to
fay, the Printer and his Man. Nm_-f, my Lord,
there hath been going out for fome Time, A //eek-
ly Pacquet of Advice frem Rome; and 1 did afkc
the Witnefles (for the” Information points at one
Paragraph, and puts  the Paragraph 7z fuec werde )
I did aflk him whether or no he did fend, or whe-
ther the Matter that he fent is that contained 1n
this Information. That he could not {wear : But
muft be left i pont of Evidence, it being, we al-
low, a very penal Matter, 'The fecond Witnefs,
and the firt Witnefs likewife fay, there was a
Boy; but whether that Boy came by his Mafter’s
Direction, he does not know. 1 afked him if
cver his Mafter fent the Boy ;s he does not know,
he fays, that he fent him. But the laft Witnefs
fays, divers were had from the Hands of Cari;
but whether it was the Thing that 15 now com-
plained of, there 15 the Queftion, and that 15 m
the Dark : For. by your Lordfhip’s Leave, I do
not underftand that ever this Man was complained
of to any publick Magiftrate for writing this Book ;
for it was thougit he was a Salyriff againft Popery,
and thought to be very well liked on tili this Fault
was found with it; and 1t may be very jultly;
whether or no we be guilty of this, is unceriain :
For we know, in the Age we live w, there are
too many Shams put upon Men; and who knows
but that the Papifts, that might have an l-will
to this Mr. Carr, that hath been no Friend to
them, might fhuffle w tlus Paragraph, by that
Means to have Juftice come upon him. I would
not contrive againft common Lvidence, where a
Man 15 guilty to the Publick ; but we know there
are Abundance of Artifices in this Age to abufc
Men. Forthis Purpofe I hope your Lordfhip and
the Jury will expe@ that you fhould have pofitive
Evidence againit him.  Now granting your Lord-
" {fhip fhould have conje@ural Evidence that he did
caufe it to be printed and publifhed, that this Man
did write 1t, is, I fay, very uncertain, forthere is
no pofitive Evidence. What a Man may have in
his private Thoughts of i, is not enough: But,
whether fecundum allcgete & probata, it fhall be
alledged and proved, that this Man was the Au-
thor of it. Now, my Lord, I fay, I muit fub-
mit it to your Lordfhip, I fay, that as to the
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caufing it to be printed, or the canfing it to be
publithed, or that this individual Paragraph was
writ by him i order to it’s being printed or pub-
Iifthed, my Lord, I fay, therc is but remote and
conjedtural Evidence, and an angry Pap;ff might
contrjve this Way to have an mmnocent Protcffait
found guilty.
cople. Hem ——

L.C. 7. You fee what a Cafe we are in, Gen-
tlemen ; you{ee whata Sort of People we are got
among. Go on Sir Fraucis.

St £, Winninglon. With your Lordfhip’s leave
I have one Thing to put to your Lerdfhip.  The
Information fays, falfz, ilicite & maliciofr. ] know.
there are fome Things that do imoly Malice in
themlelves.  Troly, my Lord, Tam upon a ten-
der Pamnt, and know not how to exprefs myfel:
I fay, fuppofing it fhould fall out that this Mag
writ this Beok, and he miaht have fome little
Extravagancies 1 his Head in writing 5 whether
this Man did it malicioufly to fcandaiize the Go-
vernment, as the Infermation fays, is a Queftion.
Truly, my Lord, there 1s many an indifcrect A&
a Man may be guilty of, that cannot be called a
malicious A& 5 and that is the fecond Thing, There
muft be Evidence that this Man did it malicioufly,
or that he did it with a Defign to feandalize the |
Government.  If you be of Oninion that it is o-
therwife, that is i vour Lerdihip’s Breaft; we
areof the Negative, and we {3y we can’t prove a
Neaative. But if you find him innocent, [ fup-
pofe there will be no Caufe to complain of him
afterwards, for he had no Malice in his Heart.

M. Williains, My Lord, it can never be {up-
pofed that a good Man, and a good Subjeét,
fhould do an 1l Action. If he be a very good
Subjeét, if he be upon a Squarz in every Re-
fpect, a Perfon that loves kis King, and lovcs
the Government in Church and in State ; if he
bc fuch a Perfon, he cannot be thought guilty.
My Lord, we will prove him to be fich a Man,
and I hope the Gentlemen vwill believe vs.

Call M. Sutton, A% Avhife, ¢id Mr. Am-
bier.

My, Willigins. Mr, §-.t517, Do you know My,
Cair ?

Mr. Sutton. I know him very well.

Mr, Williams. How long fince have you known
himr

Mr. Sutton. Two or three Years,

M. IFilliains. Does he go to Church or Meet-
Ings ?

Mur. Sutton. Hle hath been with me at Church
often.

My, Recordei. Does he receive the Sacrament
according to the Manner of the Church of Eng-
Jand ? '

Mr., Sutton. I was never with him ar the Saera-
ment,

M. #illiazs. Is he one of them you call Dif-
{fenters?

L. C. 7. Did he ever difcourle with you con-
cerning this Book ?

Mr, Sutton. My Lord, T have often {poken to
him.

L. C. . Has he dfowned he was the Author?

Mr. Sutton. He has fometimes.

L. C.J. How do you belicve 1t was upon that

Difcourfe?

My, Suton.
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- Mr. Suttost, T do not think he 15 able to write
fuch a Book.

L. C. {. That 1s not the Queftion, anfwer me
what I afk.

Mr. Suston. 1t did feem fomething like his writ-
g methought. _

L.C.7. Did it feem by his Anfwer to your
Difcourfe with him ¢

Mr, Recorder. Pray tell us, Did youlook upon
him to be the Author ?

L. C. 7. By the Difcourfe you had with him,
How did it appear upon that Difcourfe? Pray tell
us plamly and clearly, how you do thunk, by the
Difcourfe you had with him concerning this Pam-
phlet, whether he was the Author or no?

Mr. Sutton, My Lord, abouta Year, ora Year
and an half fince, I did afk him whether this Bock
were hicenfed? He told me it was licenfed by Mr.
L' Effrange 5 but he did not tell me he was the
Author.

L. C. 7. How did it feem by his Difcourfe ?

Mr. Sutton, 1 did apprehend he might write it

Sie Fr. Wannnington. My Lord, but the Queftion

18, whether he wrote this Paragraph.
Mr. Ambler,

Mr, Hilliains, Mr. dAmbler, pray do you ac-
quaint my Lord, do you know Mr. Cari @

Mr. Adwbler. Yes, Sir.

L. C. ¥. How long have you known him ?

Mr, Ambler. Three Years,

Sir Fr. Wimnington. Of what Converfation is
he, and how affe@ed to the Government ?

Mr. Ambler. Hewent to Church with me.
o Fr, IWimnington. Do you look upon him asa
Man weil affected to the Government? Do you
think he would malicioufly write any Thing to
Jcandahize the Government ¢

Mr. Juit. fouwes. How do we know how Mr.
Ambler underftands the Government?

My, Recorder. Mr. dimgler, Had you any Dif-
courfe with him about the Pacquet of Advice ?

Mr. Aumibzei. Never in my Lafe,

Mr. Rec:raer. Did you ever hear of the Beok ?

Mr. Ainbler. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Recordir. Upon your Oath, Did you look
upon him to be the Author ?

Mr. Aubler. The common Report was, that

Mr. Carr was.
M. Aylite.

Mr. Willioins, Mr, Ayliffe, Do you know M,
Carr 2

Mr, Avliffe. Yes, Sir.

Mr. illiams. 1s he a conformable Man to the
Government in Chureh and State 2 Does he go to
hear Cosimon- Prayer ?

Mr. #vZffe. T have feen him at Church, and at
Divine Service.

Mr. Recorder. Did he behave himfelf reverently
there ?

Mr. Avliffe, Yes, Sir.

L. C. 7. Do you think he wnt this ?

Mr. Ayliffe. My Lord, I never afked him.

Sir L. Finningten. My Lord, it feems he was
accounted the Author of the Beoks ; but whether of
this particular one in the Information, we con-
celve not proved.

Mr. Recorder. If we fhould not do right, we
difclaim that Service we owe to the Crown, and
that Refpeét we owe to the Government as honeft
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Men and as teue Proseftants, and as much againft
Papifts as any Man whatfoever. I {hall endeavour
to give the World Satisfaction that this Man i3
guiity of this Offence. My Lord, for any Man
to come and pretend that we muft prove thata
Man s malicious s or becaufe that a Man writes
againft the Papifis, he muft never therefore be
convidted of Malice, furely isa ftrange Argument,
And [ wonder to hear any Man that pretends to
Reaflon, Men of Senfe, and Confoience, and Un=
derftanding, {o out of their common Senfe and
Underftanding, as to make that go as an Argu-
ment. Gentlemen, the Things themfelves be-
{peak their Malice.  For fo we in our commeon
Difcourfe, when we bring our common Aéiions
(of which you have heard a Number) if in Cafe
any Man call @ Man Thief, we fay he doses falfly,
and malicroufly, and feandaloufly call aMan Thif
If we prove he called him Thief, the very Thing
does intimate he does 1t falfly, {candaloufly, and.
malicioufly ; therefore the Thing itfelf is a {uffici-
ent Indication of the Mafice and Depravity of it.
There’s no Man but muay know in plain Englifh
what’s the Meaning of thefe Words ; it is as plain
as can be 1 the World : We muft debauch our
Underftandings, and be as great Doltheads as they
would make all Men that will not be of their Par-
ty, if we don’t planly fee into the Meaning of
thefe Words, that Fuftice is te be bribed with Mo-
mey.  In the next Place, Gentlemen, we ds not
come and fay, that the Inforwmation lies againft
thefe very particular Words ; that i1s a Miftake of
the Information.  But the luforiation is, That he
did caufe to be printed and publihed a Bssk, in
which among others, there were {uch Words as
thefe ; though if they had been the very Words
themfelves, the very Words have been proved.
Now, There 15 no better Proof wnder the Heev-ns,
than the Proof we bave effered, The Printer himfelf,
he comes hereand fays, That Cair did acknow-
ledge humiclf the Author, and fe did generally
publith the Bosk; I appeal if you do not bekeve it.
This they would now come and excule 3 for they
are glad to make a Rafcal of any of their Party, if
they can but fave a Man that is guilty.  But
Things come out with much Difficulty and much
Straitnels 3 and [ mutt fay, if ever any Thing were
an nttance of Pgpery, then that Man is one of
the Jefuited’it Fellows that ever was; for he does
cait! fo Like thei, that a Man can’t tell how to g0~
vern hirofelf.  "Who was it that fhould write thefja
Things? Truly, he had difcourfed with him about
the Matter. Who fent the Boy? Do you know 2
Truly I can’t tell : And wonderful great Snuffling
and Canting before he comes to the Bufinefs.  Re-
fides, what can there be more plain than the
Preof-picces before the publithing? T other Man
{ays, that he was the Man that fetched Picces
from Cerr’s own Hand, and that he always look-
ed upon 1t that all did come from Cair.

Now every Man that knows any Thing of

Printing, knows this, that after it hath firft
taken the Prefs, it js always carried back again

to the Author, to fec whether it be done ac-
cording to his Mind; and\after that it comes
to the publick View, And thiat this Man, Carr
13 the Author, Mr. Sutten and'the reft of his Wit-
nefles, if they fpeak according to Confcience, they
themlelves looked upon this very Man to be the
Author. Their own Witnefles looked upon 1t
fo. It was not only the private Opinion of thefe
Men, but the general Report of all, So that,

4 - my
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my‘LGrJ, had it not been neceflary to the Sup-
port of the Government, I fhould have fcarce
troubled my felf to give your Lordfhip and the
Jury this Trouble. - But I muft fay, and I do be-
lieve, that thereis no Man whatfoever, that {tands
to have Vices of this Nature convited and pu-
nithed, but defires the Proteftant Religion may be
{upported to the utmoft, and that _Pc_rpery may be
{upprefled. But Ifa_}f, whoever it 18, that after
this Evidence, who 1s bound by lus Oath to go
according to Evidence, fhall acquit this Man, he
muft be a Man of a humming Confcience indeed.

Sir Fr. IWathins., 1 {hall hint one Thing to your
Lordfhipin this Cafe: Thatitis an unlikely Thin*g
that a Papift fhould fet out this Pacquet at this
Time. For then, my Lord, how came it to pafs
that My, Cerr had none came out that Week 4
for his is @ Weetly Liteligence. If My, Carr’s had
come out, and this hikewife, there had been fome
Pretence for this: But fince there came out but
one, that the Papifts fet out this is unlikely. They
have nat pretended to bring 1 any body elfe as
the Author; but therr own Witnefles fay, and
they themfclves fay, he was looked upon as the
Author., Thofe Things that are done againft the
Government, ave never done in the Face of the
Government,

L.C. 7. Really, Gentlemen, I thought not
that this had been a Canfe of that Moment that
now I find 1t. For therr very Difturbance hath
altered 1t from Mr. Car7’s, to a publick Concern.
The Noife which they make, this Way that thefe
People ufe, that with their Shouts and Noife at-
tend the Caufe, hath quite {poiled it: Asin the
Cale of Harris, But thofe People that did then
attend him, leave following him ina Goal for five
hundred Dounds, which may be five Shillings a-
piece had difcharged him of, if they had been as
free of their Purfes as they are of their Noifes and
Acclamations: So that in Truth they are only vio-
lent againft the Government whilft they can make
Shouts and Noiles, but if it comes once to deliver
a Man from a penal Sum, they will let him rot
in Goal. For fo Harris fent to me, that his Par-
ty had all forfaken him, and no Man would give
him any Thing, And this is for thofe Husmiers,
thofe brave Fellows that feem to efpoufe a Caufe,
and yet Jeave their Party in Diftrefs: But let them
go away with this, that they prove themfelves
hereby Enemies to the Government, and falfe to
that Intercft and Men that they {eem to efpoufe ;
that come only here to affront a Court of Juftice
with thetr Shouts and Noifes, and will not relieve
thew Party: -For this is the Complaint of Hapsis,
and the Difparagement of all Men that come to
efpoufe it. This Caufe, the Truth on’tis, I did
not look upon to be of this Nature and Moment,
when it wasopened. For though there are in this
very Paper upon which the Information is groun-
ed, Words malicicus and refle@ive enough; yet
they were not fo apparently appropriated, that a
Man might obferve an extraordinary Defign in
- them. This] thought ; butreally the Cafe is al-
tered even by thofe Men.  For, Pl tell you, Far-
ris 15 poory and bis keeping in Prifon is princivally
occefuoied fiecin the Mainer of the Reception cf bis
Puiifbment, which he calls bis Parden.  And there-
fore thefe Fellows, thefe Hummers, let them all
know, whenever they come to efpoufe a Caufe
of publick Concern againit the Government, they
{poilit; and when they are taken, then they ruin
one another. And this is like to be fo, for none
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will help them with a Groat, And thisis the
Misfortune of that unfortunate Man Hairis, that
he hath no Place of Mercy left him from the
King, becaufe he was attended with fuch a Rabble
as thele People are, that have made a Noife here,
and yet will pive him no Help nor Afliftance
when he wants it: And let them know, it hath
turned thys Man’s Caufle into a publick Caufe, be-
caufe here are People that do efpoufe it, and the
Government is hereby concerned much more than
by any one Aton that this Caiv could have done.
I have faid fo much more of this, that I mught
fhew you to what 2 fad Cafe this is brovsht from
what at firft it was. For if it had paffed without
fuch a Noife, as you fee how they exprefs them-
{elves, I {liould not have thought much Matter
it and though you had convided him, I thould
have thought a better Sentence might have ferved
the Turn: But they have undoae Cars if you find
him guilty 5 and {o it’s like to prove, whenever
there is popular Attendance upon publick Caufes
that concern the Government.

The prefent Cafe it flands thus: My, Carr, here
1san Information brought amainft him for publih-
ing a printed Pamphlet called, The Pacquet of Aii-
vice frem Rome, and in it there are recited fome
Particulars, which were obferved to you before,
which was not well done 3 but yet not {o info-
lently done as fome perhaps do conceit, The
Queftion1s, Whether he was the Author or Pub-
hther of this: You hear he is thought the Author,
but fay his Council, it is not plain; and that is
tree.  But it feems by their own Witneffes, to
any Man’s Underftanding, that they looked upon
him as the Author. But then, is he the Author
and Publifher of this particular Book ? I had ra-
ther Mr. Carr, with zll his Faults about him, ard
his Hummers, fhould go away with Applaufe,
and have him found not guilty, than do him wreng
i one Circumftance; for I come to try Caufes
according to the Truth of Fa&; 1 come not to
plead on one Side nor another ; not to condenn
Men that are mnocent, nor to acquit them if they
be guilty. Now it remains for you to confider
wnat Proofs you have, as to this particular Book
againft which the Information lies; and that’s the
Printer imielf, who is one of the beft Sorts of F-
vidence that can be had : For you very well know
that Kvidences of Fa® are to be expeed accord-
g to the Nature ¢y the T hing. Thatis, F orge-
ry 18 not to be proved fo plainly, as to exped
Witnicfies as you do at the fealing of 2 Bond; for
Men do not call Witnefles when they forge a
Thing, Therefore in Things of that Nature we
are fain to retreat to {fuch probable and conjectu-
ral Evidence as the Matter will bear. I .believe
fome of you have been of Juries at the Old-Bailey,
and that even for Mens Lives, you have very

often not a dire®t Proof of the Fa&, of the A&,
or of the actual killing ; but yet you have fuch I
vidence by Prefumption, as feems reafonable to
Confeience.  If there be a known Cafe in Mens
Lives, certainly that fhould govern in Offences,
and efpecially when Cffences are of a Nature that
refle€t upon the Government. As for thof: Words,
illicite, malicicfe, unlawfaly for that I muft recite
what Mr. Recorder told you of at firft, what all
the Judges of Lugland have declared under their
Hands. The Words I remember are thefe: When
by the King’s Command we were to give in our
Opinion what was to be done in Point of the Re-
gulation of the Prefs 5 we did all fubferibe, that
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to print or publith any News-Bzois or Pamphlets
of News whatfoever, is illegal 5 that it is a mani-
feit Intent to the Breach of the Peace, and they
may be proceeded againft by Law for an illegal
Thing. Suppofe now that this Thing is not {can-
dalous, what then ? If there had been no Reflec-
tion 1n this Book at all, yet it 1s illicite, and the
Author ought to be convited for it.  And that 1s
for a publick Notice to all People, and efpecially
Printers and Bookfellers, that they ought to print
no Bock or Pamphlet of News whatfoever, with-
out Authovity. So as he 1s to be convitted for it
as 2 Thing iicitz done, not having Authority. And
I will aflure you, if youfind any of thofe Papers,
I fhall be more merciful in the Confideration of
their Punmifhment, if it be moffenfive. Butif o
be they will undertake to print News foolibly,
they ought to be punithed, and fhall be punithed 1f
they do it without Authonty, though there is no-
thing refle@ing on the Government as an unlaw-
ful Thing. The Reafonis plain : So fond are Mien
in thefe Days, that when they will deny their Chil-
dren a Penny for Bread, they will lay 1t out for a
Pamphlet. And it did {o fivarm, and the Temp-
tations were f{o great, that no Man could keep
two Pence in his Pocket becaufe of the News.
But fill they never repented of laying out their
Money, till they found there was nothing againft
the Government. This is not worth a Farthing,
there is nothing of Treafon in it, we will not give
a Farthing for it. Therefore this Book, if 1t be
made by him to be publifhed, it 1s unlawful, whe-
ther it be malicious or not. Now for the Matter,
the Subject Matter. What, doth Car# think he
hath too much Wit to fool us that are to try the
Malice ? It was fillily writ, if he did not beiieve
we underficod it, and that were very intolerable
inus; I hope I fpeak plain: That is, the Sort of

jooks that he wiit; it muit be with an Intent
Peenle fnould know what Reflettions he made;
and fhall all Mankind know, and fhall they that
try the Caufe not keow it ? If you find him guil-
tv, and fay what ke 1s guilty of, we will judge
whether the Thing inports Malice or no.  Sir
Fiaicis I inwizien hath told you there are {ome
"Things that do neceflanily imply Malice 1n them,
If this Thing doth not imply it, then the Judges
will go according to Sentence; if it doth, fo that
it concerns nat you one Farthing, whether mali-
cious or not malicious, that’s plam.  Now, there
remains only one Thing, thatis, whether or no he
was the Publiher of this Book? For that we have
this Lvidence.  The Printer tells you he was the
Perfon that they looked upon to be the Author of
this Book, that he fent this Book to be printed
by his Boy. 'The Printer faith that he often dif-
courfed with him, and he took it for granted. His
Boy broughtit.  "Fo what Purpofe? To be print-
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ed. The Printer’s Servant fays, they locked up-
on him as the Author, and 1 have fetched Sheet
by Sheet, feveral Sheets from his own Fland. I
will do Right in the Cale, he 1t what it will, let
him efcape ornot.  Say his Council, Had you this
particulas Paper from him ? 1 urge this as clearly,
as their own Council have objeted.  For that you
muft confider, whether he s the Auther of the
Book. You muft take Evidence in this Cafe, as
you do all the Yearlong ; that 1s, in other Cafes,
where you know there 15 an abfolute Certainty
that the Thing is fo: For human Frailty muft be
allowed ; that 1s, youmay be miftaken. For you
do not {wear; nor are you bound to {wear here
that he was the Publifher of this Book; but if
you find hun puilty, you only {wear you belicve
it fo. God help Juries, if fobein Matter of Fat
they fhould promife otherwife.  They can’t fwear
it,  Now the Queftion 15, Whether you have
Evidence enough here to {wear he was the Pub-
Itther : For this is the main Thing, to prove thac
heisfo. Now the Printer tells you that he knew
the Man, that he had frcquent Converfe with
him about it, and that he took it for granted.
Now confider, when a Man talks at this rate, he
does not fay he was, but that he took it for grant-
ed ; he does not as much as fay he is.  They will
own he writ {everal Sheets of this Book ; then,
why not all this Book? Now we come to the
more princpal Matter of Faét, according to Rea-
fon and the probable Evidence of Things. That
this Perfon is taken to be the Author, and that it
was his Boy that brought thefe Papers to be print-
ed. If you can’t fay he fent him, you can give
no Verdit while you live, if you expect that.
The Printer fays, he had been ofien difconrfing
with him, that his Roy brought them, and that
he knew no other Perfon in the World that had
any Pretenfions to be the Author, and if he were
the Author, no doubt but he is the Publifher.
Whether or noany body elfe had an Hand in this,
we don’t know, If youare fatisfied in your Con-
{ciences that you believe he is not the Author,
you muft acquit him.  If you are fatisfied it is not
he, you muft find him not guilty, So that as you
are honeft Men and wife, as I believe you are ; if
you beheve he was not the Publifher of this Pam-
phlet, that he did not fend his Boy to have it
printed, but that he came of his own Head, you
muft ind him not guilty,

Tise Jury went from the Bar, and nigh an Hour
after veturned, and brought him in guilty.

L. C. . You have done like honeft Men.

Mr. Recorder. They have done like honeft
Men,

XCIX, The
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XCIX. The Trial of JouN GILES atthe Old-Baiy, for
affanlting and attempting to murder John Arnold Lfg; July

14 1680. 32 Car. II.

H E Seflions began on #eduefday the {eventh

Day of Fuly 1680. The ninth Day M.
Fobn Giles was brought to the Bar to be tried
and there pretended that he had Witnefles at
Moumsuth, who could teftfy very material Things
for him, and therefore pray’d the Court to put
off his Trial until the next Seflions. Then the
Court afked him his Witneffes Names, and what
they could fay ? Which he then declared to the
Court. Upon which Mr. Aiwnold being prefent,
and Profecutor (Tam pro Domino Rege, qitain pro
feipfo) the Court afled his Confent, and what he
could fay why the Tnal fhould not be put off;
that fo all the World might hereafter fay, That
Mr. Giles had all the Favour that he could reafo-
nably defire, and what the Court could in Juftice
thew him, and that no manner of Excufe might
be left him.

After which Mr. Aiumold, In a very pertinent
Speech, declared part of the Fact, and alfo of
the Proceedings before his Wounding, as it had
occurred between him and Mr. Herdert? s and of
his favourable and juft Proceedings againft Mr.
Herbert, and alloagainft Fobn Giles, afterthe Fa&
was committed ; and declared that Giles had {uf-
fictent Notice of his Tral; but notwithftand-
ing he did fubmit himfelf to the Judgment of the
Court,

Thereupon the Court advifed a Minute or two’s
Spaces it was ordered, That the Court fhould
be adjourned until the 2Vednefday following ; by
which time Mr. Giles might fend to Monmouth,
and have what Witnefles brought up he could
get.

And the Day appomted being come, and the
Court being fat, Proclamation was made accord-
ing to Cuftom. Then the following Jury were
called and fworn, wiz.

Chriftopher Plickiref,  Fames Partridge,

Hilliain Dedd, Lairence FFood,
Asithoity Nuife, y | Fobir Bradfiaw,
Fobir Buiton, > Jur Williom Withers,
Nathan Goodwin, Edward Proby,

George W aad, _Jl LRich. Broomficld,

Who, according to the Form of Law, were
clu_lrged to cnquire, Whether the Prifoner were
guilty of the following Indi&ment upon which
hephad been arraigned, and had pleaded not guil-
ty :

(Y. of Cr. The Jurors of cur Lord the King,
upon thewr Oaths, do prefent, That Febir Gileslate
of the Parith of St. Dunfleir in the Wif, in the
County of Middlefer, Gentleman, not having God
before his Eyes, but being moved and feduced by
the Inftigation of the Devil, contriving and ma-

licioufly, by a moft wicked Confpiracy, with di-
Vor. [1l,

vers other Malefattors to the Jurors unknown,
forethought and had, intending onc  7obir riold
Efg; a faithful Subjet to the King, and one of
the Juftices of the Peace for the County of Moxn-
month, inhumanly to maim, wound, kill and mur-
der, the fifteenth of April, m the thirty-fecond
Year of the Reign of our Sovereign Lord Charles
the Second, by the Grace of God, King of Exup-
land, Scotland, France, and Irzland, Defender of
the Faith, (¢, with the faid Malefa®ors unknown,
at the Parifh of St. Dunflan inthe IV¢ft aforefaid,
in the County of Middlefex aforefaid, mn and up-
on him the faid Fobn Arrold, then and there being
in the Peace of God and the King, unlawfully,
voluntarily, and of his Malice forethought, with
Force and Arms, that 1s to fay, with Swords,
Staves, and Knives, of Defign, and by lymngin
wait, did make an Affault; and him the {aid Fobu
Avnold, did then and there beat, wound, maim,
and evilly intreat, and the Throat and Face of
him the faid Fobn Arwold, did grievoufly cut with
a certain Knife ; alfo divers almoft mortal Wounds
then and there to the faid Fobu Ariold, that 1s to
fay one Wound of the Depth of feven Inches in
his Body, between his Belly and his Left Pap,
two Wounds upon his Breaft, and two Wounds
in his Left Arm, with certain Swords, did then
and there give and impofe, fo that it was defpair-
ed of the faid 7obn Arnold’s Life, and other Enor-
mities then and there unto him did bnng, to the
oreat Danger of the faid Fobu Arnold, and againft
the Peace of our fard Lord the King, his Crown
and Dignity.

Mr. Gibbs. Gentlemen, this is an Indictment
againdt Jobn Giles, the Prifoner at the Bar, for af-
faulting and intending to difpatch and murder
Jobi Arnold, one of his Majefty’s Juftices of the
Peace, on the 15th Day of Apml, This Fobir
Giles and {everal others, did intend to kill Mr, A
nold, and fet upon him in Feckanapes- Lane, threw
him down, and endeavoured to thruft their Swords
1to him, but finding no Penetration there, they
kneeled upon him, and with a Kmife endeavoured
to cut his Throat, and i one Place made a very
large Gath, and cat his Face; he endeavouring
to keep them from his Throat, they gave him
a Wound in his Side feven Inches deep, between

lus Belly and Left Pap. They gave him feveral

other Wounds. To this he has pleaded Not

Guilty. .

Mr. Holt. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am Council for
the ‘King, and the Indictment hath reprefented
to you the moft horrid, wvile, and barbarous Af-
{ault that has been almoft ever commitied, and
that any Man has heard of; and which I think
fcarce any thing in Hiftory can parallel. It was,
Gentlemen, inits Nature moft cruel, by the giv-

- K ‘ ' ng;
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Ing him fo many Wounds as are fet forth in the
Indictment; having firfk way-laid and furprized
hini neir a Place, and atfuch a Timé; as was
convenient for the Execution of their wicked De-
fipn. This Mr. Ariold having Occafion to go
through Bell-Yard between the Hours of ten and
eleven of the Clock at Night, at the End of Fack-
&napes- Lane, he was fuddenly feized by two Men,
and by them halled into the Lane, where they
gave him feveral Wounds, and ufed him in a moft
barbarous Manner. And this did not arife from
any private Difference or Animofity, that they
could conceive agamnft- Mr. Ariold ; but from 2
Caufe more general, that is, the Profecution of
the horrid Popith Plot; againft which Mr. Ai-
sold, as became him, and according to the Du-
ty of his Office, he being a Juftice of the Peace,
was a very zealous Perfon. Gentlemen, i the
firt place we will call Mr. Aruold, who thall
plainly prove that this Prifoner at the Bar was
one of the three Affaflines; and he proves it by
a miraculous Providence: For juft before they
feized upon him a Woman i Bel-Yard held
out 2 Candle, which gave Mr, Arnold, an Op-
portutity to fee the Prifoner at the Bar, and
did perfectly difcern him. Gentlemen, though
this 1s enough, confidering the Integrity and Re-
putation of the Perfon; yet we fhall fortfy his
Evidence by ftrong and undeniable Circumftan-
ces, Circumftances that do particularly relate to
this Matter. In the firft Place, Gentlemen, the
very Day that this Fa& was done, this Perfon,
though he had a good Sword by his Side, yet he
did enquire where he might buy a more conveni-
ent Sword, and did defire to know where he
might have a Rapier, which was thonght more
convenient for this Defign ; and the very next
Day after this Fact, though Mr. Arield’s having
Armour ‘on was a Secret which no Perfons but
Mr, Walcup a Juftice of the Peace, and Mr. Ar-
nold himfelf knew ; yet this fame Grles could fay,
Arnold had Armouron s and if Aruo/d had not had
Armour on, his Bufinefs had been done. Aud
after this Fa& was committed, this Giles goes in-
to Ghucefterfbive, and being purfued by a guilty
Confaence, he durft not ftay there, for he was
afraid, as he fad himfelf, of beme apprehended
for aflathnating Mr. Zrmold.  After this, Gentle-
men, he came to one Dargy a Cutler in Aop-
muthfbive, with his Sword which was broken,
and defired him to mend his Sword. How o,
{ays he, brew came this Sword to be bioken 2 Haye
~oit been fighting <with the Devil? No, fays he, T
bave been fightinz with damid Arnold.  And at
the very fame time when thefe Villains thought
they had effected their bloody Purpofe, and gave
Mr. Arnold his Difpatch, one of them faid to
hin, Now, Fillain, if then baff any Life iu thee,
pray for the Senl of Captain Evans 5 which Evans
was a Prieft executed 1n #ales upon Mr, Arueld’s
Profecution, at whofe FExecution this Gils was
prefent, and dipp’d his Handkerchief in his Bleod.
Now, Gentlemen, confidering all this, which we
will make plain to you by Mr. rmold, and all
thefe Circumftances; Ifuppofe you will have fuf-
ficient Ividence to find him guilty.

Mr. Thoinpfon. My Lord, and you Gentlemen
of the Jury, the Indictment has been opened, and
the Matter of it, that bafe Attempt made upon
Mr. Arnold, that was a Juftice of the Peace in
Monmmouthfbire, that is fhewed in the Indi¢tment.
But I muft crave your Lordfhip’s Leave, that I

may more particularly open this Cafe. Thisis a
Cafe, Gentlemen, of very great Confequence, and
though it more immediately concerns Mr. Aruold,
yet it highly concerns every Man prefent; you of
the Jury, and I3 nay, every other Freeman of
England, which ought to be proteted by the
Laws, muft needs be concerned at fo great a
Violation of them, and caunot but fetour Faces
aganft {fuch villamous and barbarous Attemptsas
thefe, wheretn there did not want the Good-will
of the Adtors to make it a moft barbarous and
bloody Murder. In the Courfe of our Evidence,
and the Method we will take to proceed in, it
will be neceffary to do thefe three Things. Firft
of all, we fhall acquaint you with that which we
apprehend to be the Reafon and Occafion of this
horrid Fa®&., Next we fhall tell you what that
Fa®t was. And i the laft place, enquire how far
this Defendant 1s guilty thereof.

For the Iirft; give me leave to acquaint you
with what we apprehend to be the true Reafon
of this Affaffination. ”T's notorious to moft Men,
but efpecially to the County of Monmouth, where
Mr, Arnold wasa Juftice of Peace; how aive and
diligent, how faithful and vigorous a Man he has
been in the Difcharge of his Duty to his King
and Country, in putting the Laws in Fxecution
againft the Papifts, and endcavouring to fupprefs
Popery: This was the Ground of their Malice,
as you will find by the Evidence, and by the fe-
veral Threats that he had before this A& was
done. But more particularly there was this Oc-
cafion ; there was anc whom they calfd Captain
Lvans, but indeed was Father Evans a Popith
Prieft 5 this Man in Mommouth was taken by Mr.
Arnold, and was profecuted according to Law and
convicted. I mention this Circumftance, becaufe
our Evidence will referto it, and that you will
fee out of the Actors own Mouths, if we may be-
lieve the A&ors in thisbloody Tragedy when they
did the Fact: This Profecution of Father, Cap-
tam Evans, was no fimall QOceafion of their Vil-
lamy which they acted upon Mr. Aiwold. Thele
were the Grounds of their Malice, Gentlemen,
and what happened to Mr. Arusld was the Effe®.
And I do the rather mention this Particular, that
you may know what Sort of People thefe were
that pracifed this Villainy upon Mr. Ariold 5 for
it will be a neceflary Circumftance in our Proof
againft this Prifoner at the Bar, to fhew that he is
one of that bloody Tiibe.

Gentlemen, the next Thing is to fhew what
this Fat was, and how it happened.  Mr. Aol
had a Controverfy with one Mr. Herdert, cnother
Juftice of the Peace in Mniouthfbire 5 that Caufe .
between them was to be heard before the Kine
and Council the next Day after this Fa& was
cnn}mitted: [ mention Mr. Herders, but | hope
he is more 2 Gentleman than to be concerned in
foch a Villainy. We will not at this time give
any Iividence that relates to him : For truly 1
believe this could only be the Contrivance of a
Jefuit, and the Pradice of abigotted Papift, But
thus it happen’d: Mlr, A0 going 'to attend his
Council upon this Occafion, fo prepare himfelf
for this Hearing that was to be before the King
and Council 5 s Bell-dard there he is fe upo,
there he is ‘wounded, there he is murder’d, as
thefe Aflaflines thought, And this Mr. Lusld

will prove to you when he comes to aive "his Evi-
dence. This to the Fa&.

Gentlemen,
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Gentlemen, the next 1S now to confider how

far this Man at the Baris guilty of its and for
that, Gentlemen, we will give you Evidence of

feveral Sorts:

1. The pofitive Proof of Mr. Arnold himfelf,
who, as Mr, Holt has obferv’d before, almoft by
. Miracle, difcoverd the Defendant’s Face; fora
Light accidentally coming out of one of the
neighbouring Houfes, and the Defendant look-
ing at Mr. Aritld to {ee whether he was the Man
they wanted, immediately upon that he was uf-
(wited and cartied into Jackanapes-Lane, “and
wvas wounded int feveral Places. This, Gentlemen,
is plain, and will be pofitively prov’d ; and then
when this Man was taken upon Sufpicion, and
was carried before a Juftide of Peace, and Mr. Ar-
old \gas fent for, though Mr. Arweld had no pri-
vate Intimation, no kind of Knowledge before-
hand of Giles's being taken ; and there were feve-
ral Men ftood befide this Man, yet tl}ough he
Lad never feen him before, but at the time when
the F2& was done, Mr. Ariold immediately char-
sed him with the Fa&t, and as foon as he heard
him fpeak he knew his Voice. ‘Thiswas {o plain
upon G, that he had not the Power, tlmggh
he might have had the Confidence, at that time
to deny it: But inftead of a Demal faid, The Mat-
ter could but amount to an Affault and Battery.
Tn the next Place we have Evidence from the De-
fondant’s own Mouth, which in a Cafe of this
Nature ought to weigh as much as can be,
and T think is as much as the Nature of the
thing is capable of. This Man the very next
Day after Mr, Arnold had been_thus affaulted,
difcourfing with one Philips by Name, and rela-
ting the Bufines which happened to Mr. Ar-
sold, and before he could know he had Armour
on, as we will prove from the Circumitance
of the Time (what does Giles fay ?) OSays he,
Dami bim, vot bim, Mr. Arnold, faid he, bed Ar-
worr ¢, And this, Gentlemen, could not be
known by him at that time, if he had not been
a Party in this bafe Attempt. And there isa
Circumftance that goes yet beyond this, which
I would have you obferve, that when Mr, Ar.
-0ld was affaflinated, when they made their At-
tempt, in the very A& were thefe Words ufed,
Deinn bim, w0t bisn, he has Armour on. Thele
very Words were {poken then, and upon that
they fell to cut his Throat. We have this Cir-
cumftance more ; he had broken his Sword, and
went to a Cutler, one Dar¢y by Name; this
Man was a Papift, and fays he, Ware baft thou
been Giles, fighting with the Devil? No, it was
with domn’d Armold.  This we will prove to you:
Thef are Evidences that are pofitive,

Some other Witnefles we have, that will be
very material to prove to you what fort of Man
the Defendant 1s: That he has declared there
isno Plot; that thofe that believe it are Rogues ;
and if ever any of the Lords in the Toweir thould
{uffer, this Nation fhould feel a blocdier War
- than cverithad done; by which you may fee his
bloody Nature. Gentlemen, befides this we fhall
prove (according to their Cuftom of Shamming)
that he has from time to time pretended as if
Mr. Ariold had done this Bufinefs himfelf, or
fome of his Friends, to revive the Plot. A ve-
ry fine Contrivance indeed! for a Perfon to fiab
himfelf, and cat his own Throat, to revive the
Plot. Thefe Things we will make out clearly

to you: And I muit tell you 1t 1s a notorious
Vor. I1I,

Crime, fucha Fa as'has no Precedént: There’s
no Remembrance in Hiftory, that I know of,
of fuch barbarous Attempts, except in .the Cale
of Sir Edmundbtry Godfrey, who was moft bar-
baroufly murdered by this fort of Men. And
this Cafe, - Gentlemen, differs from that only in
this, that there they accomplifh’d théir Villainy
upon um: But the Providence of God faved
Mr Arnold’s Life, and I hope to as good Pur-
pofe: For as Providence ordered that to con-
firm the Truth of the Popith Plot; fo this Af-
faffination of Mr. Aruold muft convince all Man-
kind (not concern’d in the Plot it felf) that this
damn’d Popith Plot fhill continues, and that ’tis
high time for all honeft Men, as much asin them
lics, to endeavour to fupprefsit. You, Gentle-
men, will do your Duty in finding this Man guil-
ty (if the Evidenceé we give fatisfies your Confci-
ences that he 1s fo, elfe God forbid) and then I
doubt not but the Court will do their Duty, in
putting fuch an exemplary Panifiment upon this
Villain, that may deter thé like barbarous and
bloody Attempts for the futtre.

Mr. Arnold fuworn.

Mr. Thompfon. Pray, Mr. Arnold, give an Ac-
count of this Bufinefs.

Mr. drnoid, My Lord, I was ordered by the
King and Council to attend upon them the next
Day after this Villdthy befe] nie. I was upon the
15th Day of Aprilii my Chamber in the After-
noon, and my Lord Chaudsis, and feveral other
Perfons, came to my Chamber, and one Fvans,
one of the Meflengers bélonging to the Council,
came to give me Notice that my Hearing (which
I was inforn’d was to be at Four in the After-
noon) was ordered to be at Ten in the Morning,
which was the Reafon I fent my Servants out to
give Notice of this Alteration to my Witnefles
and Coun¢il. And though I had refolv’d not to
ftir out that Night, I went out with the Com-
pany to the Dzvil-Zavern, where we were, and
ftaid tell about Ten, or paft; and juft as we were
breaking up, I recollected that I had fome Bufi-
nefs with Mr, Philips, who 15 a Counfelior at
Law, and lives near the End of Bell-2ard 1
defired the Company to ftay, and I would come
to them in a Moment. I went to the Room
where feveral Servants were, and called to fome
of them to go withme ; For feveral of my Friends
and Neighbours bemng m Town, I very often
took thewr Servants with me, when mine were
bufy or out of the way. As I went crofs Flees-
fireet, 1 did fee two Men in Campaign-Cloaks
followme, and I thought them to be Servants
belonging to fome of my Company, who had fol-
lowed me on my calling; and as I came 1nto
B:ll-Yerd, one of them went fafter than I went,
and got before me, and turned and looked ear-
neftly in my Face, and I went by him, whena
Woman ftanding in a Door about the middle of
Bell-Yard with a Candle n her Hand, 1 looked m
his Face, and that Perfon was the Prifoner at the
Bar; and when his Companion or Compantons
came up to him, I heard them laugh aloud ;5 I
took no Notice, but went on, and went as far as
to that Houle.

“SitGeorge M. Recorder *, You knew him be~
Feffrics. fore, Mr, Arnold? |

Mr. Arpold, 1 did not know him fo wel] before ..
as to know his Face. At the Kennel at the End
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of Fackanapes-Lane, I looking down to find the
-Kennel, a Cloak was thrown over my Head,
then I found very rough Hands upon my Shoul-
ders, and they ran me mto Fackaiapes- Lane, juft
crofs the Lane againft the oppofite Wall, and
they run my Head fo hard I think they brokeit;
I drew my Sword before, but before I could ufe
it I was firuck, and immediately upon that one of
them ftruck me 3 then I apprehended what it was,
but could not turn to make any Defence. I re-
ceived a fecond Blow and fell, and the firfs thing
1 was fenfible of was a very fharp quick Thruft
my Side, and the Point at that Thruit ran into
my Belly ; then I recovering began to make what
Defence I could. With a broad Sword I was
run through my Arm, and with a fmall Weapon
I was run through in another Place of my Arm.
1 had {everal other Wounds; one of them fet his
Foot hard upon my Breaft, and kept me down,
and he was, as 1 concetve, run mto the Leg by
one of his Companions; for I heard him fay,
Daiine, thow baft [poiled my Leg. 'They laughed
all the while, and were exceeding merry. I had
then on a Pair of Bodice of Whalebone, notwith-
ftanding which I had four or five Wounds in my
Body through them, for they were not Proof,
but they imagin’d they were, finding their Swords
double {ometimes, and then faid one of them,
Dainine, be bas Aoy ony cus bis Thieat,  Im-
mediately one kneeled down, and gave me {everal
Cuts 11 the lower Part of the Face, and I did
what I could to defend my {elf, but they have
given me fome 1ndelible Marks, Characters that
will never be obliterated while I live, and I am
afraid I fhall never be my felf again, by Reafon of
the Bruifes in my Head and Breaft. By a Candle
ina Window, I concelve in Sir Thoimas Baldwii’s
Houlfe, and fome Womenin his Yard, gave them
the firft Difturbance, and a Boy coming by with
a Link the fame time, I both faw the Face of the
Prifoner at the Bar again, and rememberd [ faw
him in the Lane juft before. They then pulled
the Cloak from off me, and I feeing the Light,
and being eafed of the Weight, I firained all my
Strength and cried out, and then fome Company
came tn, who are here to prove it ; but feeing me
all Blood and Dirt, they ftood gazing on me a
time, but at Iaft took me up and carried me
mto the Sugar-Loef, and from thence I was car-
tied to my Lodging, where all the Company I
left came to me, and a Surgeon was fent for,
who 15 alfo here to prove his Knowledge of
the Condition he found me in. And when they
went away, they did not fleal away as other
Malefadtors ufed to do, but clapt their Swords
clofc to their Bodies, and went away laughing
aloud ; but as they were going, one of them
fud thefe Words, Nowo you Dog pray for, or prray
agati for tee Seil of . Captein Evans, Captam
Levens was a Jeluit, and was cexecuted at Caor-
diffe for bemg a Prictt; and I have been jn-
formed by feveral Perfons of good Quality, that
when the Under-Sheriff came to give him No-
tice that he had a Warrant for his {peedy Exe-
ecution, the faid Evass being in a Game at
Tennis, fud, God daime, 1 <oifl pley cut -y Set
i,

M. Recorder. Mr. drashd, 1vould know one
thing : Will you undertake to fivear pofitively
that this Perfon was onc of the Petfons who
ftept before you? Wi you take i upon your
- 2
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Qath, That that Perfon, the Prifoner at the Bar,
went before you ¢

Mr. Arnofd, I will take it upon my Oath, as
far as a Man can do, for one Man, ’tis pofible,
may be ltke another both by his Voice and his
Face; I can fwear I believe he is the Man.

Mv. Thempfon, You are fatisfied upon the firfk
fight that you had of him in the Country, that he
was the Man,

Mr. drnold. Yes, Siry and he can tell you that
by a very good Token, for I had like to have run
him thro’,

Mr., Recsrder. We muft not exped that there
can be exact and pofitive Proof; for Men that
commit Offences of this impudent Nature, don’t
ufually call Witnefles to be prefent to fee them
done 5 therefore we would come as near as we can
to Cireumftances, whereby a Fa& of fuch a Na-
tureis fo be proved.  Mr. Araold, do you believe
that the Priloner at the Bar was one of the Per-
fons that went before you in Be/l-Yard ?

Mr. Ariold, Upon my Confcience I do believe
he was the Man.

WMr. Recorder. What o’Clock was it?

Mr. druold. About cleven o° Clock, or between
ten and eleven.

Mr. Recorder. When the Link came there, was
there three? And do you believe by the Light
you had by the Link, that that was one of the
Perlons thar were there?

Mr. Ariold, 1 {aw his Face and Habit, and be-
lieve he was.

Mr. Recorder, What Fabit had he on ?

M. Arield, He had a grey Cloak, a Campaign
Cloak, and a Coat, Ithinklin’d with Red. ~ It is
impoflible to give an Account of every Particular
under thofe Circnmftances I was in.

Mr. Recordsr. Tt is not to be expe@ed that a
Man under your Circumftances fhould be extra-
ordmary precife in Circumftances; therefore it is
I afked you, that according to the beft of your
Apprehenfion, you might acquaint the Court with
thofe Circumftances that may be remembred by
the Jury, that they may fee there be no Injury
done to the Prifoner at the Bar, but that Right
be done on both Sides, and that in every Cir-
cunitance,

Mr. Hslt, Now, Sir, we will call Mr. Philips,
with whom he had this Difcomrfe the next

Day.
Mr, Recordiy, VYill the Prifoner afk him any
Queftions ?

Lrifouer. Truly Mr. Arild knew me in Mos-
mcitbfbive, aud knew me as well asany Man in
the City.

Mr. Recorder. Did you not very well know
him?

Mr. Arisld. Tt is very poflible I might fee him,
and ofter at Aizes and Seflions, but not to lnow
him 5 nor did ever know whether his Name were
Gilesy or what 1t was. Your Lordfhip fees ma-
ny Perfons here, and often, and it’s poflible do

not know them; he lives T think a dozen Miles
from me,

Prif. That's a Wonder ; if it
my Wife 1s a near Relation
ther and Mother,
your Chamber,

Vir. Arnold,
know it,

pleafe you, Sir,
to you, both by Fa-
and 1 have fpoken with you in

"Tis poflible fhe may, but I do not

Stephen
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Stephen Philips.

Mr. Holr. Pray, Mr. Philips, gve an Account
of what Difcourfe you had with Giles the Day af-
ter the Bufinefs was done.

Mr. Philips. We went to the Tavern, and
dranke two or three Bottles of Wine, and we had
fome Difcourfe concerning Mr. Arnold ; 1t was a-
bout Eight or Nine a Clock in the Eveming the
- next Day, fome Difcourfe happened concerning
Lis miferable Condition, and how he was hurt,

and of that Nature, _

Mr. Recorder. How many was there i Com-
pany :

Mr. Piilips. One or two more.

Mr. Recoider, What Houfe? '

M. Philips. At the Crown Tavernin Newfliect
in Covent-Garden s and among the reft, Mr. Gikes
was talking of it, and faid he, God damn biw, God
ot bim, he bad Arineer ony the Word was, God
dainn bim, or, God rot binsy be bad Ariitoti ony they
ay,
f}Mr. Holt. What time of Night was that?

Mr. Philips. As near as I can remember, it
was about eight or nine the next Day in the
ivening. )

Mr, Thempfon. The very Words that Mr. Ar-
s0ld fwears when they went to cut his Throat.

Prif. My Lord, if you pleafe, there was Mr.
Philips and another ; and I{pake nothmg but what
I heard as News, that they had killed him if he
had not had Armour on.

Mr. Recorder. For that Matter, Mr. Giks, you
fhall have your Time, and you may call up other
Witnefles, but the Gentleman pofitively fivears
you faid thefe Words; and if {o, Ill a_ﬂ'ure you it
does not look as if you were u-kin to him, or your
Wife either.

Ialter TV athins.

Mr. Helt, Mr, Watkins, What did you hear
that Giles fhould fay in Gloucefter/bire about this
Bufinefs?

Mr. Thompfon. What faid he about this Bufinefs
of Mr. Ariold 2

Mr. Watkins. My Lord, all Ican fay 1s this:
I being at the ftating fome Accounts between Mr,
Fobi Giles and Mr, Richmond, 1 afked Mr. Giles
for fome Horfechair to make a Fithing-line: Mr.
Giles veplied, Tvaf be bad left wiry good Bair for
me ab a Farvie’s i Gloucefter s for be and M.

Herbert Jones sirade fuch Hafte throngh the Towon of

Gloucclter, that they did not call for the Horfebarr,
I aflked Mr. Giles what was the occafion of his
Fafle? Said he, For fear e fhould be fop’d i ony
Seninevy as fufpelied to be conccried i Mr, Arnold’s
Bufrizefs,

Mv. Recorder, What time was that ?

Me. Watkins, About the 5th of May.

Geoige Richmoud.
Mr, Ilt, My, Rickmssl,

concerntg this T hing 2

Mr. Richirend, 1defired Mr. Giles to meet me,
that we might zven our Accounts; and upon the
sth of May aft he met me, and I defired Mr.
I¥atiing to he prefent as a Witnels.

Mr., Recorder, Where was it ?

| Mr. Richinond., At Ufe.  And as we were ma-

king up the Account, faid Mr, Watkins to Mr.

what can you fay
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Giles, Where is the Lor fehair you promifed me to make
Fifning-lines? Giles veplied, He lift very good Horfe-
bair at a Farrier’s in Gloucefter: And he atked
him, Wby be left it? He fad, e wmade Haffe for
fear of being taken and ffopp’d for Mr. Arnold’s Bu-

Jinefs. I cannot fay whether he called him Efg;

Ainold, or Mr. Ariold, or what; he feldom ufed
to give him fo good Words.

Foalter Powved,

Mr. Holt. What do you know concerning Giles
his being at the Cutler’s ?

Mr. Powel. If it pleafe you, Sir, I was at the
Cutler’s.

Mir, Recorder. Name the Time when, and the
Place where.

Powel, The 5th of May, at a Place called Uke
w Meniouthfhive, Mr, Giles and T we came there;
and Mr. Giles afked Peter Dearey, Whether he
would mend him that Sword or no? But Mr.
Daicy had {fome Bufinefs that he conld not get
Time to mend it that Morning, but would do it
in the Afternoon. Says Dascy, Where bave you
beeir, you have becir hot atit? What bave you beci
Jighting with the Devil? No, fad he, with dami'd
Arold. _

Mr. Record:v. What did you fay when the Cut-
ler afked him, Whether he hal been fighting
with the Devil? And he faid again, No, not
with the Devil, but with damin’d Aiueld.

Powel, Peter Darey fud he muft not {peak fuch
Words ; and Giles’s Wife pluck’d him by the Coat,
and bid him hold his Tongue,

, Mt Darnal, Who was by ?

Powel, There was one Peter Darey,

Mr. Darnal, Was one Fobin Foues there ?

Pogpel, T think there was another indeed by,
the Apprentice, '

Mr, Recorder, There was the Apprentice, but
he does not know his Name, and Darcy, and

Giles and his Wife,
Hilliain Richmond.

Mr. Holt. What did you hear Giks fay about
the Rapier ?

/. Richmoinrd. He afked me in the Afternoon
before Mr. Ainold was hurt, where he might buy
a very good Rapier? I told him I could not tell:
He then had a good Back-Sword in the Houle,

Mr. Gibbs. Tell the Court what Acquaintance
Giles had with IFather Lewis the Jefuit, fince ex-
ecuted.

1. Rickinond. Ny Lord, he told me he would
go to the Executioner, and perfuade him not to
execute Mr. Lewis, but I had the Executioner
leck’d up, and I would not fuffer him; but I did
fee him very attive at the Execution, dipping
Cloths mn Lezwwis’s Blood.

M. Thompfzn. What do you fay as to his com-
ing to his Lodging ?

. Rickmsnd, We went to feveral Places that
Day, and at eight or nine, or between cight and
nine, we came to the King’s- Arwis in St. Aartins-
Lanz, and T left him ac the Kitchen Fire, and
went up into the Chamber, and drank a confide-
rable Quantity of Drmk; and as near as I can
guefs, 1t was between twelve and one o° Clock be-
fore he came to his Bed; for after I was going to
Bed, about one of the Clock I heard ¥l Giles

come up the Stairs, and bid me good Night; he
called
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called at my Door juft as I was pulling off my
Breeches to go into Bed.
" Mr. Recorder. What time was this?

W. Richinond. As near as I can guefs 1t was be-
tween twelve and one, or very near one,

Mr, Recorder. At what Houfe was 1t ¢

W. Richinond. The King’s-drms m St Aartins-
Laxe. ~

Mr. Recorder. What did you fay when the Maid
was making the Bed ?

JV. Richinond, 1afked her who it wasfor? And
the faid, for a Man that was not willing to lic with
any body.

M. Recorder. What time did you come to the
Houfe ?

W, Rickmond. About Nine.

Mr. Recorder. Did you flay in that Houfe till
that Time?

W. Richinond. 1 lay in the Houfe, Str.

M. Recorder. You were not out of the Houlfe
the while?

W. Richnond. No, Sir, I was not out of 1t.

Mr. Recorder. And you are fure that you did
not fee him again till he came to your Door going
to Bed?

W. Richmond. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Recorder. What Time was that ?

V. Richmend. Nigh one.

Mr. Thompfon. You fee the Contradiction be-
tween this, and what this Fellow fays upon his
Examination ; where he fays he was a-bed at nine
o’ Clock.

Mr. Recorder. Where did you go at ¢hat time ?

1W. Richinond, We went to Loug-Lane, to one
Philpor’s, and fhe told us her Hufband was gone
¢o Exercife at the next Church; I do not know
the Church’s Name, and there we went and look-
ed upon the Soldiets, but did not fee him 3 we
came back to his Floufe again, and the Gentle-
woman gave usa Tankard of Beer or Ale. And
after that we went back, and we had a mind to
make Sport with a Country- Fellow we had with
us, and went into #hciffone’s- Park, from thence
we went to the Helmet in Drury-Lane,

Mr. Recorder. You went to #betffone’s-Park,
and what did you {pend there?

W. Richmond. Six-pence, and he pad it.

Mr. Recsrder. Whither did you go from thence?

IV, Richmend. Into Drury-Lane.

Mr. Recerd:v. How long did you ftay in Diary-
Lane?

7V, Richinond. It was not long, Sir, about an
Hour.

Mr, Recorder. Where after that?

V. Richmond, From thence to the Peacock, and
ftaid till eight or nine.

Mr, Recorder, Who did you meet withal be-
tween your going from the Helmet i Drary-Lon:
to the Peacock?

IV, Ricimisad, We met with one Powel, and an-
other, and one Llrzabeth Edwards.

Mr. Recorder, What did you drink there?

; IV. Richinond, We did drink both Ale and Bran-
YMr. Recorder, Well fud: How long did you
ftay there?

#. Richinond, We ftaid there a pretty while,
an Hour or more, or two Hours.

M. Recorder, What time of Night was it that
yott went from thence ?

W. Richimond, Abour cight or nine.

Mr. Recorder, And then you went to your
Lodgmgs?

3. Richiwoid. Yes.

Mr. Recorder, Did you drink at the Arisg's-
Arms ¢

3, Richiimnd, No, we drank not all together,

Mr. Record:r. And there you ftaid till twelve
or one 0 Clock?

/. Richinond, Yes.

Mr, Recorder, But can you remember, as near.
as you can gucfs, what time was 1t you faw this
Maid making of the Bed?

7. Richimond. 1 cannot fay pofitively, but I
judge it was about twelve o’ Clock.

Mr. Thempfor. As to that Circumflance of his
coming home at twelve at Night, defire Mr. Ar-
siold to give an Account of luis Examination, what
rime of Night he came to his Lodging,

Mr, Holz. Do you believe that is Fobn Giles’s
Hand ?

Mr. Recorder. That 1s a Copy.

Mr. Recorder. He did confefs before a Juftice of
the Peace, that he was at his Lodging at ten o
Clock : This I heard him fay, and [ believe he
wor’t deny it; and I heard him own this Exa-
mination, my Man will prove it.

Giles. Deny it? Yes I will deny it, there was
no fuch word faid : I did fay, Mr. druold, T went
to Bed then.

Mr, 4t Gen, The Jury muft take
Notice of this; that upon his Exa-
mination he fays, he came home by
nine 3 which 1s before the Thing was done: But
by Proof he did not come in il Twelve, which
was after the Thing was done.

M. Holt, We will give you now, Gentlemen,
an Account of this Man’s Principles. |

Mr. Recorder. This is the Bufinels: Richmond
fays, they came together to their Lodging before
Night, but he left him at the Kitchen Fire, and
went into another Room to drink with fome
Company ; and this Mr, Richmond fays, his Bed
was not made till twelve o Clock, and that he
himfclf went to Bed about one of the Clock, and
that he heard the Prifoner at the Bar, while he
was pullng off his Breeches, call to him, and
theretore he took Notice of that as a Circum-
ftance, that he does particularly remember he did
not go to Bed till that Time; and he fays he did
not ftir from that Place after nine o’ Clock.

Mr. Tbempfon. There is a Contradiction in that.

Mr. Recorder, There is no Contradiction ; The
other Witnefs fays, that he came along with him
at Nine o> Clock.

Mr. Thompfon. 1 will tell you where this is a

Contradittion,

~Mr. 4t Gen, He fays he came to the Houfe at
nine o’ Clock, but he came not to Bed till after
one.

Mr. Recorder. The Evidence does not go {6 far »
Rictinond fays they came to the King’s- Arms, and
feft hizn in the Kitchen at nine o* Clock, and he
went into his Chamber and ftaid vp till one, and
all that time he did not come to Bed.

Mr. Thoinpfois. So far it lies upon him to give

an Account where he was between nine and
twelve.

Sir Crefwei
Levinz.,

Bridges.

Mr. Hslt. Heark you, Sir, have you had an
Dilcourle with Gifes concerning thye Plot, ant}:‘lr
concerning the Lords in the Tower? And what
did he fay to you? .

2 Mr. Bridges, 1
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- Mr; Bridges. 1 had {ome I_)ifcour{'erwith him
concerning the Papifts, he faid that it was the
beft Religion, and that thole that were not of that
Religion fhould be damn’d: I alledg’d againit
him, and told him the contrary: I thought not.
Can it be fuch a Religion, faid I, that will a&
fuch Things againft the King and the Govern-
ment? Says he, If any fays there 1s fuch a Plot
aoaindt the King or the Government, heisa Rogue
and a Thicf.

Mr. [o/t. What did he fay of the Lords in the
Tower ¢

Bridges. Nothing mote.

Gites. How long ago was this?

Mr. Recorder, When was this ?

Bridwes. This was, my Lord, about a Twelve-
manth ago. .

Mr. Thompfon. Did he fpeak any thing to you
further concerning the Plot?

Bridges. Not further.

Giles. My ] o1d, 1 befeech you I may fpeak to
this Man, Do you hear, Sir, Were not thefe
the Words that [ fuid when you charged me to
be a Papift, that Iknew of no Popifh Plot, and
they that faid I was a Papift, or knew any thing
of the Plot, were Rogues or Whores, or worfe.

Bridzes. You faid thus, that the Papifts were
the beft Religion, and that thofe that were not of
that Religion were damn’d.

Giles. Have not vou been a Papift, Su?

Biteges. 1am not now. .

Giles. Wil vou fay that I ama Papift?

Byidges. 1fay youdefended it fo much I thought
you were. Said I, T wonder, it being fuch a good
Religion, that they would offer to act {uch a thing
againit the King and Government. Said he, He
that fays this Plot is acted by the Papiits, 15 a
Rogue and a Thief.

Giles. Tow long ago 1s this?

Bridges, A Twelve-month ago ; you remember
it well enough; you remember when you fent
for me to the Grorge.

Walter Moor.
Mr. s/t What Difcourfe have you had with

him concerning the Plot ?

Mr. Thoinpfon. What has he faid about it ?

Msor. Hle fard, if the Lords in the Tower were
executed, there would be a greater War than cver
was i Lagland, and {wore that if thefe Lords
were put to Death, it would coft more Blood than
cver was fpilt. And Iaftked him agan; Why
they fhould not be put to Death, if they fhould
deferve it? For if a poor Man had done fuch a
IFault, he would be hanged out of the way pre-
fently. He faid apain, they did not deferve it, for
there was no Plot at all.

Giles. Pray, Sir, Who was with you when you
fay I faid thefe Words?

Mooy, 1 was at George Teylor’s Houle.

Giles, Did not you fay that George Taylor dif-
courfed this with you ?

Mr. Thompfon. Is this the Man that fpake it
upon your Qath ? |

floor. Yes, this was the Man,

Giles. What did Tayler fay to you? Do you
think, my Lord, I would fay fuch a thing to {uch
2 Man as this ig ? ‘

Mr. Reccrder. Do you hear, Mr. Giles, for that
Matter is not the Queftion, the Man has fiorn
it, except the Jury know of their own Know-

1
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ledge that the Man is perjured, he is not fo as to

me.
Moor, Tt is the firft time that T ever took an

Oath.
Mr., Reynold,

Mr. Holt, Mr. Reynold, What have you heard
Giles fay concerning Mr. Ariold ¢

Reynold. Sir, I was in Company with Fobu Giles
and another, and we had Difeourfe concetning
one Ariold, and Fobn Giles faid

Mr. Recorder, What ‘was that ?

Reynold, 1 being in Company with him, we fell
in Difcourfe about Juftice Aruold, how he was
wounded.

Mr. Recorder. Where was it?

Reynold, In Monmowutbhfbire, at Langoone, the fe-
cond Day of May: Fobn Giles anfwered us, that
he could not fee but he wounded him{elf.

Mr. Recorder. What Day did you fay ?

Reynold, The fecond Day of May.

Mr. Recorder. He did difcourfe the sth Day of
May at Ufke, I would fain know when he came
through Gloucefter.

ngIr. Thompfon. What did he fay about My, Ar-
nold ¢ .

Reyiold. He thought that he wounded himfelf,
Says his Wife, How could he wound himfelf in
his Arms? Said he, It was himfelf or fome of his
Friends.

Mr. Recorder. Or fome of his Relations,

Reyiold, Some of his Friends.

Mr., Fobés.

Mv. Thompfon. Mr. Hobbs, Pray tell how you
found Mr. Arusld when he was wounded. '

M. Hobbs, 1 found Mr., Aruold bleeding.

Mr. Thompfon. Tell what Wounds there were.

Mr. Hobbs. Two in his Arm, two others upon
the Face, another upon the Throat, which bled
very much; another two upon the Breaft, and
one in the Belly. |

Mr. Thompfon. What Depth might that be ?

Mr. Hobbs. Two Inches and an half long.

Mr. Thompfon. Where elfe?

Mr. Hebbs. There was another upon his Breaft.

Mr. Thompfon. What Depth ?

Mr., Hobbs. ‘They were not very deep, but there
was one upon the Belly fix Inches and an half;
there were two through his Arm, and a Wound
and feveral Bruifes in hus Head.

M. Thompfon. This 1s likely to be a fine Con-
trivance, that he fhould do it himfelf, as likely as
that Sir Edmundbury Godfrey put his own Sword
through his Body after his Neck was broke. A
great Shout given.

Lord Maysr. Do you believe a Man could wound
himfelf {o ?

Mr. Hobbs. No, Str.

Mr. Recorder. 1 believe a Mian could do it, but
I believe a Man would not do it him{elf.

Fifteen or Sixteen Witnefles more for the King,
that were attending in the Court were not exa-
min’d, the Court being mn fome hafte, and the
King’s Council not prefling to have them exa-
min’d, there being fo full Evidence: Nor was
there one word replied to the Prifoner’s Witnef-
fes, they being all. esther- frivolous or contradic-
tory.

I{’Ir. Darnal. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and

you Gentlemen of the ‘Jury, Iam of Council for

Giles,
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Gils, the Prifoner at the Bar, and I muft needs
fay there has been a ftrong Evidence given aganft
him, and if I were fure he was concern’d in this
barbarous Attempt upon M. Arusld, 1 would not
open my Mouth inthis Caufe: Butif my Brief be
true, I make no queftion but to fatisfy your Lord-
fhip and the Jury, nay and Mr. Ariold himfelf,
that he had no hand i this bloody Action,

And firft, my Lord, in Anfwer to the Evi-
dence that hath been given, there have been
{worn among others, Mr. Richinond, Mr. Philips,
and one Powel, Yuft, asto Philips’s Evidence,
or what pafled m Difcourfe at the Crown Tavern
in Covent-Gardeir , we have a Witnefs here who
was prefent at the fame Time, that willgive you
an Account of the whole Difcourfe, and that there
were no fuch Words faid by Gries in relation to
Mr. Ariold, as dain bim, he bad Arinour oit 5 and
as to the Lwvidence given by 7Patkins, of what
pafs’d ar Ufe, about Mr. Herdert Foires’s and the
Prifoner’s making fuch Speed through Glicaft:r,
we have Witneffes here, my Lord, that will fa-
tisfy your Lordfhip and the Jury, that when they
came to Glonceflerr, though it was at the time of
the General Quarter Seflions, yet they ftaid there
four or five Hours, at a Publick-Houfe, without
the leaft Sign of their Apprehenfion of any Pur-
fuit ; which fhews the Improbability of any fuch
Difcourfe at Ufte: And my Lord, as to the Evi-
dence of Pewel of what was faid in Dargy’s the
Cuatler’s Shop at Ufz; we have, my Lord, a
Witnefs here that was prefent at that time, who
will give your Lordthip and the Jury an Account,
that the Words {uid then by the Prifoner, did
much differ from what Mr, Pswel fwears; befides
the Improbability that any Man fhould be fo weak
to publifh himfelf gwlty of fuch a Crime as this
in this manner ; after his Majefty’s Proclamation
out, with the Promife of fo great a Reward to
any Man that would make a Difcovery of this
horrid Action : So far, my Lord, we fhall anfwer
the Evidence that hath been given 3 but to fatisfy
your Lordftip and the Jury, that it was impof-
fible the Prifoner at the Bar could be concern’d
i this foul Action, we fhall prove to your Lord-
fhip, that upon the 15th of Apiil, upon the E-
vening of which Day this bloody Attempt was
made upon Mr. Aruold, the Prifoner at the Bay
came fieft to Town; and we fhall prove that he
came to Town but at one a Clock that Day, We
fhall prove further, if my Brief be true, by five
or fix {ubftantial Witneffes, againft whom there
can Dbe no Exception, how and where he em-
ploy’d hunfelf all that Day, from the Minute that
he came to Town: And that when he return’d to
his Inn, about nine 2 Clock at Night, the Maid
of the Inn lock’d his Chamber-Door after he was
a-bed, and kept the Key of the Chamber all
Night. And, my Lord, if all this be clearly
prov’d, I make no doubt but your Lordfhip and
the Jury, and all Perfons here, will be fatished
that the Prifoner at the Bar is not gullty of this
Indictment. My Lord we will firft begin with
Vr. P /.’11:@01‘ ‘

Mr, Philpot,

Me. Darnal. M. Phifpst, Pray do you acquaint
my Lord, and the Jury, what Difcourfe pafs’d be-
tween you and Giles at the Crown Tavernin (-
veint-Garden,

Mr. Philpat, We drank one Bottle of Claret,
| Mr. Phlilips came in when the Bottle was almoft

ended. But byand by fome Friends camein, and
they atked him what News, Sir? Said he, I hear
of no News but a cruel Afflaflination upon Mr,
Ariold, butfor my part I am forry for it: But,
{md he, 1fany Thrg fhould be upon Mr. Aucld,
it isa very ftrange Thing.

Mr, Dariel, Were vou there all the time,
Sir?

Mr, Phiipat. Yes, Sir, all the time.

Mr, Durgal, And you heard no other Dif-
courfe ?

Nr, Pihilpst. No, he did not fay damn him,
ror fizle him, for I hate {uch Company.

My, lely. M. Fobn Philpet, Where do you
hve?

Mr. Philrer, Tn Lops-lave,

Mr. et What Sign do you hveat?

Me. Poi'pst. Atthe Crown,

Mir, /st What Trade are you ;

M. Ph7ps. A Silefman,

My, Doyiia!, Now we will go on to the Dift
courfe at Ufke, about their pafling with fuch fpeed
throngh Glsirecfer.

My, Reesider. W, Dainel, they do not pretend
you were m great Iear, but they fay you fid fo.
It 15 not the Queftion, Whether you ad fray
long at Glore ffer, or no? But the Queftion s,
Whether you told this Man {o? Becaufe the Man
aflzed you, Why you would leave the Hair at the
Farrier’s, m order toa Fithing-lne? Troly 1 was
in great Hafte, for fear I fhould be taken up about
the Bufinefs of Mr. Aricld,

Mr, Daraal, Tt is very trie, and therefore we
bring this Evidence to fhew the Improbabi]ity
that we fhould fay any fuch Thing, when it was
falfe, and efpechally when it was to accufe our
{elves of a Crime.

Herbert Jones Mayor of Monmouth.

Mr. Deipal. Mr. Fours, Pray givean Account
to the Jury of your pafling through Gluceffer,
and how Jong you f{tatd there,

Mr., Foues. My Lord, 1 came with the Prifo-
ner.

Mr. Recsidzi. What Day did you come throuph
Gloncefter ?

Mr. Foies. 1 cannot pofitively tell you the
Day: We went out of Town upon Fridsy we
came to Gloteefhzr either Wednefiday or Fiiday, and

there we went to the O/d Bear in Glonzefter, and there

ftaid an Hour before we went to Dinner: it was

a publick time, the Quarterly Seflions, and feve-

ral People came to us to hear the News 5 we told
them, and were as forry for it as any Perfons could
be, and did confefs it a very #l Thing, We
went from the O/d Bear after we had dined to the

Newo Bear, and drank feveral Pints of Cyder. T

believe, by the Oath 1 have taken, we were feve.
ral Hours in the Town.

Mr. Milbourn. Do you know Mr. Arinld is ac-
quainted with Mr, Gifes ¢ _

Mr. Fones. T do believe Mr. Ariol? has oreat
reafon to be acquainted with Giles.

Mr. Thompfoir. Yes now he has.

Mr. Milbourn. Was he chief Conftable 2

Mr. Foues. Yes, he was; and certain] y Mr.

Ariold m Reafon would take Notice of the chief
Conftable.

Mr. Milbourn. Mr. Herbers Jones, I am informed

that you know this Gentleman goes to Church
and receives the Sacrament. Give an Account
what Religion he isof, Mr. Fones,
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Mz, Fones. Always a Proteftant; I faw him at
Church within this half Year.

Giles. 1can fhew a Certificate of my going to
Church fince I came to Town.

Mr. Recorder. There are many People that can
go to Church to ferve their Turn.

Giles. And, my Lord, Ihave taken the Oaths
of Allegiance and Supremacy.

My, Thompfon. An excellent Proteftant to dif-
courfe fo of the Plot, I muft needs fay that,

John Jones thz Cutler’s dpprentice.

Mr. Recorder. How old are you ?

Yoies. Between fifteen and fixtecn.

Mr. Recorder. Hark you, do you know the
Danger of forfwearing yourfelf ¢

Fones. Yes, St

Mr. Recorder. What 15 1t ?

Fones. I am in Danger of everlafting Fire,

Mr., Recorder, Very well.

Mr. Darnal. My Lord, thisis the Apprentice
to the Cutler, in whofe Shop Powe/ fays we had
fuch Difcourfe: Fores, pray tell my Lord and the
Jury, Whether you were by when one Wziter
Powel came into your Malter’s Shop, when he
and Giles were talkmng about Giles’s Sword ?

Foues. Siry Jokn Gues came 1n the Morning and
brought 2 Sword, my Mafter was not within ;
and he told me, Give this Sword to your Mafler
to be mended 5 {fo I took the Sword and laid it up
all my Mafter came . When he came 1n, [ told
my Mafter of it ; and when he came again, this
J¥7altsr Powwel was m the Shop: Said Giles to my
Mafter, Did you mend sy Sword ¢ Savs he : Says
my Mafter, A7, Giles, How cae your Sword bigie 2
Heze yoi been fighting with the Devil 2 No, fays he,
for be never et with Arnold,

People. Flifs’'m, hifs.

Mr. Recorder. 1t does not become the Decency
and Gravity of a Court of Juftice, to be hum-
ming and hiffing when Faéls are trying of this
great Concernment,

Mr. Mitburn. It was the common Difcourfe
there that Vir. Arueld had been affaulted.

Mr. Recoiatr. You have been in a great Com-
bat ; have you been fighting with the Dewil?
What did he fay to that?

Fones. He never met with Aimald 3 my Mafter
alked him, Mr, Giles, Have you been in fom: Bat-
tle or othir £ Have you been fighting with the Devil ?
No, §iiy for I never met with Arnold.

Mr. Recorder. You did not hear his Wife bid
him hold his Tongue ?

Foucs. No, Sir,

M. Thompfon. Did he tell you how he did break
s Sword ?

Jowes. No, Sir.

Giles. My Lord, here 1s Mr. Philtot can tell,
that I was fitting down in a Chair, and broke off
a Piece of the Guard.

" Mr. Thompfor. You will do well to prove it,
Ir.

Mr. Milburir. Was there any Difcourfe in the
Country about Mr, Arneid ?

Mr. Recorder. Did they not talk any Thing a-
bout killing the Devil ?

Jones. No, Sir.

M. Darial, 1f your Lordfhip pleafes, we will
call Witnefles to gtve an Account when we came
to Town, and where we were all that Day ; and

we will call the Maid that locked the Chamber-
Vor. IIL

to Murder John Arnold, Efy;
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Door after we were in Bed, on the fame Night
when this Fa& was committed.

Fobir Howel,
Mr. Darnal. Jobn Howel, Pray tell my Lord

and the Jury when Giles came to Town ?

Hywel, If 1t pleafe you, my Lord, I came to
Town, and Jobn Giles together.

Mr. Recorder. What time of Day was it ?

Howel. It was twelve o’Clock.

Mr. Recorder, Who 1s thy Mafter ?

Hywel, William Richinond,

Mt. Darial. What time of Night was it, Friend,
when you heard him call to your Mafter, and bid
him good-night.

Howel. About eleven or twelve o’Clock.

Mr. Milburn. You fay about nine you were at
your Lodging with him ? Did your Party com-
pany with him ?

Howel. Yes, Sir, we did.

Mr. Thompfon. Where did you go at that Time?

Howel. We went into the Chamber, and drank
two Pints of Brandy.

Mr. Thompfon. What time of Night was that ?

Mr. Recorder, After two Pints of Brandy, I

wonder how he can remember any thing.

Aun Beron.

Mr. Milbarn. Tell what time of the Night Gifes
came n; where you were in his Company ; what
time of Night it was ?

Mr, Recorder. Speak as loud as thou would’ft
do if thou wer’t at Home : When was this ?

A, The Thur{day after Eafter,

Mr. Recorder, The Thurfday in Eaffer-Week, or
the Thuifday 11 the next Week ¢ |

A, The Thurfday in Eaffer-Week ; we were
never out of Company ; when he came home to
his Lodging I believe it was near ten o’Clock.,

Mr, Recorder, Where was your Lodging, at
the King's-Arins ?

A, At the King's- dris.

Mr. Recorder. Good Woman, Did you go with
him to Whetflone’s-Park 2

Ann. No, not 1.

Mr. Recorder. Were you with him at the Ar-
tillery-Grownd ¢

Anmn. No, not I.

Mr. Recorder, Were you with him i Driiy-
Laie ¢

Auir. No, not I.

Mr. Recorder. He did not go out of your Com-
pany at all ¢

Ana. Yes, about ten o’Clock.,

Mr. Recorder. Woman, you muft be miftaken ;
he came to Town at twelve or one, and might be
in thy Company: But it is plain he went to a Bro-
kers in Long-lane, and {o to the Artillery-Greund
at Cripplegate, tor I guefs 1t might be fo; then
they went to Whetftone’s- Paik, and {pent Sixpence,
and after that they went into Drury-Lase,

Prif. My Lord, fhe don’t fay fhe was with us
all the while s but we came to an Houfe where
fhe was, and feveral other People our Neigh-
bours.

Mr. Recorder. She fays you did go out fome
time : Now fee whether I miftake you.

A, Yes, you do miftake me.

Mr. Recorder. He went out, did he?

Ann. Yes, he went out after he came into the

L City,
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City, he and fome others, and then they came
back to me again in two or three Hours,

Mr, Recorder. Then you were two or three
Hours at Dinner. Now 1 afk you, after they
came back, was you with him all the while ?

A, Yes, that I was. |

Mr. Recorder. Where was it ?

Am. At the Peacock,

Mr. Recorder. That is the Place in Draury-Lane.

Am. No, indeed, 1t 1s1n Covent-Garden,

Mr. Darnal. When did he go to bed ; do yeu
know that upon your Oath ?

Aun. We were tin the Inn between mne and
ten o’Clock, nearer ten than nine, and I faw him
fitting taking a Pipe of Tobacco.

My, Darnal. What time was that ?

Ann, A little after Ten, [believe.

Mr. Thompfen. He fat there till he was called
away to do his Bufinefs.

Elizabeth Crook,

Mr. Darnal. Elizabeth Crock, Pray do you tell
my Lord and the Jury about what tune Gilks
went to Bed ?

Crook. Indeed, Sir, he went to Bed between
Ten and Eleven.

Mr. Derial. FHow Jong was it that he came to
his Lodging before that? Can you fay how leng
he was in the Houfe before he went to Bed ?

Crock. 1 atked him if T fhould take away his
Candle 3 he fzid he would put his Candle out,
but I might lock lum m and take the Key, but !
did not do it.

Mr. Thompfon. Did he go to Bed as foon as he
came In ¢

Crook, No, 1 think he did not.

Mr. Reccrder, Yeu made the Bed, did not vou?

Crosk. 1 did,

Mr. Recorder, Upon your Oath, what Time of
Night was it ?

Crock. Ithink it was nearer Eleven than Ten.

Mr. Recorder. Did you make the Bed after he
went into 1t What Time did you make the Bed,
upon your Oath ?

Crook. I made the Bed about Ten o'Clock.

Mr. Recorder. T atk you, Do you remember
Richmond came in to you, and atked you any
Thing about making the Bed? Do you remem-
ber he was in the Chamber ?

Crook. In whofe Chamber ?

Mr. Recorder. Did Ricl mond come in when you
were making the Bed ?

Crook. He was not there as I knew of.

Rickinond, Was not 1 in the Chamber when
you made the Bed ?

Croox, No, I don’t remember you.

Richinond. My Lord, when this Maid went to
make the Bed, [ went into the Room after her,
and had fome Difcourfe with her, we leaned to-
gether upon the Window, and I told her T was
in love with her; I told her, if fhe liked of it, I
would marry her the next Morning ; 1did it to
make merry, for indeed I am a married Man.

Mr. Recorder. What Time of Night was it ?

Richinond, About Twelve 0’Clock.

Mr. Recorder. 1f you forget your other Sweet-
hearts, can you remember this? Do you remems-
ber now he was there ?

Crook. 1 remember he was there,

Prif. Mr. druold, pray do not laugh at my

Witnefles, and make May-games at them, it is
not the Part of 2 Gentleman,

Richmond. And fhe told me that he would lie
by himfelf, though the Houfe was very full.

Mr. Recorder. Do you remember any fuch Dif-
courfe ?

Crook. 1 do remember that Mr. Richuond did
come in,

King’s Cetncil, What Time of Night was it that
he was making Love to you ?

Crosk. I think about Ten o’Clock.

King’s Couneil. "T'ime pafled meinly away with
you then,

Rickimond. 1t was Twelve o'Clock.

Crozk. Why do you fay fo ¢ Our Houle wasall
quiet prefently after Eleven.

Riclmord. Why will you fay fo? Were not we
finging and roaring together ¢

Mr. Recorder, Come, don’t be angry, you were
not angry when you were maring Love toge-
ther ?

Rickingid. I am not angry indeed, Sir.

Edward Jaines.

Mr. Melburn. Tell my Lord what Time of
Night Gi/es came into his Lodging, and where it
was 2

Faincs, It was m Laftzr-Week he came i, and
{o were drinking at the Kiiz2’s- Alrns in St. ivdartin’s-
Leney and from Dinner, and from MNine 2'Clock.

Mr. Reccider. How ! You did not dine there,
you dined ot the Peacock,

fames. Yes, we dined there, but from Nine
0’Clock we were there till Twelve,

Mr. Recordsr. FHow do you know ?

Fames. 1 was there with him.

Mr. Recorder. After Twelve 0’Clock you fay
you left him.

Sfanies, Yes,

Mr. Recerder. Where did you leave him 2

Fenes. In the Kitchen,

Mr. Recorder. Are you fure?

Fames, Yes, my Lord, Tam fur: of it

Mr. Recerder. Tafk you becoufe I have an un-
happy Meimory: You are fure it wis Twelve
o’Cleck when you faw him in the Kitchen, and
here 15 2 Mud faw him go o Bed at Fleven,

My, Reeorder. Have you anv moie ! You know
the Matter that ws the Oceafion of the Difpute
tother Day : 1 would not by way Maans, that in
a Caufe of thns publick Concern, there thould be
any Pretence for any to fay they were furprized ;
theretore call as many Witne(les as you pleafe,

Yy

L

Redin Gibban.

Mr. Milburn. What can you fay when M. Giles
came nto his Lodging 2

Giobon. It was about Ten o’Clock.
Horfe about half a Peck of Outs.

My, Milburn, Where ?

Gibdon. At the King’s- Arms in St, Martins-Low,

Mr. Ailburn. Do you know how long he flaid
hefore he went to Bad,

Gibbon. No, Sir, I cannot tell.

Mr. Thoinpfon. He fpeaks honefily, this Man.

Mr. Recorder. Have you any more ?

~ Giles. There is another, a Tranflator,
cil knows his Name.

I gave his

my Coun-

:7{?-‘1’53 Cik‘?ﬂ]‘l"‘ ok,

Mr. Recorder. What is your Name, Sy 2
Chadivick,
3
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Chadwick. Sobn Chadwick.

M. Recorder. Go on. |

Chadwick, 1{ay this Fobn Giles was at my Houfe
betiveen eipht and nine 0’Clock.

Mz, Réecorder. Where 1s your Houfe ?

Chadwick. My Houfe 15—

M. Recorder. Can you fay any more to it ?

Mr. Chadwick., No.

Elizabeth Crook.

Mr. Recorder. What have you to fay ?

Crook. Sir; 1 went with Mr. Giles Home, and it
was between nine and ten 0o’Clock, and I faw him
in his Lodging, and I faw him in the Morning,

Mr. Recorder. Are you fure he went to Bed
when you made1t? _

Crook. It was between ten and eleven o'Clack.

Mr. Thompfon. You fee how they contradiét

one another.
Mr. Recorder. Is your Name fames?

Fames. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Recorder. You fay you are certain you left
him in the Kitchen at twelve ?

Fames. Yes, Sit.

Mr. Recorder, But here is one that fays he went

to Bed by eleven.
Fames. O Lord, no Sir.

Mr, Holt. Thele are your own Witnefles, Mr.
Giles.
Mr, Thompfon. You fee how they contradict one

another,
Peter Powel,

Powel. My Lord, I met fome of my Country-
men about an Hour before Night.

Mr., Thompfer. What Day ?

Powel. About Thurfday, Sir.

Mr, Thompfon. What Week was it in ?

Powel, Tbelieve in Eafter Week, and 1 heard
them f{ay that Mr., Arunold was come to Town, and
Mr. Herbert and he was to have an Hearing the
next Day.

Mr. Recorder. How long was you in his Com-
pany ?

Powel. 1 had been in my Friend’s Company
about an Hour before he came, and we ftaid till
near nine or thereabouts, and then we parted, and
I never faw him afterwards till laft Monday was fe-
ven-night.

Roger How.

Mr, Recorder. What fay you ?

Hew. Mr. Giles was in my Company, and ftaid
till about nine o’Clock, or thereabouts, and then
we went away, and I faw him no more for that
Night.

Mr. Recorder. Have you any more ?
Giles. No.

Then Sir George Jeffries the Recorder, gave
Direitions to the Fury 1o this Effedt.

Gentlemen of the Jury, the Evidence has been
very long, and I know you have taken particular
Care to write down and take Notice of all the
Circumftances that -have been offered to you in
this Cafe : According to the beft of my Memory,
I fhall refrefh yours with fuch of them as | appre-
hend to be moft material in this Caufe ; and if any

Thing happen to be omitted, others will fupply it.
Vg Lef oo, vl

2o Murder John Atnold, Ef7; _

75

In the firfk Place I am to take Notice, and I
think I am bound to doit in Difcharge of my own
Confcience, and of my Duty to the Court, that
certainly if the Prifoner at the Bar be guilty of
the Offence of which he now ftands indi¢ted, the
Punifhment that we can infli& upon him, cannot
be proportionable to the Offence: For the Of-
fence is too great for any Punifhment that the
Law can mflict, for Men are not prefumed to
be guilty of fuch Actions as this; and therefore
the Law has not proportioned Punifhments to
them, becaufe it prefumes no Man to be guilty of
{fo bafe and barbarous an Action as this; and be-
caufe it never could be prefumed that any Man
would be guilty of fuch Offences, therefore the
Law has not provided Punifhments proportion-
able to them, But this is not your Queftion, the
Queftion before you 1s, Whether this Man be
guilty or not guilty? That there was a Popifh
Plot, no Man fure doubts at this Time of Day.
Certamnly there can be none here under fo ftrange
an Infatuation, as in the leaft to doubt but that
there was a Plot, efpecially when fo many Per-
fons upon full and clear Evidence and Trials, have
been convicted as Inftruments in that bloody T'ra-
gedy. But you are not to make Ule of thefe
Things by Way of Evidence againft the Prifo-
ner at the Bar: But only in the general to pre-
mife fome Things by Way of Introduétion to their
particular Evidence; and I muft planly tell you
(for it is fit it fhould be mentioned) that if any
Villamy can come near that horrid Murder of Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey, this does 3 and I am forry
with all my Heart, that within the Government
of the City of Londen, or fo near it, there thould
be {uch a barbarous Attempt as this made and con-
cealed fo long., It would not be firange to hear
of fuch Villainies committed in other Popith Coun-
tries : But for the Honour and Credit to that Re-
hgion which I hope we fhall maintain with our
Lives, thatis, the Proteftant Religion, I fay ina
Proteftant Country, where the Proteftant Reli-
gion 1s profefled, I never heard of fuch a barba-
rous A¢t committed before this one s becaufe our
Principles of our Religion will not allow us to
commut fuch Villainies by any Difpenfation what-
{oever, Juftice and Truth, and Righteoufnefs,
are the Things that our Religion teaches us. God
Almighty, and our blefled Saviour Jefus Chrift,
by whom alone all Mankind muft be faved, have
commanded the contrary.

Their Religion may difpenfe with fuch villain-
ous Actions; but this I can fay in Vindication of
ours, ours cannot do 1t; nay, it would be no Re-
ligion if 1t could.

In the next Place, Gentlemen, all Circum-
flances of Time and Place, of Men and Things,
fhould be taken Notice of ; for dark Cafes muft
be made appear by Circumftances: For as I hint-
ed before, no body calls Witnefles when they do
{uch Fa&sand Works of Darknefs, the Works
of the Devil, that 1s the Father of all fuch
Works, I do not mean the Devil, Mr, Arunold,
hut I mean they are the Works of the Devil:
Beelzebud himfelf, the Prince of Devils, can be
only an Inftrument and an Agent in Affairs of
this Nature.

_Another Thing that 1s fit to be taken Notice
of by you, isthis, that by Way of Circumftance,
whatever has been faid one Way oranother, relat-
ing to the Plot, relating to the Bufinefs of Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey, 1s not to be taken Notice of

2 as
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as Evidence againft the Prifoner.  You fhall have
a faithful Account of what has been faid by every
Witnefs, both for and againft him 3 for Right is
to be done. Our Law comes even to a Proverb,
IVe mmft give the Devil bis Duey we muft give
every body Right.  You know that this Bufinefs
was deferred, that the Prifoner at the Bar nught
e left without all Manner of Excufe; for if m-
nocent, all Mankind would be glad to have him
cleared ; if guilty, every honeft Man would have
him convi@ed. Now this being premifed, the Evi-
dencesagainft the Prifoner ure feveral, and I will,
as far as I can, give youan Account of them. And
Firft of all, Itis not doubted but Mr. Arnold
has behaved himfelf ke an honeft Man, and as
every honeft Man ought to do for the Intereft of
his Religion 3 for there 15 no Man can do too
much, if he does it legally, for the Prefervation
of his Religion; of that Religion which he s
bound to rely upon for the Salvation of his im-
mortal Soul. Now, fays Mr. Araeld, in the firft
Place he gives an honeft Account of his being
one Night, onc Thurjilay Night in Eqfter Week,
at the Devil-Tuvern, about nmne or ten o’Clock,
with fome Friends, and he went ont between ten
and eleven o’Clock, and his own Servant not be-
ing there, he did intend to call {ome other Ser-
vants by; butas it happened, he went away with-
out them, and he perceived two Men m Cam-
paign Cloaks follow him mto Bell-Yard, e does
galke it upon his Oath, that about the Middle of
the Lane, there happened to bea Candle coming
out, and one of thefe two, that he did {o obferve
to dog him, having a Campaign-Cloak upon him,
and likewife a Coat lined with red, he did ob-
ferve came before him ; and he doth take it upon
his Oath, that he does believe the Prifoner at the
Bar to be that very Man that {o came before him;
he does fay that he had a perfec Sight of him, and
he does fay, that the Reafon why he fhould be-
leve him to be the Man, 15, that he does remem-
ber his Face, and kuew his Voice. He tells you
likewife that there were Perfons caft a Cloak over
his Head, ran himi into Feckanapes-Lane, fell up-
on him, bruifed his Flead, and wounded him 1
{everal Places; particularly he mentions that there
was at the fame Time, fud by one of them, Pray
for the Soul ¢f Ceplain Evanss and at the fame
Time, which s a wonderful Crecumftance, Damis
the Digy be bas got Avinsui oy cut bis Throat, He
favs that one Man Leld him up by the Chin, hav-
ing {everal Pafles made athim, and he fays he had
{fomething or other to preferve him; but notwith-
flanding that, he was run into the Side 5 there
were three Men, he does tell you, and that one
overtook him m Bell-Yard, and he contimues to
fwear 1t was the Prifoner at the Bar, according to
the beft of his Underftanding and Confcience; he
fays it was he, and he difcovered him by the Sight
of a Candle. Befides this, which 1s a material
Circumftance, {fome other Perfons being brought
to Mr. Ariold about it, Mr. Arueld did not tax
them, but did pofitively tax that Perfon to be
one of the Perfons.  But he tells you he fuftered
by Paflion, as I cannot blame any Man for bemg
in a Paflion at fuch a Time. But his Witnefles
determine the Thing, that thatis the Man, and he
did pofitively fay it, his Memory being better fet-
tled than he could at firft pretend to 3 but how-
ever, he gives that for another Evidence, that he
was not deceived 1n the Perfon.  This 1s the Sub-
{tance, as] remember, I would not do any Injury

to the Prifoner, by repeating any Thing that has
not been faid 5 ror would I do any Injury to the
Evidence for the King, in omitting any Thing
that occurs to me.  The next is one Philips, and
he tells you that the next Day, being Friday, a-
bout fix or feven o’Clock at Night, he happened
to be in Company with him at an Houfe in Co-
vent-Gardezn, and having fome Difcourfe concern-
ing Arwold, and concerning that bloody, bafe, and
foul Attempt that was made upon him, and was
fo far from having the Bowels of an Liuglifbuair,
or any Thing of Chriftianity in him, that he does
fay he broke out into this extravagant Exprefhion,
Damin bim, rot hin, be bad Ariour on: Damwy
bim, ot him, be bad Aymowr on : 1 {peake it twice
over, becaufe Mr. Ariold tells you that the Per-
{ons during the Faét was committing, faid, Dam-
e, cut bis Throct, be bas Armonr on.  The next
Perfon comes and tells you, at a certamn Place in
Moninonthfbire, upon the 5th of May following,

that he went with one of the Richieads to this
Giles, and had fome Difcourfe : Says he, How
chance you bave not beer as goed as your IVoid, about

pioviding me Horfe-bair to meke Fifbing-Lines, end
you promifed to leave it at the Farrier’s in Glou-

cefter ? How chance it was not {0 ? e immediate-
ly adds, /7e weie i fiuch extracrdinary Hefte, be-
canfe we thought we were puifued about the Buftiefs
of Arnold. And that he gives as the Reafon why
he did not ftayat Gloneefter,  If in Cafe 1t had not
been fo, why fhould he come and tell him he
could not ftay about the Bufinefs of the Hair, be-
caufc he was like to be purfued about the Bufi~
nefs of Arnold ? The next Thing, Gentlemen, 1s
concerning one Powel; Powel, he tells you, that
he being at one Dargy’s Houfe, a Roman Catho-
lick, that 1s a Sword-Cutler that lives, I think,
likewife at Ufke: And it feems the Prifoner at
the Bar came to him to have his Sword mended.
By the Way I fhould have told you that the Pri-
foner at the Bar, before the Fa& was done, did
enquire at a Place where he might have a good
Rapier : That was before the Fact was done, The
Witnefs fpake of it laft, which was the Occafion
that I did not give it you in order. - IHe afked
where he might have a good Rapier?

But now to come to Dar¢y: Daiey having
been very familiar with him, enquir’d, Whereiore,
having had his Sword fo lately, he fhould have
it to mend alveady ? Have yon, {aid he, deen fight-
g with the Devil 2 Immediately upon that he
{wears the Prifoner returned, No, but with dawmned
Arnold.  And upon that lis Wife plucked him by
the Coat, and bid him hold his Tongue, [ think
that is the Subftance of what he fwears.  He fays
there were by at that Time the Prifoner at the Bar,
the Apprentice to this Darcy, and a Woman that
1s the Prifoner’s Wife.

William Richinond he comes and gives you a
further Account, that he being in his Company ;
he tells you, they went to fome Place in the Citw
to enquire after their Friends, and aftewards went
to the Artillery to fee the Exercife. then to Long-
Lane, from thence to iVbetflone’s-Perk, and after-
wards to Drury-Lane; and that about nine o’Clock
at Night they came to their Inn, and he left Giles
taking a Pipe of Tobacco in the Kitchen, and
went up wmto his Chamber with fome other Peo-
ple, drinking and making merry ; and he does po-
fitively fay, that between eleven and twelve
o’Clock at Night, he faw the Servant Maid come .
up into the Room, and did fee fhe was making

the

-



1680. 0. B. to Murder Jol;h Arnold, Z£/y;

the Bed ; that he feem’d to be a little ﬁlr_'pri'zed
that ény. body fhould make_a Bed at tf_lat time of
Night, which occaﬁon_ed him to go in to her,
and afk her the Queftion. The Anfwer that he
had was very material, that fhe faid, There is o
Gentleman below that I sanft make this Bed for,
be docs ot defire to have any body lig with him.
Thet was the Anfwer the Mad gave, There
was, he fays, fome little Talk of Love between
him and the Maid, and that he pofitively fays
was near upon twelve a-leJck. He fays that af-
ter this, he went into his own Cha.n_lber, and
continued in his own Chamber till nigh One,
and about One, being puliing off his Breeches,
the Prifoner at the Bar came and knocked at
his Chamber-door, and fpake to him, and that
was near One a-clock at Night.  But 1t 15 plain,
during that Time, the ]:tl‘iﬁ]!lﬂl‘ was not in his
Chamber, if you believe him ; tior mdeed 1s there
any Account given of the Prifoner from Nine a-
Clock till near One, till he knocked at his Door,
as he was pulling ofi” his Breeches and going to
Bed. Astothe Anfwers that are given by the
Witnefles of the other Side, I fhall give you them
when I defcend to give the Teftumonies of the
other Side. |

To give you yet this further Teftimony, fay
they, We do not only give you this Teftunony
that he 1s gutlty of this Fa&, but we do give you
an Account of him, that he is very likely 1o do
fuch a Thisg 5 for hets an ill Man i himfelf, As
on the other Sule, no Man can give a better Te-
{timony to himfelf m Matters that are dark and
obfcure, than the Teftimony of his Converfation,
that he 1s upright in his Converfation, and there-
fore cannot be thought guilty of {o bafe an Ag&i-
on: So they think they give a good Evidence a-
gainft him, and that he 1s an il Man in himfelf;
and therefore becaufe heis an il Man, he may be
guilty of fucha Thing. And to prove that, they
call up thele Witneffes.

Firft of all, one Bridszs comes and gIves you
an Account, that difcourfing with him  concern-
ing the Papilts, he damn’d the Plot, and faid that
all were Rafeals that were not Papifts 5 and if in
cafe that the Lords that were in the Tower thould
happen to {uffer, it would be abloody Day, and
it would make bloodier Work in Erpgland than
ever was known : Which fhews he is 2 bloody
il Man. The Prfoner afl’d him, If he were
not a Papift £ It’s likely he was a Papift before,
or he would not have trufted him fo. And
this 15 one Circumftance to prove that he is an
il Man, that he hath given out fuch and fuch
Expreffions.

‘There 1sanother, one Reyuolds, who comes and
gives you an Account of his having fome Dif
courfe with him afterwards about this Bufinefs of
Mr. driold, that the Prifoner talked flightly of it,
and faid that he might do it himfelf,

This, Gentlemen, I take in general to be the
Subftance of what has been offer’d for the King,
It there be any thing clfc that docs not occur ta
my Memory, if it doth to yours, yon will do
well to confider of it.

Say the Council for the Defendant, and that
every Man of the Long Robe ought to fay, that
it the Perfon, which is the Prifoner at the Bar,
were guilty of -fuch a barbarous thing as this, no
Man would offer to open his Mouth. And there-
fore they offer Evidence for their Client as they
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are inftructed to offer to you, and you are'to try
whether their Client be guilty. :

Say they, You firft call one Philips to give an
Account ; and as to what Philips fays about the
Bufinefs in Covent-Garden, about Dasm bim, and
ret bi, they bring one that was there all the
Tume, and fays he, Jwas by all the Time, and I
beard no fich Words.  So far was he from making
any particular Refle@tions upon Mr. Ainold, that
he cried it was a very horrible, a very barbarous
Thing. Nay, fays he, to give Credit {o this Te-
ftimony of his, I never ufe to keep company with
them that ufe fuch Words, as Daumn bim, and rof
bim, as he fays.

The next Witnefs is Mr. Herbert Fones, he
comes and tells you, I went with him from Lou-
don, I went with him to Ghucefler, 1 ftaid at an
Inn calld the Old-Bear, and ftaid and dined with
him there. T went after that to the New-Bear,
we went thither and drank Cyder together; and
this was very publick: For feveral Perfons that
liv’d in the Town, came to us and enquired af-
ter the Bufinefs of 4rwold 3 and if in cale we had
been under any fuch Jealoufy as that was, we
would not have ftaid fo long, as, fays he, we did.
Say they on the other fide, we do not fay that
you did not ftay in Glouceffer 5 but, fay they, by
way of Objection againft the Prifoner at the Bar,
we fay that you yourfelf, on the fifth of Aay,
faid, mn anfwer to the Perfon that came to afk
you, Why you had not brought the Hair, that
he might go a Fithing ¢ You faid, we durft not
ftay for fear of Purfuit upon the Account of M.
Ariold.  This you yourfelf faid, and by faying
fo, you have contradted that Guilt in paint of
Circumftance, which is objected by us agamft you.
This1s the Anfwer given to that that Mr, Fones
fays. |

}The next Perfon that comes to give you an
Account, is one Fobu Fowes, who is the Appren-
tice: Says he, you bring a Witnefs acainft me
that I fad fuch a thing at Ukz, at Darey’s the
Sword-Cutler’s, and you fay the Apprentice was
by : And he gives you this Evidence : Says he, I
was by at {fuch a Time as the Man fpeaks of, and
bemg by at that Time, Ido very well remember,
that there was a Difcourfe concerning fome great
Confiict that Mr. Giles had been in, and that
Giles’s Wife was by, and fo was the other Perfon
that gave the Evidence, that fuch a Difcourfe
there was of fighting with the Devil; but now
he nverts the Saying of the t'other Man, and fays
that he fhould fay, He never met with Arnold the
Decyil,  The one anfwers, when the thing was
afked him, Whether he had been fighting with
the Devil ! N, not with the Devil, but with
Arnold ; the other fwears, He did nor meet with
the Devil Amold. He tells you likewife, his Wife
did not pull him by the Clothes, and bid him hold
his Tongue.

The next Witnefs is Powel; and he gives you
att Account that he came with him to Town :
He gives you an Account how he ftaid with him,
and came along with him till Nine a-Clock at
Night ; for he does not pretend to give you an
Account after Nine.

Then comes Grook ; And Crook, that is the
Maid Servant, fhe fays, I cannot pofitively tell
you when he came in, but will pofitively fay,
that I made his Bed about ten, and before eleven
I afked him about his Candle ; he bid me lock the
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Door, and he would put out the Candle himfelf,
and the went away and left the Candlé. And that
is very material 3 for the Time this Fact was com-
mitted was between ten and eleven; this is what
the Maid fays: Now there is this Anfwer to what
fhe fwears. She firft of all forgot that ever Rich-
mond, that {peaks concerning the Breeches and
other Circumf{tances, that ever he was there at
all 5 but you hear he has refrefhed her Memory
with a Love Story, that he was m the Room,
and fhe does agree in thefe very Circumftances he
{peaks of ; {o that that gives Credit to the Tefti-
mony of Richmond, and puts a Difparagement up-
on her Teftimony, fince fhe could be {o exceed-
ing forgetful, as not to remember fuch a Circum-
fiance. .

The next is an old Woman : And fhe {wears
point blank fhe was with him moft part of the Day;
and that fhe was with him at Dinner, and was
with him till Nine of the Clock at Night, and
then went to Bed. And though fhe feemed to
differ and blunder in fome part of her Teftimony,
becaufe the knew nothing of his going nto Long-
Lane, and other Places; however fhe gives an
- Account about the time of Nine a-Clock, that fhe
left him in the Kitchen, and then the went to bed.

The next Witnefs is Fames : And Fames doth
pofitively {wear, that he was drinking with him
1n the Kitchen till paft ‘T'welve a-Clock at Night ;
but that cannot be true, if the Wench that made
the Bed fwear true; for the fwears fhe made the
Bed before Ten, and he went to Bed before Eleven;
{o that he could not be a Bed before eleven, 1f he
{wears true 3 and he could not be in the Kitchen at
twelve a-Clock, if {he {wears true,

Gentlemen, Richmond’s Man he gives you no
further an Account than what runs {quare to his
Mafter’s Teftimony ; that he left hun at nine a-
Clock at Night, and he heard him call at his Ma-
{tet’s Chamber about Twelve, and {o they punctu-
ally agree. But he gives no manner of Account
where he was between Nine and Twelve, between
which Hours this Fa@ was done.

Next, Gentlemen, there have been fome more
Witnefles called for the Prifoner at the Bar, who
cave you an Account where he was before {fuch
time as he came to his Lodging. Now 1t 15 not
dented on either Side, but that he might be till
within Night at that Houfe they f{peak of 5 but
the Account that i1s defired to be given of this
Matter, 1s to know where he was between nine a-
Clock and twelve, when this Fa&t was committed.

Thefe, Gentlemen, according as it occurs ta
me, are the {ubftantial parts of Ewidence, both
on theone fide and the other. The Matter there-
fore refolves itfelf within this narrow Compafs;
If upon what you have heard from Mr, Arnold,
attended with the reft of the Circumflances that
you have heard {worn by the Witnefles, you do
believe the Prifoner at the Bar is guilty 3 for he
might be at his Lodging at nine a-Clock, and he
might be at his Lodging at Twelve or One, and
yet he might do this Faét: For it is certain it was
not a fudden Matter, for it was a thing done pre-
paredly ;5 and therefore you muft not expeét that
Men that are guilty of fuch barbarous Defigns as
this, will lay their Defigns open. To be fure,
whoever it was did this Fact upon Mr. Aruold,
they would do it fo as to make themfelves appear
as mnocent as could be. Itisnot a matter to be
velied on, that becaufe this Man was innocent in

St. Marew's- Lane, therefore he did not do this
Thing i Bell-Yard,

There is another Circumftance aganft the Pri-
foner at the Bar; that he fhould imagine, not-
withftanding all this, that Mr. 4ruold had wound-
ed himfelf : But when he found that that was not
very probable, that a Man could wound himfelf
fo, by reafon of feveral Places that he received
his Wounds in 5 he would have it, that though
he did not do it himfelf, yet fome of his Friends
might. Indeed if he be guilty, fome of his Re-
lations might do it, but certainly he was no Friend
that did it. It is againft Nature for any Man to
believe that any Perfon fhould put himfelf to fo
much Troublé ; if he had a Mind to difpatch
himfelf, he might have done it with much more
eafe, and not have put himfelf to that trouble ;
for Men, when they have a mind to do the Bufi-
ne(s, they do not ufe to take fuch a deal of Pains
to ftab themfelves here and there.

Thus, Gentlemen, the Evidence being very
long, and the Circumftances very many, Things
may occur to you, that do not at prefent to me.
Yet I muft tell you again, in a matter of publick
Example, the Proof ought to be very great, to
conviét a Man of fuch an Offence 5 but you muft
not exped 1t fhould be fo clear, as in a matter of
Right between Man and Man, and of Things
that are done m the [Face of the Sun. It was
done in the Dark : The Dewil that fet ’em a-work,
does fill them with Cunning enough to keep this
Attempt as concealed as may be : And therefore
Circumiftarces of this Nature muft be wonder-
fully confidered ; an Account of which My. -
nold amfelf gives you, and he does believe in his
Confcience the Prifoner at the Bar to be the
Man,

The Jury withdrew, and baving debated together
about balf an Hour, returned, and brought the
Prifoner in Guilty.  7bich done, the Conrt ad-
journed 1ill the Saturday following, the 17th of
July s At which time the Conrt being fat, John
Giles was brought to the Bar sy to whon the
Right Worfbipful Sir George Jefferies delivered
himfelf to this Effect.

Mr. Recorder. You the Prifoner at the Bar,
you have been mdicted for a very vile Offence ;
an Offence 1n its Nature that deferves a greater
Pamthment than the Law can infli& upon any
fuch Offences. There is a Jury has convicted
you of this Crime, againft whom, had you had
any Objection, you might have made your Chal-
lenge. ~ And now you ftand conviGted here, it is
only the Duty of the Court to pronounce that
Judgment againft you, which they think may be
reafonable to inflict upon fuch an Offender.  For I
muft needs fay, it was one of the bafeft and moft
barbarous Aions that Mankind could poflibly be
guilty of: An Action of fo much Filth and Bafe-
nefs, that the Law could not forcfee any Man
could be guilty of, and therefore hath not made
Provifion for a Punithment proportionable to it.
But inafmuch as we underftand by Mr. drsold
you have a Charge of Children, thercfore the
Court takes fome Confideration: Not that they
think to extend any Mercy to you for your own
Sake, but a4 Regard they think they are bound to
have for thofe that have not offended. But we
ought to have a care to let the World know, we
do not intend only a Punithment to the Offender,
but by that to terrify it other Pecple from being
guilty of fuch extracrdinary Villiee, And be.
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caufe they will have Regard to your Poftenty,
therefore they do not think fit to put {o great a
Fine upon you as this Fact does deferve. But on
the other Side, they have thought fit you fhould
be made an Example of, and that you fhould fuf-
fer as great a Corporal Pumihment as the Law
will allow. And therefore in the Name of the
Court I do pronounce this to be your Sentence :

That you be put in the Pillosry iowards Lincoln’s-
[an-Fields, as near the Place where this bar-
barous Foid was commmitted asarzy be ;. And there
you are to frand from the Hour of tewelve till one,
ane Day, at Noon-day.  dnd on anotbhei Day,
from the Hottir of twelve til] one, over againft
Gray’s-Inn 7 Holbourn.  dud enother Day,
between the fane Hours, juft by the May-Pole
i the Strand., Thefe three fiveral Days you are
fo flond in the Pillory, aud ta beve a Paper put
pan yorr Lat, whereby it fhall be fgnificd, the
Offcnce of which you fland convicied.  Ad
nexty fo deter oll others from committing the
like, the Court does think fit likewife to award,
That you fhauld pay to the King the Sum of frve
Dundred Pounds 5 and that you be coniinitied i1
Execution, till fiech Tisic as you pay that Money.
And becanfe i¥ is both 10 be a Punifficit lo you,
and a Terror to all other fuch Villains, you cre
to find Stictics for your gocd Bebaviowr duriig
Life.

Sentence being pronounced, and the Prifoner
removed from the Bar, Richard Covenaugh was
brought to the Bar, and prayed to be difcharged :
But was by Mr. Arusld charged with threatning
one Philip Staneright, one of the King’s Witnef-
{es: For which Reafon, and for that alfo a new
Evidence was come in againft the faid Cavenangh,
with fome farther Charge relating to Mr. Aruold’s
Bufinefs, the Court thought fit, for want of Bail,
to continue him a Prifoner.

Then Mr. Herbert appeared, and prayed to be
difcharged from his Recognizance to appear at
the O/d-Bailey: But being accufed by 2 Woman
for calling her Whore, Jade, and very ill Names,
and holding up his Staff at her, and threatning
to beat her for being a Witnefs againft his Friend
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Giles 3 as allo for taking away her Horfeas the was
going to the Mill; and” the Reafon was, becaufe
fhe was to be a Witnefs in London againit Giles.
But fhe being a married Woman, and none ap-
pearing that would be bound to profecute him for
1t, he was not bound over to anfwer it, till ano-
ther Complaint came 1 againft him, which was
immediately made by Mr. Ballard, and another
Gentleman ; who ckarged Mr, Herbert, that in
Whitforr Week laft, upon a Difcourfe for chufing
Kmights of the Shire for Adeninosth, and the fay-

ing of one m the Company, that it was thought

Mz Aruold would ftand forit 5 Mr. Herber?, fhould
make Anfwer, I will circumcife the other Side of
his Cheek firft 5 or, he muft have the other Side
of Ins Cheek circumeifed firtt.  Upon which the
Court ordered he fhould not be difcharged, buc
remam bound upon the former Recognizance to
appear there next Seffions. And the Recorder
gave him feveral fharp Reprehenfions for his ma-
licious and unmanly Words and Proceedings. This
bemng the fecond of the King’s Witnefles, and a
Woman that e had barbaroufly treated ; ftill paf-
fionately giving the Reafon, that they were Wit.
nefies againft his Friend Fobir Gilcs, as it was prov-
ed on Oath beforc the Court by feveral Wit-
nefles. |

Then S Thomas Allen acquainted the Court,
that a Gentleman had informed him the Day be-
fore, that Mr. Herbert told him, that Mr. Zrucld
wounded hmfelf and cut his own Throat ; which
the Court looked upon as an high Kffeét of 2
malictous Ingratitude 5 Mr. Arwsld having be-
fought his Majeity, when Mr. Herbert was in
Newgale to have his Releafe,.  Mr. Avnald veplied,
that Mr. Herbert had been more ungrateful to
his Majefty, who had gracioufly pardoned him
greater Offences, and lately ; for he had {pcken
worfe of his Majefty’s Perfon and Government,
than he had done of him, as it had been proved
before huis Majefty, and of which he believed
his Majefty was well fatisfied. The Court told
Mr. Herbert he was a Shame to all Euglifbizen
and bound him by Recognizance to appear and
anfwer this Offence at the King’s-Bewch Bar the
firft Day of the next Term.
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C. Tbe Trial of THOMAs THWING and MarY PREs-
s1CKs, at York Affizes for High-Trealon, July 24. 168c,

52 Car. 11.

Cl. of Az, Hemas Thwing, late of Heworth,

in the County of 2v74, Clerk,
and Mary Prefficks, Wife of Thomas Prefficks,
late of the Parith of Barwick in Elwett, Gent.
ftand indicted ; for that they, as falfe Traitors a-
gainft the moft illuftrious, and moft excellent
Prl{lce, King Charles the Secend, that now is,
their Natural Lord ; God before their Eyes not
having, nor their due Allegiance weighing, but by
the Inftigation of the Devil being feduced and
moved, the cordial Love, and true and natural

Obedience, which true and faithful Subjedts of
our faid Sovereign Lord the King towards his faid
Majefty ought to bear, altogether withdrawing,
and imagining, and with all their Strengths in-
tending the Peace and common Tranquillity of
his Kingdom of Exgland to difturb, and his faid
Mafefty that now is, to Death and final Deftruc-
tion to bring and put, and the true Worfhip of
God in this Kingdom of England eftablithed and
ufed, to alter to the Superftition of the Church
of Rome, and War againft his faid Majefty in

this
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this Kingdom of England to move and raife, and
the Government of this Kingdom of England to
fubvert, the zoth Day of May, in the 3:ft Yeer
of his Majefty’s Reign that now 1s, at the Panfh
of Barwick in Elmett, aforefaid, in the County
aforefaid, with divers other falle Traitors to the
Jurors unknown, did trateroufiy compass, 1mma-
eine and intend, and every of them did ccmpz_t@,
mmagine and intend the Death ﬂnq fmal Deftrediion
of his {aid Majefty, and the anctent Government
of this Realm of Enplend to change, alter, and
ntterly fubvert, and his fmd Majefty of the Crawn
and Rule of this Kingdom to depofe and wholly
to deprive, and the true Proteftant Religion to
extirpate: And to effe® and accomplith thewr
fatd wicked Treafons, and traiterous Imaginations
and Purpofes aforefaid, the fad Thaas Thuing
and Mesy Prefficksy and other falle Traitors, to
the Jurors unknown, the faid 3oth Day of Adey,
i the 21{t Yearabovefaid, with FForce and Arms
at the Parith of Barwick m Elicee aforefaid, ad-
vifedly, devilithly, malicioufly and traiteroufly d:.
affemble and gather themfelves together, and
then and theredid devilithly, advifedly, malicioufly,
fubtilly. and trasteroufly confult and agree, and
every of them did then and there traiteroufly cen-
fult and agree to bring to Death and final Deftruc-
tion cur faxd Sovereign Lord the King, and to de-
ofe and deprive him of his Crewn and Rule alore-
faid, and the Religton of the Church of Rem: into
this Kingdom to introduce and eftablith : And the
fooner to fulfill and effe@ the faid wicked Trea-
fons, and traiterous Imaginations and Purpofes
aforefaid, the faid Thomas Thwing and Mery Prof-
Sicks, and other falfe Traitors to the Jurors un-
known, did then and there pay and expend, and
every of them did then and there pay and expend
divers Sums of Money of divers other Traitors to
the Jurors unknown, to carry on the Treafons a-
forefaid ; and then and there the faid Theias Threing
and Mayy Prefficks did {ubfertbe, and either of them
did fubicribe a certain Note in writing for the
Payment of divers Sums of Money for making a
Contribution for compleating thelr traiterous Pur-
pofes aforefaid , agzint the Duty of their Allegt-
ance, and againft the King’s Pence his Crown
and Dignity, and alfo again{t the Statute in that
Cafe made and provided.
To this Indictment having pleaded Not Guilty,
and put themfelves upon thewr Country for Trial,

Upatt the 29th of July Sii- Thomas Daniel, Hieh
Sheriff of the County, beving veturied iz, Geys-
tewen for Jurorsy the Trial proceedod thus :
Aficr the friy called, Thomas Thwing aid
Mary Preflicks beiing brought to the Bar.

ClL of Affize. Thomas Thving, hold up thy Hand.

Mary Prefficks, hold up thy Hand.
(W hich being dune.]

CLoof Affize. This underftand ye, that thefi
Gentlemen that are now to be iworn, are return-
ed by the Sheriff’ of this County, to pafs between
our Sovereign Lord the King and you for your

Lives: Therefore if you will challenge any of

them, you are to challenge them as they come to
be fworn, and before they be fworn.

Gl of Affize. Siv David Fowles, Bart.

Thwing. [ challenge him.

And fo as they were called challenged, thefe twenty
frve Gentlemen following, viz.
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Hught Savil, Gent.

Nrvian Collins, Gene.
 Shemas Grees, Gent.
Nathaniel Elliotfen,Gent.
Nethan, Harrifon, Gent,
| Jobn Tomlinfon, Gent.

Thoimas Riccaby, Gent,
Feha Ullithoruz, Gent,
Themas Lincks, Gent.,
I lizin Mloftia, Gent,

Fobu Ecfieft, Elas
Filliam Bethe!, Eigs
Towwnes Drifeild, Elqs
Hill Offaid: fien, Edqs
Merin. Trvemen, Gen,
Robt Boll, Gent,
Thenes e teher, Gent,
9 beiinas Haod, Gent.
Thoney Fairofiie, Gent.
Rrgoir Firetwd, Gent.
Siman Warrenery Gent | Geerse L, Gent,
Fodeard Cervily, Gent, | Thonas IFhaley, Gent.
Foon Cuaivs, Gent, |

J TN

[ip the fa?!fff.:f ﬁ/‘ ihe jr:'ﬁ)', fyr}'f'i‘ﬁ*?c’}‘f?f Ci:gjfp}{gr;#j
i cid fome of ke Fury fieri, Thwig
ipre i

{T'T_. :-II
WA ILE
L

My Lord, I fhall willingly ftand to the
other Jury,

Vv, Jult. Dofocin. What Jury,

Thuwirg. My Lady Tenpefl’s Jury.,

M. Juit. Deliciz, Oh, your Servant 5 you ei-
ther are very fockfl, or take me to be fo.

The Tury being forn.
C.of wffize. Crver count thefe.

rIlen, Pincliey, Gent,
Fob. Bl n, Gent.
IVl Hogddeofi ], Gent.
Nichokes 8 one, Gent.
Geo, [ ;?,r’.:ijr'ei'}*, ‘:;'lf.'ﬂ“lf.r

LC::{:;'-SLI ;ﬁ?b‘i{:LE-} Gl.fl'i".

Sir Gegrge Cioky Bar, -
Theias I erfiey, Kl
Wiliiain Ciiey, Efgs
Reper Lery Gent,
Jebiz Divoiry Gent,

Geeige HWray, Gent. .

b Jw’ <

Ciyer. Twelve good Men and true, frand toge-
ther and hear your Evidence.

(V. of Affizz. Thoinas Thizing, hold up thy Haad,
[setich be gid.) Mary Prefficks, hold up thy Hand,
[which e did.} Gentlemen, youof the Tury that
are {worn, look upon the Prifoners and hearfe 1 to
their Charge: You fhall underffand that they
frand ndied by the Names of Tlemes Tiwing,
&ceand Viary Proffichs, &e. Prout i the Ld s,
Upon this Indictment they have bee. artaiened,
and thereunto pleaced Not Guilev 3 and for their
Trial have put themfilves upon the Country,
which Country youare, &,

Then Proclemation <was med Jer Evidenco, and
the Indiclment being cpened, ond ihe Ticafous
theielit agaiavated by the King’s Comnetl 3 MMy
Laren Atkyns caime juo the Conrt 1o W} in
the Trial. |

The Witucfles were call:dy Robert Bolron cons

St fieora,

Beiron. My Lord, in the Year 1674, T came
to hve with Sir Theinas Gafeoivie, and was Siew-
ard of his Coal-pits; and in 175 1 turned Papift ;
and about Fameary, 1646, Mr. Theoing, Father
Rufbton, and feveral others came to my Houfe ot
Shippon, and did there examine me how I focd
affedted to the Reman Catholick Relioion, and
whether I was refolved to venture my Life and
Eftate in it, if there were aty Oceafion ; to which

I agreed, and was refolved to obe my Ghofi]
Father mall Things. PRy

Mr. Juft.
3

-
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M, Fuftice Dolben taking Notice of a Gentleman
usear the Prifoners, demanded, What is that
Gentleman? We are all befet; he was one
of the Jury Yefterday. He deing removed,
Bolron proceeded.

Bolron, Father Rufbton my Confeflor gave me
the Oath of Secrecy; and in the Year 1677, Sir
Thomas Gafeoigne, Six Miles Stapleton, Mr. Thwing
the Prifoner, and feveral other Perfons, met at
Barmbew-Hall, Str Thomas Gofeoigne's Houfe 3 and
there they agreed, That in hopes the Plot of kill-
ing the King would take Effect, they would erect
a Nunnery at Dolebank; but the real Intention
was to have it at Heworth, within a Mile of Zar#,
after the King was killed 3 and to avoid Sufpicion,
my Lady Tempeft told them fhe would let them
have Broughton for the prefent. .

It was there agreed, that the King fhould be
killed: * And Mr. Zhwing faid, that if they miffed
this Opportunity, they Ihou_ld never have the like
again, and the effecting of it would be very bene-
ficial to the Church of Rome.

Mr, Bar. Atkyns. Repeat it in the fame Words:

Bolron. Hefaid, if we mifs this Opportunity of
killing the King, we fhall never have the like
again ; and Mr. Thwing was to be the Confeffor
of the Nunnery for the prefent.

Mr, Bar. Atkyns. Where were thefc Words
{poken ?

Mr. Bolron. In the old Dining-Room,

Mr, Juft. Dolben. Who were prefent ?

Mr. Bolron. Sir Miles Stapleton, Sir Thomas Ga-
coigne, my Lady Tempeft, Mr. Thwing, Mr, Rufh-
toi7, and {fome others.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Was it agreed that the King
fhould be killed ?

M. Bolron. Tt was, my Lord.

Mr. Bar, Atkyns. Confider ferioufly, you fpeak
in the Prefence of God, and of a great Affembly ;
and that a Perfon’s Life 1s at Stake: Tell it agan,
what were the Words ?

Mr. Bolvon. It was agreed that the King fhould
be killed, and that it was for the good of the Ca-
tnolick Religion ; and I paid 10/, to Mr. Ryfbton
in Mr. Thwing’s Prefence, towards killing the King,
and faw a Lift in Mr. Rafbton’s and Mr. Thuwinp’s
Hands, of the Names of feveral that engaged for
promoting the Roman Catholick Religion; which
was to be by killing the King.

Mr. Bar, Atkyns. Was it a Lift of thofe that
were to kill the King ?

Mr. Bolron, The Lift I faw was of Money raif-
ed to kill the King,

L'{I;/I;'. Bar. Atkyns, What was the Title of that
ift :

M. Bolron, A Liftof the Names of the Acors
and Contributors, engaged in the Defign of pro-
moting the Roman Catholick Religion, and alfo of
cftablifhing a Nunnery ; which was raifing Money
for the killing of the King. And befides the 10/,
I paid towards it, I paid 5/ to have my Soul
- Prayed for. Thwing told me afterwards at my
Houfe, that in Yorkfhire, Lancafbire, and Derdy-
Jbire, 30,000/, was raifed for the killing of the
King ; and that the Lift was fent beyond Sea.

r. Juft. Dolben, What can you fay againft the

Woman ? , ~

* Aute,
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M. Bolron. Mrs. Prefficks told me, That in
1678, prefently after the Plot was difcovered, fhe
being in London, did hear a Woman cry after her,
Stop she Papift, fisp-the Plotter ; but fhe got away,
and afterwards durft not appear publickly in Lsz-
don. I had Difcourfe with her at my Houfe a-
bout the Plot ; and the told me, that Father Har-
court was her Confeflor, and firft engaged her in
it 3 and that Pickering told her, that he was to
have killed the King, and fhe faid the was forry
he did not do it 5 and that Oates and Bedloe were
two Rogues, and the Plot had not been difcover-
ed but for them, who were the Caufe of {o much
Mifchief. And fhe further told me, that the
Gun wherewith he was to have killed the King,
was found with Pickering, and the did believe that
was the Caufe of his lofing his Life : And fhe faid,
The King wasan Afsand not fit to govern ; that
what Money the Parliament gave him he fpent
upon Whores and Concubines.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Well, is this all you have a-
gainft her ?

M. Bolron. Yes, my Lord.

M. Juft. Dolben. He hath done; you may crofs
examine him if you will,

Thwirg. Who was at your Houfe when I was
there ? *

Mr. Bolron. Father Rufbton.

Thwing. How often was I there ?

Mr. Bolron. Several Times, I know not how
often,

Thwing, When was it you accufed me firft of
the Plot ¢

Mr. Bolron. When I went to the Council I ac-
cufed him.

Thwing, He did not accufe me of the Plot in
{everal Months,

Sir Tho. Stringer. Come, Mr, Mowbray, tell your
Knowledge,
| My, Mowbray was fuwsra.

Mr. Mowbrey. My Lord, what I have to fay
is only againft Mr, Thwing. At an Aflembly of
divers Priefts at Barmbow-Holl, amongft the reft,
there were Father Rufbton and Mr, Thwinz ; and
there they determined to kill the King.

Mr, Bar, Atkyns. When was this ?

Mr., Mowbray. This was near Michaelinas 1676,
and they declared it was not only lawful, but me-
ritorious to do it : They alfo declared, That Lo~
don and 2York were to be fired ; and that Force
was to be made ufe of againft the King, and all
other Hereticks that thould oppofe the Advance-
ment of their Religion: And Mr. Thwizg and
Rufbton declared, the King was an Heretick, and
excommunicated by the Pope, and hadn’t kept
his Promife with the Jefuits to bring in their
Religion, and therefore deferved to be killed,
and 1t was not only lawful but meritorious fo to
do.

Mr. Belwood, of Conncil for the King, Was there
nota Lift?

- Mr. Mowbray. Yes, a Lift of thofe engaged in
the Defign of killing the King, and of promot-
ing the Catholick Religion: And it was declared
the King fhould be killed, becaufe he hadn’t kept
his Promife made to the Jefuits when he was be-

yond Sea. _ |
Mr. Juft. Dalbes. Did the Prifoner declare it.

That upon Sir Thomas Gafcoigne's Trial it appeared in his Almanack, that be bad made this Mymorial there avith bis

own Hand (viz.) The 15thof Apr, 1676, Memorand. acquaint Mr, T Thwing avith the avkole Defign.

Vor, III.

M Mr., Moz
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Mr. Mowbray. Mr, Thwing declared it, and

Rufbton and he managed it.

Thwing. Who was there?

Mr, Mowbragy. It was at Father Rufhton’s Cham-
ber that I faw you, and there was another Thwing
there, and alfo 4ddifor a Prieft. '

Thwing. 1 went once or twice a Year to Sir
Thomas Gafeoigne’s, and thought it my Duty to
wait on him ; and that I might without Offence
do it, he being my Uncle. _

Mr. Juft. Dolben. No, the Offence is Plot-
ing.
gSi'r Thomas Stringer, Mr, Thwing, do you know
Rufbton 2 .

Thwing. Yes; but I had no great Acquaint-
tance with him,

Sir Tho. Stringer. Mr. Mowkray, how came you
to be mtrufted in {o great a Bufinefs ?

Mr, Mowbray. 1 aflifted Father Rufbton at the
Altar at Mafs; and fo came into great Favour
with him, and was permitted to be in his Cham-
ber when the Priefts were in private with him.

Sir Tho. Stringer. Mr. Mowbray, did you take
an Oath of Secrecy ?

Mr. Mowbray, Yes, I took it from Father

Rufbton.

Thwing. How long fince did you change your
Religion ?

Mr. Mewbray. Prefently after the Plot broke

out.

Thuing., Who were you examined before firft
of all ¢

Mr. Mowbray. Before Mr. Lowther, and Mr.
Tindal,

Mr. Juft. Dofben. Did you at the firlt accufe
him?

Mr. Mowhray. 1 only charged Sir Themas Gaf-
coigne, Elqy Gafeoigie, my Lady Tempsf, Sir
Mites Stapleton, and Father Rufbron in my firft;
and in my fecond Depofition I accufed Mr. Thwing,
and that was before Juftice Warcup.,

] Mr. Bar. Arkyis. Did Thwing abfcond at the
it ¢

Mr. Mswkray. He was apprehended at the
fame Time Sir Thoias Gafeoigne was apprehended,
and at his Houfe,

Mr. Juft. Dolben.
Proflicks ¢

Mr. Mowtiray, My Lord, 1 have nothing to
fay againtt her,

M. Juft, Dofben. M. Thwing, you have heard
the Evidence, what do you fay for yourfelf ?

Thwing. 1 fhall produce Witnefles I was never
with him at Barmbew : Firft, I fhall thew he ne-
ver mentioned me when he firft mentioned the
Flot; and he never faid any Thing againft me,
when he accufed Sir Thomas Gafecoigne before Mr.
Lewther and Mr. Tindal.

Well, what fay you to Mary

But M. Bonithen, of Connfel jor the King, offer-
mg other Witneffes for the King agaift Ms.
Preflicks, they were called, viz. Mys. Bolron
Jeir. Ms. Bolron jun. and John Hutchinfon,

Msrs. Bolron fen. frorn,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. What do you know of Pref-
Jicks, the Prifoner at the Bar ?

Mrs. Bolron fer. My Lord, fhe faid fhe knew
of the Plot, and that Pickering was to have killed
the King,

Mr. Boithen, Do you mean fhoot the King ?
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IL,
. Bolron [en, Yes, I do. '
ﬁ:—s Juft. D{Z&m. Where did fhe tell you this ?
Mrs. Bolron fen. At Shippon, my Lord,
My, Jult. Dolocn. At hisHoufe? [ pointing ts
Mpr, Bolron.
Mrs. Bolron fen. Yes, and fhe faid that fhe was
very forry that Pickering did not do 1t, and that
he had done 1t if it had not been for Oates and

Bedlse.
Mr. Juft. Dolben. Was this the very fame Time

that Mr, Bofron {peaks of ?

Mrs. Bolron fen. Yes, my Lord 3 and fhe faid,
"There would never be Quiet in England until the
Roman Catholicks had got the upper Hand, and
there was not a Proteftant left in Eupland : And
fhe fard, The King fpent his Money amongft his
Concubines, and his other Women, o that he
was not worthy to be King, and fhe hoped an
Army of Catholicks would be raifed to fet up
Popery.

Mr. Juft. Dolgen. That is indeed the Principle
of the Papifts, and according to it ; within forty
Years paft they murdered 200000 thnocent Pro-
tettants in freland. Did fhe fay it often ?

Mis. Bolrcn fen. Yes, feveral Times, more than

once or twice.

Mrs. Bolron jun, was then fworn and examined,

Mrs, Bolron jun. 1 heard her fay, There was a
Conlpiracy carrying on about altering the Go.
vernment, and eftablithing the Roman Catholick
Religion.

Mr. Juft. Delben. Where heard you this ¢

Mrs. Bolron jun. In my Hufband’s Houfe,

Mr. Bar, Arkyns. And what were her Hopes in
the Confpiracy ?

Mrs. Bolron jun. My Lord, T cannot tell.

Mrs. Priflicks. 1 alk Mr. Bolror when we had
this Difcourfe ?

Mr. Bolron. At feveral Times; about Candlemas
1678, and at Eaffer and Whitfontide, and feveral
Times after the Plot was difcovered, we difcourfed
it feveral Thnes at the Porch at my Houfe.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Who was prefent ?

Mr. Bolren. My Grandmother,

Mr. Jult. Dolben. Where was it, old Woman,
that you heard thefe Words ?

Mrs. Bolroy fen, AtShippon, in the Hall-porch,
my Lord.

Mis. Preflcks. Had we any Difcourfe about Sir
Thaiias ?

Mrs. Bolron fei. None.

John Hutchinfon was they Jwosa,

Mr. Juft. Delberr, Do you know any Thing con-
cerning Mrs, Preflicks ?

Hutchinfon. May it pleafe you, my Lord, I
came to Mr. Bolroi’'s Houfe, and Mrs. Prefficks
alked me what News in our Country, and what
became of the Papifts? I told her fome had given
Bond; and fome were gone to Prifon : Then fhe
fad, We fhall never be at Peace until we're all of
the Rowman Catholick Religion 3 for the King is an
Heretick, and f{pends more Money upon his
Whores than upon his Queen, and we fhal]l ne-
ver be at Quiet until the Duke of Zor2 i King.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. What fay you to this ? You
have feen him ?
Mrs, Prefficks.

therf_:.

I never faw him but twice

1 . Mr,
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Mr. -Jaft. Dotben. Where was fhe when fhe faid

iS¢ - - N
th]Hfsrfbffg/Em. She- firlt talked with me in. the
Kitchen, -and at the Hall door, as fhe was-juft go-
ing into the Parlour? {he told me, That we fhould
never be at quiet until the Duke of 2074 was made
K“I}ﬁr. Juft. Dolben. Mr. Bolron, when came fhe
to your Houfe? . |

Vir. Bolron. She came to our Houfe about Chrift-
mas, and ftaid about fix Months there.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Six Months in- your Houfe!
Then you are well enough acquainted with her.

Mr. Bolren, Yes, my Lord.
Mr. Juft. Dolben. Did you charge Mr. Theing

before the Juftice ?

Mr. Bolron. My Lord, I gave ‘Juftice Tindal
only a thort Note, that Sir Tho. Gafeeigne promi-
fed me 1000/, to kill the King : But what | had
to fay againft Thwing, I gave to the King and

Council.

Thwing. My Loid, this is Malice to Sir Sir ?’Z}ff.
Gafcoipins’s Fanuly, to which Tam related, it is
out of Revenge. |

M. Juft. Dofben. It was a Family-Quarrel
then ¢ ,

Thwing. Yes, my Lord, this I can prove by
feveral Witneffes.

Mr, Juft. Doloen. Call your Witneffes then,

Thawing.. Nathaniel Wilfon.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Mr. Babington, why don’t you
appear, we know well enough that you are So-
licitor in the Caufe ; call your Witneffes.

Thear Nathaniel Wilfon was examined.

Mr. Jult, Dolben. Come, what is it you have to
fay ?

yfﬂlﬁm. I went to Bofron to look on a Cow that
he had gifted for his Coufin Bargues, and defired
to have the Cow away, but he wotld not let me
have her without ‘paying for her Gift; fo [ ten-
der’d him his Money, and we went to talk in the
Floufe, and Bofon fent for a Groat’s-worth of
Ale, andatked meif I could tell any thing of Fa-
ther Rufbton, and 1 told him I could not; and he
bid me keep his Secrets, and he would give me
more than I could addle (¢hat is, earn) m feven
Ycars: And he faid, unlels he could fhed the
Blood of fomeof them, he fhould get nothing.

My, Juft. Dofberr. When was this ?

IV itfon, T'lus was about next Michachnes a twelve-
motith.

wvir. Joft. Dolben. This is quite other than you
told yelterday,

[Wilfon was & Witnsfs the Day before for
the Lady Tempelt.]

I¥%fen. T had not Time.
Thwing. 1 defire to know, Whether Boiron na-
med me to Mr. Lew:ber as a Plotter ?

Then M, Lowther zvas called.

Mr, Lezother. Tdo not remember that Mr. Bol-

7o named Vir. Thwing to me when he was before
me,

Mr. Juft. Dofbenn. When did ke come to make
the Difcovery to you? (ive an Account’of it,
Mr. Lowber, T think it was the 24th or 2 5th
of Juie 1679, that he came to me; and he told
VoL, II] |

me he had fome Secrets to impart to me: And he
began to tell me a Story of the Jefuitsand Priefts,
what they defign’d againft the Government, be-
caufe the King did not keep his Word with them
when he was beyond Sea: And then I called for
my Man and a Bible to take his Examination, and
faid, Pray Friend be very careful what you do,
for here your own Concern is at ftake, as well as
the Lives and Fortunes of the Gentlemen you
{peak againft ; and upon that he began to be very
fearful and timorous, and looked pale : Whereup-
on afked him, What that Fear was for? It 1s,
fard he, becaufe I have concealed it fo Jong 5 and
if that were upon you, it may beyou would be
as fearful asJ am. Then I was gomg to take his
Information, and he faid, I have done it before to
Mr, Zindel. Why came you to me then, faid I ;
He faid, Mr. Tindal defired it: Well, faid I, Mr.
Tindal and | are to meet to-morrow, and we will
do it jointly.

Mr. Jutt, Dolben. Did he fay he told you all he

knew ?

Mr. Lowther. He did not name Thwing, but
fad he would recolleét more, and would go to
London and give it in to the King and Council :
And then I faid, Why may not we take it here as
well as trouble them at London ?

Mr. Juft. Dolben. It may be he thought it bet-
ter to do it there,

Mrs. Prefficks, He did not accufe me before
Mr. Lowiber,

Mr. Bolron. Yes, my Lord, Idid, and had a
Warrant to take her.

Mt. Lowther. She was taken the fame Day Sir
Th0. Gaftoigne was taken.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. We will be juft between you.
Then the Prifoners called Obadiah Moor.

Mr. Juft, Dolben.
in this Bufinefs.

Maoor. 1 fay, that Mr. Bolron faid, That Sir T4,
Gafcoigne was not concerned in the Plot, nor none
%fi his Family ; and that he believed there was no

ot.

Mr. Juft. Delben. When was this?

Moor, This was about Candlemas was twelve-
months,

Mr. Juft. Dolpen. He was then a Papift : But
did he not tell you otherwife afterwards ?

Moor. In Auguft after he told me he had but e-
quivocated with me in what he faid before, and
that there was a real Plot 5 and if he had fworn
a thoufand Lies, he could have been forgiven
them.

Come, tell your Knowledge

Then Stephen Thompfon was called and examined.

Thonipfon. Mr. Bolron was Servant to Sir Tho.
Gafeorgie, and being in his Debt Sir Thomas did
arreft him, and he agreed with Sir Thowas to give
him 60/, and got me to be bound with him: And
when the Plot came out, I thought Bolron being
his Servant, might know whether Sir Thomas had
any hand init; and if {o, that we were in no danger
of being fued ; and I enquired of Bolrein, and he
fad, Sir Thomas was as finlefs of it as the Child
that wwas unborn: And on Holy Thurfday I went to
him, and got him out on the backfide.to Sir Ths-
ias’sy, and all along he told me, if he fued him
he would do lum a greater Mif{chief: And I plead-
ed earneftly with Sir Thouas not to fue the Bond,

M 2 and
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and ke faid-he wonld' have his Money, but would
{tay 2 Fortnight, andT prevailed with him to give
three Weeks time, that” Bofron might go to fell

his Houfe at Newcaftle, ind 'in that Time he'went

to London and accufed him of Treafon: And as to
Mits, Prefficks, 1afk’d his Grandmother what fhe
coild fay againft her, and fhe faid, Alas, alas, 1
~ can {ay nothing to it, but Bolron faid {he muft fay
{o and fo. _
Mr. Tuft. Dolben. What mean you, - Friend, by
foand o2 0 v v L
- Thompfon. It wasabout Sir Edmundbary <Godfrey,
and that the King was an Whoremafter, and {uch

Things.
Then Zachary Thorpe was called and examined,

" Thorge. I met with Mr. Boiron in Long-Acre be-
fore the laft Affizes, and afked hirh‘ concerning
Sir Tho. Gafioigne my Countryman, and he faid he
was ‘cleared, but God damn the Jury they were
Rogues. Then he atked me if I had read Harris’s
Intelligénce of -that Day, and I told himyes ; and
he then- afléd me if I had feen his Wife’s Name
in 1t ¢ He then told mé, that he was goirig down
to the - Aflizes at’ 204 againft- my Lady Tempift,
and faid, God damn me [ will ruin ’em, if one
thing will not do 1t, another fhali,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. What are you ? God damn
me comes very nimbly out of your Mouth.

Thorpe. Lliveat the White. Hart in Charterboufe-
Lane, with the Gentleman of the Houfe; I mar-
ried hus Daughter.

* Mr.-Tu® " Dolben. And-diaw Pots of Ale, that’s
your Trade : How comes "Bolron'to talk thus to
you, 15 he fo mad a Fellow to talk thus to-every
one, this 15 not hkely that he fhould thus accufe
himfelf t6-you :~Your Fatheér-in-law is 2 poor Ale-
houfekeeper ?

* Mr. Bar. Atkyns. - Are not you a Papift ?

Toorpe. No, my Lord, a Proteftant of the
Church of England. fee

Mr. Jult.- Dolber. Have you'never been in New-
gate 2 Your Lane is full of fuch People, and your
Houfe fufpected.

Toorpe. No, my Lotd, -~ - o
" Mr. Joft: Dolben. Come; have you done ™

Toorpe. Bolron came to my Lodgings *ht the
Plongh on Holbourn- Hrll before the laft Affizes, and
told me, 1f I would {wear that Peter Shipton knew
no harm by Bolren, he would do any thing for
fne. |

M. Jult. Dolben. ‘This is a Fable, for Balros
bound §bipton over at the Seffions before the laft
Aflizes.

bolron. Yes, my Lord, it was for fcandalous
Words againft his Majefty.

Thorpe. Fle afked me what Shipton was, I an-
{wered, he 15 an loneft Man for ought that I
know : [ have taken his own ‘Bond, faid Bolion,
but I'will have him from Court to Court, I will
teach him to meddle with me.

- Mr. Juft: Dolben. How -came he to~ {peak to
thee ? |

- Tharpe. T know not why, but it was his Dif-
courle to me,

Mr. Bar. Atkyns, What Acquaintance was there
between you ?

Toorpe. 1 have feen him feveral times in Zark-
fhire.

Mr. Juft. Dolben, You live in Coarterhogfe-Lane,
How came you together in Lono-dere 2

' i
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Thorpe. 1 met him accidentally in the Street.
Mpr. Juft. Dolben. It is a wondetful thing, that:
he fhould meet one in the Street with whom he .

had very fmall Acquaintance, and difcover fuch-
things to him, as he did to you.

Then William Hardwick was examned,

Hardwick. 1 was to carry Mrs. Preflicks before
Tuftice Loweber, and Bolrow’s Wife faid fhe was
forry for it, for fhe believed her:to be an honeft
Woman, and had been a good Neighbour amongft
them.

Mr. Bar. Atkyns. Who was forry ?

Herdwick., Mrs, Bofvon.
Mr. Bar. Arkyns. What did Belren himfelf fay 2

Hardwick. He faid nothing to me; he was in
another Room with his Grandmother.

L]
L]
b,

My, Fuftice Dolben teking Notice of Thwing’s
(pzaking to Mr. Hobart, demanded what - be
Jaid. :

Hobart, My Lord, he afk’d me, whether Bl
ron did not {ay that Sir Tho. Gafeoipne offer’d him
1000 . I only fay that he f{wore at Str Thomas
Gafeoign:’s Tral. L

Mr. Juft. Dolben, How doth it appear what he
{wore there ? L

Bolron. 1 acquainted Mr. Lowther and Mr.

Tindal with It

Mary Walker was called,

M. Jutt. Dolben. Mary Walker, what do you
fay ?

yﬁ/fa:fj' Walkzr.  Robert Bolyon came after Mr.,
Thaving was taken Prifoner, to my Miftrefs’s.

Mr. Juft. Doloen, Who is your Miftre(s ?

Mary Waiker. Mrs. Laffell; and he afk’d me
if Tknew Mr. Thwing to be a Prieft, and I told
hum, No, my Lord; he told me that if I would
fwear that he was a Prieft, he would give me io/
for he would be reveng’d of him for Sir Thomeas
Gafooigre’s Caufe 5 for he was near of kin to him
and he proffer’d me jol again. -

Bolron. Where were you, you were-not-here
yelterday ? - &

Mary Walker. Twas in the Court yefterday.

Mr. Juit. Dolben. Where fpoke he this?

Mary Walker. At Mrs. Laffells.

Sir The. Siringer. My Lord, he was then fearch-
mg for Priefts at that Houfe, and it is improbable
that he fhould endeavour at that Fime to fuborn
Thwing’s Sifter’s Servant. . .

Mr. Bar. Atkyns, Is Mrs, Laffell of kin to M.
Thrwing ? S

Walker. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Jutt. Dslben. Who can believe he would
come to Towing's Sifter's Houfe;, -to fuborn her
Servant to be a Witnefs againt Mr, Thuwing ?

Walker. Yes, my Lord, I have Witnels of it,
both 2 Man and 2 Woman.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Where are they ?

Walker, In Town, o

Mr. Juft. Dolben. That makes it more improba-
ble that he would offer you 10 /. in the Prefence
of two Witnefles to fwear that Mr. 7 pwing was a
Prieft,

Sir Tho. Stringer. Let usafk her a Queftion ;
Whether are you a Papift or no ?

Walker. Yes, 1am a Catholick.

Sir The.
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- Sir Thomas Stringer.- Since'1t” muft be probable,
that he would afk you fuch a Thing, and knew
you to be a Papift 5 Is Thwing a Prieft or no ¢
Walker. -No marry 1s -he not; - e
Sir Thomas Stringer. Flave you not heard him
afs ¢ .
ﬁyWMﬂl{'fh No, if I were to die. .
Mr. Juft. Dolben. Indeed you are an excellent

Witnels. | | | |
- M. Legget, onz of the ‘King’s Meffengers, pro-
duced as a Witnefs by the Prifoncrs, was next
exomiied, T -

- Mr. Legget. In Auguf? laft, Mr. Bolron told me

ald call his Grandmother in and examine
llirtﬂefore me, and he'then- atked her,“if fhe did
not fay, that fhe knéw fuch and fuch Things ? and
{he faid fhe could not tell, but if fhe dld,ftwas
ue. o
i Mr: Bar, Athyns. What was it he afked: hey

Legges. About Harcourt, and I know not what;
I took little Notice of it, it feemed to be’a Thing
{o idle, that I went away: And meeting me af-
terwards, faid, You thought my Gmipdmather
knew nothing, but-at the Bar; when Sir Thomas
Gafeoigne was tried, they faid they never heard one
fivear a Thing more plamly: = - :

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Legget, did not you- defire
Money Yefterday of the Clerk of the Affizes asa
Witnefs for the King ¢ T

Legget, Yes, mylord. . _

Mr. Juft. Dolben, Did you fo? You are a fine

LFellow,

Then one William Bacchus was examined.

" Bacchus. All that I can fay, s, that T ferved a
Warrant upon Mis. Bolron to go before Efgs” Loo-
ther, ‘and Belron’s Wite and Grandmother faid,
they could fay nothing apainft-Sir Thomas Gafeoigne,

nor any of the Family.

Mr. Juft. Dolben,"Well; they' fay - nothing a-
gainft them now, but what did fhe fay againtt
Mrs. Preffcks 2 - .

Bacchus, She faid that Mary Priffcks thould fay

that the King was an Whoremafter, and main-
tained his Whores better than he did'the Queen,

Cuthbert Hamfiwor:h was then called;

Hamf{worth Jeing produced as a Witnefs for Sir
Thomas Gafcoigne, cwirzd that be had been o

Papift, -

Hamforth. My Lord,. Robert Bolvon did {wear
Reverige aganft my Lady Tempeff, for profecuting
a Suit agamft him, - - - - o

Mr. Juft. Dolben. What is-that to the Matter
in Hand: Do youknow that he fivore Revenge
aganft Thwing and Prefi-ks? -

- Hamfworth. - No,” my Lord, - '
‘Mr. Bar. Atkyis (to the Prifoners.) What have
you moretofo ?

Thuiig, My Lord, he faith, I was at Barndowy-
Hull, 1677, 1 have Witnefles to prove otherwife.

M. Bar, Arkyns. Call them then.

George Twifley, Groom to Sir Thomas Gafzoigne,

Twifley. Mr. Thwing was never at our Houfe
above a Night or two in the Year.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Whofe Houfe is-yours ?
Tawifley. Siv Thomas Gefeoigne’s, -
. Mr. Juft. Dolben. He was there but 2 Night oz
two ata Time,
Twifley. Noy and pleafe your Lordfhip.
M. Juft. Dolben. But was he there in 1677 2

Twifly. About a Year or two fince, I faw him
there,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. But how often in a twelve
Month’s Time ?

Twifley. Not above once or twice.

Mr. Bar. Atkyns. Did you never go out of your
Mater’s Houfe in 1677 ? '

Twifley. 1 have, my Lord, but I was there both
Night and Morning, |

Mr. Bar. Atkyns. How do you know but he

nught be there in the Time that you were not
there ?

Bolror, And pleafe your Lordfhip, this Man
was but the Groom.

Twifley. 1 was the Groom, my Lord, and took
the Horfes.

Mr. Juft. Doléen. But were you never abfent ?
Twifley. No, my Lord, and he wasn’t there
above once or twice in the Year.

Thwing. Afk him what Company was then
there ?

Twifley. No Company at all, my Lord, when
he was there,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Was not he there about
Eafter 2

Tawifley. No, not that I know of.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. What Time of the Year was
he there ?

Twifley. About Michaelmas, not Eafler.

Mr. Bar, A'kyns. How came you to take fuch
particular Notice at what Time Men come, did
you take an Account of all the Gentlemen that
came to Sir Thomeas’s Houfe, how often there,
and when they came ?

Twifley. There were none that fayed any Time

when they came thither.

Mr. Bar. A 4yns, What Time of the Year was
he there ? -

Twifley. 1t was a Month before Michaelnas.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. You bring Witnefles to ftretch
Things even to Impoffibilities.

Bolron. He wasdrunk, my Lord, at Leads the
fame Night the Confult was,

Sir Thomas 8 yinger, Will you fpeak Truth be-
fore Almighty God ?

Tewifley. Yes.

Sir Thoas Stringer. Pray then are you a Papift ?

Tawifly. No.

St Thomas Stringer. Were you never a Papift ?

Twifley. Yes.

Siv Thomas Stringer. Have you heard Mafs at Sir
Thomas Gafeojgn.’s when you were a Papift ?

Twifley. No.

Sir Thomas Stringer. That's very ftrange thatyou
lived there and never heard Mafs, and yet were a
Papift.

Twifley. Yes, T heard Mafs in his Houfe, but
not by this Man,

Sir Themas Siringer. How long have you been
turned Proteftant ?

Twifley. About two Years.

Thwing. Thomas Areton, did you ever fee me
at Barnbow Hall ?

Areton. 1 have nothing for nor againft him, 1
never faw him before in my Life,

Ttwing.
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Thwing, Mr. Mowbray hath declared he never

knew any Thing of the Plot. -
Mr. Juft. Dolbeir. To whom did he declare it ?

Thwing, There 1s Witnels of 1t, my Lord.

Mr. Juft. Dolbeis. Call them. . |

Thwing. He accufed not me of the Plot.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. He was no Proteftant then.

Thwing. 1 never knew any Thing of the Plot
till I came from London. _

Mr, Juft, Dofben. Well, if you have any more
Witnefles, call them. o

Thrwing, Mr. Cooper.

Fofeph Cooper. 1 have nothing to fay in this Bu-
finefs about this Gentleman, it is concerning Sir

Thowmas Gafeoigite, |
Thwing. Yes, he declared before thefe Witneffes

he knew nothing of the Plot.

Coopei. We were coming from Arberton Fuir,
and my Father began to difcourfe with Mr, Adyze-
biay, and afked him if he knew any Thing of the
Plot that Sir Thomas was called to Landen for, he
faid, he knew nothing of the Plot, and he thought
Sir Theiras was guilty of no fuch Thing, for if
he had, he fhould have known 1t as foon as Bo/-
7oi1, and he was a Rogue and a Knave for faying
any {uch Thing.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. When was this?
Coeper. 1t was about this Time twelve Month,

Mr. Juft. Dsloen. Were you upon the Road

then ? °
Cooperr. Yes.
Stv Thoinas Stringer. Had Mewwbiay then made

any Difcovery of the Plot ?
Cosper. Yes, that was the Reafon we afked him

about it.

Mr. Juft. Delbon. Yefterday (upon Lady Tein-
pefl’s Trial) you faid, that AMewdiay had not then
made any Difcovery.

Cosper. Yes, my Lord, I mean Bolioi.

Mr. Jult. Dolocir. Really methinks you that are
Priefts fhould be more dextrous, my Lady Zein-
poft managed her Bufinefs much better, and had
her Witneffes in more Readinefs.

Thawirg, My Lord, I call upon the Witneffes,
and they will not come 1n, I cannot help it

Edward Cooper, Senior, <was thei called.

Edwerd Cooper. T know nothing; 1 met Mr,
Mywbray commg from therton Far, and he faid
he thought St Thwias was not guilty of the
Plot.

Tlrcing. Vi, dewbray declared for eight or ten
Vonths together in 77 he knew nothing of the
Plot 3 call My, 1lsdais.

HHsbart. Iknow nothing of it.
Tleoing. 1 am innocent, I know nothing as 1

']
L

hope for Salvauon.

Then Tabel Heyward, a Girf that lived with Bol-
von ¢s5 a Scivant <vas colled,

ljabel leyzwaid, My Mafler and Miftrefs fell
out about gotng to Leiden, and fhe {iid, fhe
-would not go, and he faid he would make her go;
and fhe faid, if he did {he would {wear that what
he had fworn aganft Muys. Prefizbs was out of
Malice. '
Alice Dawfon was next examined.

Alee Daefon. The Day after New ear’s Day
was twelve Month, WMrs, Bolron faid fhe was forrv
i ,
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for nothing, but that her Hufband had meddled
with Mis. Picfficks, *

Their Mis, Preflicks called for John Pepper.

fr. Jult, Dofben. What do you fay to him,
Miftrefs ¢ ,

Prifficks. 1afk about my going to Parflington at
TVhitfoutid.

M, Jult. Dolben. No, 1t wasat Candlemas, and
they faid it was cold Weather to fit in the [Hall-
Porch.

Pircflicks, It was allo fud at 77bit fontide,

Jobu Pepper. About IWihitfeir Menday (my Lord)
I went to Baritows, and met there with Mr. Pre/-
Jicksy and Mus. Prefficksy and he defired me to
tarry and carry his Wife to Mis. Heriifon's at Par-
fington, anct fhe and I went down to Shipton, and
carried her from Bofrow’s on IVhitfon-Monday and
fraid till Tharfday.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. And what is all this to the
Purpofe, fhe was however, asit was {worn againft
her, at Shippon at IV bitfontide,

Pepper, Thisis all I can fay, my Lord.

Zachary Thorpe was again called by Thwing.

Tharpe. Bolron faid he was going to fwear a-
ganft my Lady Zewpsff, and if one Thing would
not do another fhould, and would have had me
to give Evidence againft Shipton,

Airs, Bayues ( Mother to Ay, Bolron) called,

Mr. Bar. Atlyns. What do you fay, Mis.
Bayies ?

Mus, Baynes. Indeed, my Lord, I know no-
thing of this, I know not Thorpe, Shipton 1 know,
and he told me that if he had not fallen into my
Lord of Sorcwgfbury’s Service, he and Thoipe would
have turncd Highwaymen.

M. Babbington callzd by Preflicks,

Mr. Juft. Dolb.ss. Can
Mrs Prefficks ?

Labbrgton, 1 can fay nothing, but what I faid
Yefterday concerning Sir Thosies Gafeoigire.

Mr. Juft. Delben. Can you fay anyLThing for
Preflicks ¢

Babbingte. No, my Lord, I can fay nothing
for Mrs. Profficksy yes, thus much I muft fay,
that when I came to huve the Writings fealed by
30.’?&:3, his Wife refufed to feal them without de-
livering up of the Bonds. 1 told her, it would
be an additional Security to Sir Thosnas Gafesigne ;
he {ud he did believe, that Mr. Prefficks and his
Wife were his Enemies, and that they did infli-
gate S Thoias to {ue him. |

Mr. Juft. Dafben (10 Thwing) Come, what
have you more to fay ?

Towing. 1have no Witnefles to call, but I hoye
it will be confidered what kind of Witneffes thefe
are, what Lives they have led, they bring me n
amongft the reft, weareall of aFamily ; T hope,
my Lord, you will confider that thofe ill Men
that will, may take away an honeft Man's Life
unjuftly.

Mr. Juft. Dofben. 1 hear no body fpeak againft
thair Laves, and this [ muft tell you, till Men be
convicted of fome Crime that may difable them,
you cannot take away their Teftimony.

you fay any Thing for

Thwing:

-~
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Thwing: My Lotd, ‘Witnefles fhould bz Men.

of Credit and Reputation.

M. Juft. Dolben. The Jury 1s to confider of.

t. .
thaLgnk you, Gentlemen, thefe two- Prifoners

fand indicted of High-Treafon, and it is for con-
{piring the Death of the King, and other heinous
Crimes ; as defigning the fubverting the Govern-
ment, and bringing in the Popith Religion.

Now the Witnefles that have been produc’d
againft Mr. Ténoing, are Bolron and Mowbray 5 and
againft Prefficks, Mr. Bolyon, Mrs. Bolron fen. and
jun. and one Hutchinfon, and the Evidence againit
Thwing is one Thing, and agamn{t the Woman
quite another ; there 15 no Evidence againft her
but what they hcard her fay others were to do,
there is no Evidence of any Adtion of hers, or
that the was prefent at any Confultation, nor act-
g any thing there, but that fhe faid {fo and {o.
Now Mr. Bolreir and his Grandmother do both
fay that fhe fad Pickering was to have killed the
King, and that the was forry that he did not do
 That the Gun with which he fhould have
done it was found, and fhe was afraid that was
the Caufe of his Death ; and they all {ay fhe faid,
that it would be ncver well with England, till the
Catholicks had got the upper Hand, and the
Duke of York were King. Now I muft tell you,
that my Opinion is, that a bare faying of this
doth not amount to High-Treafon, unlefs you do
believe from thefe words, that fhe knew other-
wile than by Hearfay, that Pickering was to have
killed the King, and that fhe was privy and con-
fenting to the Defign of killng the King, then
fhe is guilty of Treafon, but if fhe only knew it
by Hearfay, the bare Knowledge and concealing
of it will make her guilty of Mifprifion of Lrea-
fon; but knowing of it barely by Report doth
not make her guilty of High-Treafon. My Bro-
ther will tell you his Opinion herein. Now for
Mr, Thwing, the Evidence againft him 15 very
home, for they both fwear againft him, one to
one Meeting, and the other to another, that he
was prefent at their Confultation to kill the King,
fubvert the Government, and to bring in the Po-
pith Rehigion; that he did agree at the meeting
to the killing of the King, they do both fwear,
and this they fay was at Sir Thomas Gafeoigne’s, and
that at the feveral Meetings there was a Laft pro-
duced, but Bolron {aith, that the Lift when he
was prefent was a Lift of thofe that were engaged
towards the carrying on of the Nunnery; that
which the other {peaks of, was a Lift of thofe
that were engaged about the killing the King,
about the whole Defign which was to be effected
by killing the King, this he {ivears, that Thwiug did
produce this Lift ; and Mewbray faith, that three
or four Priefts were prefent at that Time, and that
Thwing fad the King was an Heretick, and ex-
communicated by the Pope, and that it was not
only lawful but meritorious to kill him. So that
admitting this Evidence be true, it is a full Evi-
dence of High-Treafon againft him ; here is an
magming the Death of the King, and here is an
Overt- A&, here is a fetting Hands to it 5 fo that
it this be true, Thwing is guilty of High-Treafon.
Now againft this they have produced many Wit-
nefles, and none of them doth go about to prove
this impoflible, but only improbable ; butone that
s a2 Groom of Sir Thomas Gafoigne’s, who faith,
he was but once or twice that Year there, and
not at Eaffer, but about Michaelmas: Is hthat

enough to anfwer the Teftimony of. thefe two
Men, Gentlemen ! For a Groom to take upon
him to fay two Years after, who was at his Ma-
fter’s Houfe, and how often, and what Time of
the Year, is tome a very ftrange Thing ; unles
it were one that never ufed to come there : But
this Man, he faith, did ufe to come there, but
that I muft leave to you, The reft of the Wit-_
nefles were. the fame that were .examined yefter-
day. Firlt, they infilt concerning Mr, Lowther,
they fay, that when Mr. Bolron firft went to Mr,

' Lowther, he faid nothing of Mr, Thwing, but it

appears, he faid then, that afterwards he might
remember more ; then the Man was under a great
Confternation, and told him, the great and dan-
gerous Confequences of having fo long concealed
it, was the occafton of that Diforder upon him,
but he faid, he fthould remember more afterwards,

and {o he did : The reft of the Witnefles do all
go to this Purpole, that either Bolron or Miwbray
fhould tell them at one Time or other, they did

know nothing of the Plot, nor againft Sir 740-
mas Gafeoigne s and fome of them fay, that 1t s
out of Malice to Sir Thomas’s Family ; for fo
Thwing would have 1t, he being his Nephew,

that the Malice fhould reach to Mr. Thwing,

that they would have 1t; and fomething to the

fame Purpofe they do offer againft Mr. Mowbray.

Now here is one Walker, that {wears, that Bolrox
afked her if fhe knew Thwing to be a Prieft, and
offered her 10/ to {wear him a Prieft ;5 the 152
Servant of one Mrs, Laflell, Mr, Thwing’s Sifter,

he came to Mrs, Laffell’s to fearch for Priefts ; it

is fomething firange, that he thould offer to per-

{uade her to fwear aganft Thwing, who was Ser-
vant to his own Sifter, and at the Time when he
came to fearch for Priefts ; the Truth of it 1s,

the thing doth depend purely upon the Credit of
Witnefles. The King’s Witnefles are upon their
QOaths ; but, on the other Hand, the others are

not on their Oaths; but Credit is to be gtven to

what they fay, if you confider their Evidence,

and do find a Clearnefs in their Teftimony, which

you muft weigh, for certainly he that folemnly,

in the Prefence of God, will fay a falfe Thing,

will alfo dare to {wear it ; how far their Princt-

ples will carry them I know not, I can fee no-

thing but Bofron and Mowbray are good Witnel-

fes; I do not fee but what they fay is coherent,

and that they fpeak the Truth; andif you be-

lieve what they fay to be true, then Thwing is
guilty of High-Treafon : But if you ao not be-
lieve what they fay is true, but out of Malice,

you muft acquit him. They do object the other
Juries did not believe Bolron and Mowbray; the
Cafe with the Prifoners at the Bar is not the fame
with theirs ; but you are to give your Verdict ac-

cording to the Evidence that you have heard, and
according to your Confciences.

Mr. Bar, Atkyns. Gentlemen of the Jury, Ifhall
be very thort. The Crimes that are laid in this
Indi¢tment, and charged upon thefe Perfons, are,
the defigning to take away the King’s Life, fub-
verting the Government, and introducing Pope-
ry; you obferve the Nature of the Evidence
which hath been given againt the Prifoners. And
firft, I {hall fpeak but one word concerning Mary
Prefficks : 1do fully agree with what my Brother
hath faid ; you do take Notice, that the Evidence
that hath been given againft her, hath been what
came out of her own Mouth; the Witnefles are
Mr. Bolren and his Grandmather,, and likewife

one
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onc FHutchinfor : Mr. Bolyop faith fhe did tell him,
that Harcourt was her Confeflor, and that he had
engaged -her in the Plot; fhe likewife told him,
that Pickering was to kill the King, that the Gun
was found with him, and was the Caufe of his
Death ; this is fome Evidence of High-Treafon,
I muft leave it to you of what Weight it is, and
how far by this you will conclude her piivy to the
Ploty it 1s true, were fhe an Aéor in it, 1t 1S
plain fhe is guiity of High-Treafon. As to what
Fluechinfon faid that fhe told him, we fhould ne-
ver be at Peace till we were all of the Raman Ca-

tholick Relioon, and the Duke of Zork was made vy

King, that will not amount to High-Treafon:
This I take to be the Sum of the Evidence againft
her. Then as to My, Thwing, there are two Wit-
nefles that have {worn againft him, thatis, Mr.
Bolron and Mr, Mewbray : Belrow tells you, that
in 1677, there came to him feveral Priefts, to his
Houfe at Sbipton 3 and amongft the reft Thwing the
Prifoner, who afked him, how he ftood affeted
to the Roman Catholick Religion? And he then
exprefs'd his Zeal for it, and they thought him a
Perfon fit to impart their Secrets to: Then he
faith, thatin 1677, therewas a Meetingat Barm.
bow-Hall, which 1s Sir Thomas Gafcoigne’s Houfe,
and at that Meeting there were Sir Thomas Gaf-
coigne, Lfq; Gaftoigne, Siv Miles Stapleton, and
amongft the reft this Prifoner Thwing; and that
there was a Confult held at that Time, and Defign
of killing the King ; and that this Perfon did a-
gree to it, and declared, that if they fhould mifs
that Opportunity, they fhould never have {uch
another; and that it was for the good of the Ro-
man Gatholick Rehoion.  The next was Mowdray;
and he faith to the fame Effe@: That in 1676,
Thwing and others declared they did defign to kill
the King, for he was an Heretick, and excom-
municated, and had not kept his Word with the
Jefuits, and therefore they thought it not only
lawful, but a mentorious A&: And this is what
both Bolron and Mowbiay do teftify, this they
{wear pofitively againft the Prifoner ; if you be-
licve what they have {worn to be true, I muft de-
clare that it will amount to High-Treafon. You
are likewife to confider the Evidence he hath pro-
duced for himfelf: The Law, ’tis true, does not
allow us fo give them an Qath, yet if they be
Perfons of Credit and Honefty, it is Evidence
which you are to confider of. The Prifoner hath
call’d feveral Witneffes: The firlt was Nat. Wil
fou 5 1 fhall not repeat what he faith, being of no
Import.  Thwing faith, Mr, Bolron was before
Mr, Lowther and Mr. Tindal, two Juftices of
Peace, who did take his Oath; and then he faid
he did not accufe him of the Plot at that Time,
and by that would infer, that he would have faid
what he had aganft him, as well then as now, if
he had any thing whereof to accufe him : But
Bolroir anfwers, he did declare to thefe two Gen-
tlemen, he was not able at that time to recolle&
his whole Knowledge, but gave it in afterwards
to the King and Council. The next are Moo
and Thorpe: The Effet of their Evidence is to
ftrike at the Reputation of Bofron, that it was an
Al of Malice and Revenge : For they fay, that
Bolron told them, that Sir Thomas was inhocent,
- and knew nothing of the Plot. Thorpe faith, he
met with Bofron in Loung-Acre, and that he told
him, that though Sir Thomas were quitted he
‘would ruin fome of them, 1fay, thefe Things, if
true, are fome Evidence of a malicious Profecu-
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tion: But it {eems fomething improbable, that
Bolron fhould fo openly makea Difcovery of him-
{elf, when it appears he was not greatly acquatnt-
ed with them, efpecially with Thorpz.  There are
feveral other Witnefles that fpeak much to the
fame Purpofe. Gentlemen, in Matters of Fa&,
which depend upon the Tethimony of Witneffes,
the Credit of the Witneffes is greatly to be con-
fidered ; 1f you believe what Bolron and Mowbray
have both pofitively {worn, ‘the Treafon is plain ;
you muft take all the Parts of your Evidence to-
gether, you muft weigh all the Circumf{tances,
ou muft, as I faid before, confider the Credit of
the Witnefles of the one Side and of the other,
and by thefe Steps you will be the better guided
in the giving of vour Verdi&. I muft leave it to
you, aud I pray God diret you therein,

The Fury baving withdrawn, after fome Confidtation
togethery orowght in their Verdidd, that Thomas

Thwing was Guilty, and Mary Preflicks Not
Guilty.

Avgult th: 24, 1680, Thomas Thwing being
biought to the Bar, the Clek [poke thus :

Clerk. Thomas Thawing, hold up thy Hand: Thoy
haft been indicted, that thou as a falfe Traitor
didft confpire the Death of the King, £9¢, and
thereof baft been found guilty : What canft thou
fay wherefore Judgment of Death fhould not be
pronounced againft thee ?

Thwing. My Lord, as I am now upon my Life,
I know nothing of thefe Things, in the leaft, that
thefe Men have fworn againft me: And on the
other Side, I fay, that before Sir Thomas Gafrojgne
had his Trial, thefe Men faid nothing againft me,
fo 1 hope your Lordfhip will take it into Confi-
deration,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. For your Innocency, the Gen-
tlemen of the Jury are Judges of that, and they
have found you guilty, fo that it is not in my
Power either to acquit or condemn you ; I am
only to pafs Sentence according to that Con-
viction. If you have any thing to fay where-
fore Judgment fhould not be pronounced, I am
ready to hear you.

Tiroing. All that I can fay, is to declare my In-
nocency, and that thefe Men are of no Credit and
Reputation. It is very hard 1 only fhould be ouil-
ty, and none of the reft, who were atraigned for
the fame Crimes.

. Mr. Jult. Dolber. No, it is not impofiible ; it
1s poflible you may be guilty, and the reft jnno-
cent.,

Tiwing. For my part, I told your Lordthip that
I was but once or twice in a Year at Sir Thomas
Gafcoigne’s, being my Uncle, and 1 do proteft I
know nothing of the Confult thefe Men do charge
me with.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. You fay one Thing, they
fwear another, and for ought I know they are
honeft Men ; they are lawful Men, and not cor-
vifted 1n the main 5 for I do believe there were
many great and dangerous Confults held at Sir
Thomas Gafeoigne’s by feveral Perfons, and that
there have been many horrid and treafonable
Thingsacted there. You have been indidted for
High-Treafon, the higheft Treafon that ever any
Subject was guilty of, for attempting to kill the
King, for refolving fo to do upon deliberate Ad-

vice and Confultation ; and this for no other End
2 i of
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on Purpofe, but that you might have your Religi-
on fet up, for that was your Defign, to change

this Religton here, and to fettle Popery i England
and the better to bring that to-pafs, you thought
to take away the King’s Life, knowing you could

otherwife accomplifh it. You are, I am fa-
i]igged, o Prieft of the Romifb Church; therefore
all that T can fay to you in reference to your fu-
ture State you will not value, _for you account me
an Heretick as you do the King, and I am con-
tent to be fo efteemed in fo good Company, there-
fore I {hall wave it. As you are a Gentleman I
will gve fome Refpect to you, and will not pafs
Sentence on you among the reft of the Prifoners

that are found Guilty of Felony and Murder, but
will do it by your felf.

The Law doth command the Court, and the

Court doth award, That you be carricd from
hence to the Place from whence you caine, that

is, the Prifon,and from thence you are to be drawn
to the Place of Execution: you are tore to be
banged by the Neck, you are 1o be cut dowon be-
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fore you are dead, and your Entrails are to be ta-
ken out of your Body, and throws into the:Fire
before your Face, and your Head is 1o be parted
Sfrom your Body, ang your Body feparated in four
Quarters, and your Head and your Quarters are
to be difpofed according to the King’s Pleafure.
And the Lord bave Mercy on your Soul.
Thwing. Junocens ego fum,

A Reprieve being obtained for him, be remained
Condesmned in the Caffle of York 1il] the 23d of
Olober, when, according to th Sentence, he
was drawn, banged and quartered ot York,
baving firft protefied bis Iunocence of all that
was fworn againft bim, but gloried that be was
a Prieft, and bad performed the priefly Fundi-
on about fificen Years 5 and defiring all true Ca-
tholicks, 1f any fuch were there, to pray for
bing s and begging God to blefs and preferve the
King, bis Queen, the Duke of York, and all
other good Chriftians, be yielded bimfelf to the
Executioner *.
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RS. Cellier, look to your Chal-
lenges; for the Jury that is to

be fworn is to pafs upon you.
Cellier. Am 1 for my Iife?
Cl. of Cr. No, but look to your Challenges,
Lord Mayor. But if you Challenge, you muft
give a Reafon for it, Mrs. Cellier,
C!. of Cr. Swear fobn Ainger.
[Which was done. |
C!. of Cr. Swear Richard Byys.
Cellicr. 1 Challenge him.
Lord Mayor, Mrs. Cellier, you muft fhew a
Caufe for your Challenge,
Cellier. 1did not know that, my Lord.
M. Bar. ¢fton. You can Challenge none in
this Cafe without a Caufe.
Cellier. My Lord, T did not know that: Then
I agree he (hall be {worn.
[Which was done.}

Cl. of Cr.

Then the ref? of the Fury, without any more Challen-
ges, were fworiny and they were all as follows :

Jobn dinger, r Richard Liveing,
Richard Boys, Fobu Coggs,
Tobu Stepbeis, y | Henry Hodg [den,
Thomas Phelps, e Jur < Yobn Baraard,
Gilbert Urwin, J Edward Low,
Edward dllenfon, ( Fanises Sonthern.

Then Proclamation was made in common Form for

J}f.y'armtfaﬂ; and the Glerk charged the Fury
fons
CL of Cr. You Gentlemen that are fworn, K-
z:?%;z‘b Cie'zl’{fer ftands mdiéted by the Name of E/:-
oL, I, -

zabeth Cellier, Wife of Peter Cellier, of the Parifh
of St. Clement-Dayes, in the County of Middlefix,
Gent. For that fhe being of the Popifh Religion,
not having the Fear of God before her Eyes, but
being moved and feduced by the Inftigation of thé
Devil, falfly and malicioufly endeavouring and in-
tending our Sovereign Lord King Charles the Se-
cond that now 15, and the Government of this
Kingdom of Eugland, as alfo the true Proteftant
Religion, within-this Kingdom of England by Law
eftablifhed, to bring to Hatred and Contempt ;
and alfo to bring Scandl and Infamy upon’divers
Perfons produced as Witnefles, thdt gave Evidence
on the Part and Behalf of our Sovereign Lord the
King, againft her the faid Elizabeth Cellier, and o-
ther Perfons indiced of High-Treafon the firft of
deptember, in the Thirty Second Year of our So-
vereign Lord King Charles the Sécond that now is,
at the Parith of St. Clement-Danes, in the Couity
of Middlefex aforefaid, falfly, malicioufly and fe-
ditioufly did write and publith, and did caufe to be
writ, mmprinted and publithed a fcandalous Libel,
entituled, Malice Defeated: Or, a brief Relation of
the Aecufation and Deliverance of Elizabeth Cellier -
Wherein ber Proceedings, both before and during ber
Confiuement, are particularly related, and the Mp-

" fiery of the Meal-Tub fully difcavered: Together

with an Abfirefl of ber Arraigument and Trialy Wiit-
ten by ber felf for the Satisfufion of all Levers of
undifguifed Truth., Inwhich fad Libel ave con-
tained thefe falfe, feigned, feandalous Words and
Figures following, to wit: ¢ I- hope it will not
¢ feem ftrange to any honeft-and-loyal Perfon of
¢ what Way or Religion foever; thatI being born
¢ and bred up under Proteftant Parents, fhould

N ‘¢ now

* See State Trials, Vol. 8. p. 443.
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“ now openly profefs my felf of another Church
“ (meaning the Church of Raines) for my Educa-

“ tion being in thofe Times, when my own Pa-
° rents and Relations, for their conftant and faith-
‘ ful Affection to the King and Royal Family, were
* perfecuted, the King himfelf murdered, the Bi-
¢ fhops and Church deftroyed, the whole loyal
“ Party, merely for being fo, opprefied and ruin-
“ ed; and all, as was pretended by the Authors of
¢ thefe Villaintes, for their being Papifts and Ido-
“ laters, the conftant Character given by them to
* the King and his Friends to make them odious,
“ they affuming to themfelves only the Name of
‘ Proteftants, making that the glorious Title by
* which they pretended Right toall Things: Thefe
¢ {orts of proceeding, as I grew in Underftandmg,

¢ produced in me more and more Horror of the
¢ Party that committed them, and put me on en-
“ quiry into that Religion to which they pretended
“ the greateft Antipathy ; wherein, I thank God,
 my innate Loyalty not only confirmed, but en-
¢ couraged me, And let Calumny fay what 1t wall,
“ I never heard from any Papifts, as they call them,
¢ Prieft, nor Layman, but that they and I, and
¢ all true Catholicks owe our Lives to the Defence
¢ of our lawful King, which our prefent Sovereign
¢ CharlesIL. is; whom God long and happily pre-

¢ ferve fo. Thefe forts of Doctrines agreeing to

* my publick Morals, and no way, as ever I was

¢ taught, contraditing my private ones, commend-

¢ g at the fame time to me Chanty and Devoti-
¢ on; I withoutany Scruple have hitherto followed,

¢ glorying to my felf to be in Communion with

¢ thofe who were the humble Inftruments of his

¢ Majefty’s happy Prefervation from the fatal Bat-

“ tle at Worceffer ; and who, though poor, no

¢ Temptation could mvite to betray him to thofe
¢ who by a pretended Proteftant Principle, fought
¢ his innocent Blood. Thefe Truths, I hope, may
¢ fatisty an indifferent Perfon in my firft Change ;
¢ nor can they wonder at my Continuance therein,
¢ that notwithftanding the horrid Crimes of T'rea-
¢ fon and Murder laid to the Charge of fome Per-
¢ {ons, confiderable for their Quality and Fortunes
 m that Party: For, when I refle@ed who were
“ the Witnefles, and what unlikely Things they
‘ depofed, and obferved that many of the chicfeft
¢ Sticklers for the Plot, were thofe, or the Sons
¢ of thofe, that a®ed the principal Parts in the
¢ laft Tragedy, which Hiftory told me too had
“ the Prologue of a pretended Popifh Plot; I fay,
¢ thefe Things made me doubtful of the whole;
¢ and the more I fearched for Truth, the more I
¢ doubted that the old Enemies of the Crown
¢ were again at work for it’s Deftruction. I being
¢ fully confirmed in this, thought it my Duty
¢ through all forts of Hazards, to relieve the poor
¢ mprifoned Catholicks, who in great Numbers
¢ were lock'd up in Goals, ftarving for want of
¢ Bread: And this I did fome Months before I
¢ ever {aw the Countefs of Pswis, or any of thole
¢ honourable Perfons that were accufed, or re-
¢ cetving of one penny of their Money directly
¢ or indirectly, till about the Jatter end of Fam-
¢ ary (78.) And m another Part of the faid Li-
bel are contained thefe falfe, feigned and {canda-
lous Words and Figures following; to wit,
¢ About this time I went daily to the Prifons to
¢ perform thofe Offices of Charity I was obliged
¢ to; and on Thurfday, Fanuary the gth (78.) I
¢ dined in Newgate in the Room call’d the Caftle,
¢ on the Mafter's Side Debtors, and about four
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¢ 31 the Afternoon I came down into the Lodge
¢ with Five Women, of which three were Pro-
¢ teftants, and we all heard terrible Groans and
¢ Squeaks, which came out of the Dungeon cail’d
¢ the Condemivd Hole. 1 aflk’d Harris _ the Turn-
¢ key what doleful Cry 1t was; he fad 1t was a
¢ Woman in Labour. I bid him put us wnto the
¢ Room to her, and we would help her. But he
¢ drove us away very rudely, both out of the
¢ Lodge and from the Door.  We went behind
¢ the Gate and there liftned, and foon found that
¢ it was the Voice of a ftrong Man m Torture,
¢ aud heard as we thought between his Groans
< the winding up of fome Engine. 'Thele Cries
¢ ftopp’d the Paffengers under the Gate, and we
¢ fix went to the Turner's Shop without the Gate,
¢ and ftood there amazed with the Horror and
¢ Dread of what we heard ; when one of the Of-
¢ ficers of the Prifon ‘came out in great Hafte,
‘ feeming to run from the Note. One of us
¢ catch’d hold of him, faying, Oh! Wihat are
¢ they doing in the Prifon? Oficer. [ dare not telf
‘ you, Miftrefs. "Tis 2 Man upon the Rack:
¢ Pll lay my Life ow’t.  Offwer. 1t 15 fomething
¢ like it, Cellier. Who is1t, Prance? Officer. Pray,
¢ Madam, do not atk me, for I dare not tell you.
¢ But it is that Iam not able to hear any longer.
¢ Pray let me go. With that e ran away to-
¢ wards folbonrn as faft as he could. We heard
¢ thefe Groans perfedtly to the end of the O/d.
“ Beily, They continued till near feven of the
“ Clock, and then a Perfon in the Habit of a
‘* Minifter, of middle Stature, Grey-haird, ac-
¢ companied with two other Men, went into the
¢ Lodge. The Prifoners were lock’d up, and the
“ outward Door of the Lodge alfo, at which I
¢ feta Perfon to ftand, and obferve what fhe
¢ could, and a Prifoner loaded with Irons was
“ brought into the Lodge, and examined a long
“ ttime. And the Prifoners, that came down as
* low as they could, heard the Perfon examined,
‘ with great Vehemency {ay often, I know no-
¢ thing of 1it, I am innocent, he forced me to
bely my felf. 'What would you have me fay?
Will you murder me becaufe I will not bely
‘ my felf and others? Several other fuch like
“ Expreffions they heard fpoken as by one in
¢ great Agony. About four of the Clock next
¢ Morning, the Prifoners that fay in a Place a-
¢ bove the Hole heard the fame Cry again two
“ Hours, and on Saturdsy Morning ‘again; and
“ about erght o’ Clock that Morning a Perfon I
‘ employ’d to {py out the Truth of that Affair,
“ did fee the Turnkeys carrying a Bed iato the
“ Hole. She atked {who it was for; they told
“ her it was for Prance who was gone mad, and
“ had tore his Bed in Pieces. That Night the
 Examiners came again, and after an Hour's
“ Conference Prance was led away to the Prefs-
¢ Yard. 'This, and many Thinos of the like Na-
‘ ture, made me very inquifitive to know what
“ pal’d m the Prifon, Soon after this Frawcis
¢ Corral a Coachman, that had been put nito
“ Newgate upon Sufpicion of carrying away Sir
¢ Ldmundbury Godfrzy's Body, and lay there thir-
4
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teen. Weeks and three Days in great Mifery,
got out, I went to fee him, and found him a
fad Spectacle, having the Fleth worn away,
and great Holes in both his Legs by the Weight
of his Irons, and having been chained fo long
¢ double, that he could not ftand upright; he
¢ told me much of his hard and cruel Ufage, as

' ¢ that
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ot he had been fqueez’d and hafped into 2
thing like a Trough, _in a _Dungeon under
Ground ; which put him to inexpreflible Tor-
ment, nfomuch that he fw!n?ued, and that a
Perfon in the Habit of a Minifter ftood by all
the while. That a Duke beat him, pulld him
« by the Hair, and fet his drawn Sword to his
¢ Rreaft three times, and {wore he would run him
< through ; and another great Lord laid down 2
< heap of Gold, and told him 1€ was Five hundred
¢ Pounds, and that he fhould have it all, and be
¢ taken into the aforefaid Duke’s Houf_c, if he
¢ would confefs what they would have him; and
¢ one F. a Vintner, that lives at the ngn of the
¢ Holf-Mosn n Ch-fi- by whole Contrivance he
¢ was acculed, took him afide, and bid hlminame
¢ {ome Perfon, and fay, they employed him to
. ¢ fake up the dead Body 11 Soierfet-Yard, and gave
4
4
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him Money for fo doing ; that if he would do

this, both £, and he (hould have Moncy enough.

He alfo told me, that he was kept from Thui/-

day till Seiday without }?i&ualg or Drnk, ha-

ving his Hands every Night chain’d behind him,

and being all this time lock’d to a Stap}e which

was driven into the Floor, with a Cham not a-

bove 2 Yard long: That in_ this great Fxtremi-

ty he was forced to drink his own Water ; and

that the Jailor beat his Wife becaule the b.rﬂught

Vicuals, and prayed that he mighthqve it, and
¢ threw Milk on the Ground, and bid her be
< gane, and not look at him.” And in another
Part of the faid Libel is contained {(amongft other
Things) thefe falfe, feigned, :fud f{candalous Words
and Figures following, to wit, My Arraignment
¢ (which in Confidence of my own Innocency, I
¢ continually prefs’d for) not but that I knew the
¢ Danger, as to this Life, of encountring the De-
¢ vil in the worlt of his Inftruments, which are
¢ Perjurors encouraged to that Degree as that pro-
¢ fligated Wretch’® (meaning Thomas Dangerfreld
produced as a Witnels againft her for High-Trea-
fon) © was, and hath been fince his bemng expos’d
¢ to the World m his true Colour, both at
¢ mine and another’s Trial.”  And in another part
of the faid Libel are contained thefe falfe, feigned
and fcandalous Words and Figures following.
¢ Nor have I fince received any thing towards
my Lofles, or the leaft Civility from any of
them, whilft Daungerfield (meaning the faid Tho-
mas Dangerfield) when made a Prifoner for ap-
parent recorded Rogueries, was vifited by, and
from Perfons of confiderable Quality, with great
Sums of Gold and Silver, to encourage him in
the new Villaintes he had undertaken, not a-
gainft me alone, but Perfons in whofe Safety,
all good Men, as well Proteftants, as others in
the three Kingdoms, are concerned.” And m
another part of the faid Libel called, ¢ A Poft-
‘ feript to the impartial Readess,” are contained
thefe falle, feigned, and fcandalous Words follow-
ng, to wit, ¢ And whenfoever his Majefty plea-
¢ les to make it as fafe and honourable, as 1t is ap-
* parent it hath been gainful, and meritorious to
¢ do the contrary ; there will not want Wit-
‘ ne{_Tes to teflify the Truth of more than 1 have
“ written, and Perfons that are above bemng made
“ the Hangman’s Hounds for veekly Penfions, or
" any other Confiderations whatfoevery’ to the
evil and dangerous Example of all others i the
]1ke Cale offending, and agamnft the Peace of our
Jovereign Lord the King, his Crown and Dig-

nity.  Upon this Indi@ment fhe hath been Ar-
Vor,. I,
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raigned, and thereunto hath pleaded, Not Guilty,
and for her T'rial hath put her felf upon the Coun-
try, which Country you are; {o your Iffue is to
try whether fhe be guilty of this Offence, in
Manner and Form wherein fhe ftands Indited, or
Not Guilty. If you find her Guilty, you are to
fay fo; and if you find her Not Guilty, you are
to fay fo, and no more, and hear your Evidence.

Then Robert Dormer Efg; of Lincoln’s-Inn,
opent=d the Ludiftnent thus.,

Nir, Dormeir. May 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury. Elizabeth Cellicr,
the Gentlewoman at the Bar, the Wife of Peter
C-llier of the Parith of St. Clesznt- Danes in the
County of Middlefix Gentleman, ftands indiGed
of being the Author and Publither of a Libel,
entituled, Malice defeated, o a brief Relation of
the Aecufation and Deliverance of Elizabeth Cellier.
You have heard the Indiéiment read, wherein
{fome Claufes of this Libel are recited in the Words
they were written, and m Mrs, Cellier’s own
Words, and in other Words, I will not undertake
to repeat them to you.

Gentlemen, thisis a Libel fo complicated and
general, that withm this Book are contained as
many Libels of feveral Natures, and againft diffe-
rent Perfons and Orders of Men, as there are Pa-
ragraphs ; lus Majefty, the Proteftant Religion,
our Laws, Government, Magiltrates, Counfl-
lors of State, Courts of Judicature, the King’s
Evidence, and the publick Juftice of this King-
dom are all afperfed and defamed, by the Viru-
lency and Malice of this Woman’s Pen.

She hath charged upon the Principles of our
Religion, the Murder of his late Majefty, and
the greateft Impieties that ever were committed.

She accufeth all that have done their Duties,
or been active in the, Difcovery of the prefent Po-
pith Plot, to be Enemies of the Crown, and to
be acting over again the Tragedy of our late Ci-
vil War.,

She chargeth our Laws with Cruelties, as in-
human as they are falle, in permitting Prifoners
to ftarve under their Confinement, in admittin
of Racks and Tortures to be ufed, and that for
the worlt Purpofes, thereby to extort Perjuries
and falfe Evidences again{t the Innocent; to which
fhe would make Perfons of the beft Quality of
our Nobility, Magtftracy, and Clergy, Privies
and Parties.

She libels the King’s Evidences under the Cha-
ratersof the Devil’s Infiruments, and the Hang-
man’s Flounds; and defames his Majefty’s Go-
vernment, in faying, it 1s not fafe to {peak Truth,
but meritorious and gamful to do the contrary,

She will appear to you to he fo crimmal, that
nothing can aggravate her Offences, unlefs the
Impudence of the Delinquent, who hath fet her
Name to almoft every Page of this fcandalous Li-
bels and fince the Indiétment hath been depending,
owned, publifhed, and put a Value on her felf
for being the Author of {o excellent a Book.

T'o the Indi¢tment fhe hath pleaded Not Guil-
ty 5 if the King’s Evidence prove the Charge, you
are to find her Guilty.

Mr. Bar, Wefton. Gentlemen, the Charge is but
this : Firft, She is chargad with the fetung forth
this Book; in the next Place, there arc feveral
Claufes in that Book which fhe is particularly
charged with, Now that which the LEvidence

N 2 will
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will prove, muft be, firft, that the Book was own-
ed by her, and publithed by her; m_ld then, that
thefe Particulars charged in the Indictment were
n the Book; and then you will receive the Direc-
tions of the Court, of what Nature the Proofs
are. Go on to the Evidence, that is your Work,
fall to your Proof. |

Mr. Dormer. My Lord, we will call our Wit-
nefles.  William Downing, Fobn Penny, and Ro-
bert Stevens, [WWho appeared and were Sworn.]

Mr. Dormer. Hill. Downing, Do you tell my
Lord and the Jury what you know of the Print-
mg of this Libel (fhew bims the Libel) and who
bronght the Sheets to the Prefs.

Mr. Downing. My Lord, about the 22d or 23d
of Aupuft

M, Bar. #eflon. Begin with Peway firft.  Pray
what fay you to that Book ?

Mr. Penny. My Lord, Iwas bid to buy a Buok
of that Gentlewoman, and I did fo. Iafked for
her by her Name.

Mr. Bar, Wefton, By what Name?

Mr. Peany. Mrs. Cellier.

Mr, Bar, Wcfion. Is that the Gentlewoman ?

Mr, Penny, Yes, thatis the Gentlewoman. And
fhe came out to me, and afked what my Errand
was? [ told her it was to have a Book: That you
may have, faid fhe, if you pleafe. Madam, faid
I, What 1s the Price? Two Shillings, faid fhe.
Cannot I have them cheaper, faid I? No, faid
fhe, I{ell them to Shopkeepers for 18 Shillings a
Dozen, and I muft not fell them under here,
With that fhe fetched me a Book, and I gave
her two Shillings, and when fhe had done, fhe
gave me another little Paper,

Mr. Bar. 7/7¢fton. Thatis not in Iffue, nor your
Queftion now. Did you atk her for the Book

fhe publifhed and fet out ?

Mr. Penny. Yes; and fhe did acknowledge that
was her Book.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. What! She did own the Book
fhe fold to you to be hers?

Mr, Peary. This is the Book I have in my
Hand, and I marked every Sheet of it; and fthe
told me there was another little Sheet to be ad-
ded to it; and if any Gentleman pleafed to fend it
into the Country, that might be put up ina Let-
ter to fend by the Poft.

Cellier. May Talk him a Queftion?

Mr. Bar. /7ifton. Tell me your Queftion, and
PH afk 1t,

Cefier. 1 defire to know if I faid any more, than
you may have a Book, or there is a Book, And
who afked for a Book? -

Mr. Bar. #gffon. Did fhe fay any more than you
may have a Book, or this is the Book that I have
publifhed ?

M. Penny. When I got the Book and paid for
it, I turned about agam and afked her if it was her
own? She told me 1t was; and more than that, if
occafton were fhe could have put more in it,

Mr, Bar. Vuffon. Why, Mrs. Cellicr, you did
not deny this Book yefterday ; for you may remem-
ber when you did fay you wanted your Witnef.
fes, and if you could but have time to bring them,
you would prove the Truth of it: We told you
you had nothing to prove on this Ifuc of Not
Guilty, but that fomebody elfe did publifh the
Book, and you did not. You owned vou writ it
your {elf every Word with your own Hand.

Cellier. My Lord, if I wasa foolith vain Wo-
man, and did feem to fpeak fome vain Words about
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my felf which I did not underftand the Confequence
of, I hopea word vainly fpoke by me fhall not
be brought againft me to convict me of a Criine.
Mr, Bar. Wefbon, Mus. Cellic, you do not feem
{o negligent about your felf, that we may not be-

lieve what you fay of your felf.
lﬁzflr;;c*z*. B}Ilt vain foolith Words fpoke in that

Nature, I hope fhall be no Evidence againft me.

Mr. Bar, F¢fton. But however 1t is proved a-
gainft you. o

Collier, Did I fay T writ 1t 2

Mr, Penny. You told me that was your Book.

Celfier. 1 told you? Pray, my Lord, put one

neftion to him upon the Oath he hath taken -
Did I fay any more, than it was mine and I fold
1t; not that [ wricit, or was the Author of it 2

Mr. Bar. IVoffsn. Mrs. Cellier, this is a Book
that 1s intitled with your Name, and fold by your
felf. Now in any onc’s Judgment, thisis both an
owning of the Book, and pub_fifhing of the Bool:.
When you fold 1t, you gave it out as your Book,
and 1t hath in the Title Page your Name as the
Author of it

Collzer. My Lord, if I could have produced my
Witnefies, I could have made my Defence; they
have been at {everal Places for them, they have
been all about Town, and feveral ways, at Sir Fo-
f:ph Shlaow’s, and a great many other Places, and
can find none of them.

Mr., Bar. fFeftair. To what Purpofe fhould your
Witnefles come ?

Cellier. I fhould with them have made my De-
fence.

Mr. Bar. /Z¢ffon. If you would have faid to us
yelterday, that you had Witnefles to prove that
any ohe elfe writ the Book, we woull have put
oif the Trial. But you faid you writ it every
word of it your felf, and {o owned the Iffu=: But
now you pretend you want Witnefies; to what
Purpofe would you have them come ?

Cellier. *Tis not the Houour of the Bench, my
Lord, to give Evidence; and | hopz you won’t
take that Advantage of my vain Words.

Mr. Bar, #fton. *Tis the Honour of the Bench
to repeat what you fay: When you aflt Time to
put off your Trial, and the Court gives you Di-
rection to what Purpole Witnefles may be ufed,
and you renounce that and take the Fa: upo
vour felf.

Cefici. But I hope that is no Evidence.

Mr, Bar, Wefton, Tt was fpoke openly i the
Court, every body heard it.

Cellier. 1 am {urprized and have no Witneffis.

Mr. Bar. #W¢fton, *Tis eafy to pretend thar you
want Witnefles ; but to what Purpofe weuld you
have them?

Cellier. My Lord, I hope you will pleale to
remember he fwears, [ only faid it was mine, not
that I was the Author.

Sir F’refwcl Mr., At Gen. 1f you fold it, that
Leviez, is 2 publithing in Law, and is within
the Inditment,

Cellier. But he did not fay T writ it.

Mr. Bar, Weflen. Pray, Mirs. Cellier, dow’t troft
your felf upon that: For he faid, after he had ir,
he afked you, Is this your Book? You faid, Yes,
itis my Book, and if I had been aware, I could
have put a great deal more in it than [ have done.

Cellier. But I did not fav 1 writ it.

Mr. Peany. You {aid, if it were 10 be writ a-
gain, you could put more in ir.

Ceilier.
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Collier. 1 faid it was my Book, and fo 1t was,
Lecaufe it was in my Pofleffion; but not that 1
writ it. ‘Thisis my Fan, but it does not follow
that I made it. .

M. Bar. W#effan. But the Queftion was con-

cerning the Author of the Book.

Cefl?er. He did afk me no fuch Queftion. Did
you afk me if I was the {luthar P

Mr. Penny. No, I did not.

M. Bar. #¢fton. But what did you aflc her ?

Mr. Peuny. 1 afked her, Whether it were her

Book. | |
M. Bar. Wefton. And did fhe own 1t ¢

Mr, Penny. Yes, fhe did.

Collier. Soit was mine in pofleflion.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. Did you mean by your Que-
ftion, Whether that Book was her’s in Property,
or fhe were the Author and Publifher of 1t ?

Mr. Penny. 1 would know whether 1t was her’s
or no.

Mr. Bar. #%ffon. But what was your Intention
in afking ? Was it whether fhe, or any other Per-
{fon made 1t?

Mr. Penny. 1 don’t know who made it, fhe
told me it was her’s.

Mr. Bar. #/¢fton. But what was your Meaning
m 1t ? |

Mr. Penzy. My Intention was, for fear fhe
fhould have given me fome other Book, to know
whether it was writ by her or no.

Cellier. My Lord, I am not to be judged by
" his meaning ; but by his Queftion and my An-
fwer.

Mr. At Gen, Did fhe tell you fhe {old more of
them?

Mr. Penny. 1 turned about when I had the Book,
and faid I, can I have, if Occafion be, any more?
She faid fhe had but four or five hundred left, and
m a few Days fhe thould have more.

Mr. 4t Gen. You told us, fhe told you what
fhe fold them for by the Dozen.

M. Pemiy. Yes, eighteen Shillings the Dozen
to the Shopkeepers,

Mr. Bar. /7¢flon. Then fet up Downing.

[Which was done.}
Pray look upon that Book and the Title of it.
[Which be did.]
Have you examined that Book ?

Mr. Dowaning. Sir, 1 printed part of it.

Mr Bar. WWefton. But have you examined that
very Pamphiet?

Mr. Dewoning. Yes, 1 know it very well,

Mr. Bar, #¢ftor. Did you print part of it ?

Mr., Downing. Yes, 1 did,

Mr, Bar. Wefton. Who brought it to you to be
printed ? |

Mr. Downing. Mrs. Cellier.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. She her felf?

Mr. Downing. My Lord, about the 22d of Au-
guft, a Meflenger came to me from Mrs, Cellier,
to tell me fhe had fomething to be printed ; and
fhe fenF for me to her Houfe, and | went to her
Houfe in Arundz) Buildings. She told me fhe had
-@ Book to print, and it was her own Cafe. I
told her I was a Stranger to her Concerns; if
there was nothing in it that was offenfive, I would
print it.  She told me there wes nothing but the
Truth, and I might fafely do it. She faid fhe
had been publickly and wrongfully abufed, and
was refolved ¢o publifh her Cafe, and would make
the World fenfible of the Wrong fhe had {uftain-
ed. ¥ was apt, upon the Plaufiblenefs of her Dif-
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courfe to believe her ; and fo T agreed with her to
have ten Shillings a Ream for printing, and 1 was
to print four Ream of every Sheet. And having
printed half the Book, the Meflenger found 1t a
ptinting at my Houfe; and having thus found out
the Prefs, he carried 1t before the Secretary Sir
Leoline Fenkins, who granted a Warrant to bring
us both before him ; and having taken our Exa-
minations, we were bound to appear before the
Privy-Council as foon as Notice thould be given
us of it: And being difcharged by the Council,
we were bound to appear the firft Day of next
Termin the King’sReuch : Since which Time fhe
hath printed t’other hail of her Book at fome o-
ther Place.  And whereas the promifed to indemn-
nify me from all Trouble and Charge, when I
came to pay the Clerk of the Council his Fees,
fhe refufed to pay them for me, and told me 1
had betrﬂ.r’d her; and fo notwithftanding her
Promife I' was obliged to pay the Fees my felf at
the Council.

Mr. Dermer. Pray, Sir, who was it corrected
the Sheets ?

Mr. Downing. Sir, they were brought to her.

Mr. Dermzr. Did fhe read them and corrcée
themn ?

Mr. Downing. Yes, fhe looked over them.

Mr. Bar, Weftlon. Pray tell me how far it was
you printed of the Book 2

Mr. Dowiting. 1t was to Folio 22.

Mr. Bar. 7Pefton. All the Claufes in the Indict-
ment are contained in thofe Pages.

Mr. Clare. All butthe laft in the Poft{cript.

Mr, Bar. Wefton. Have you read it over fince?

Mr, Dewnfng. So far, my Lord, 1 did print.

Mr, Bar, Wefion, You take it upon your Qath,
That to the 22d Folo of that Book that was given
in Evidence, was printed by you by her Directi-
on.
Mr. Déwning. Yes, I do.

Mr, Bar. Wefton. Then fet up Stevens.

(W hich was done.]

Mr, Stevens. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, I
faw this Book a Printing at Mr. Dswring’s, and
reading fome Paffages in 1ty I aiked him. Mr,
Dewning, do you know what you do? He faid,
itisa Truth: Then I afked him who he did 1t
for; he faid he did it for Mrs, Cellier. 1 bid lum
have a Care that he did no more than what he
could juftify : He defired me that I would not
hurt him, and I was loth to do a poor Man
wrong, but away I went to the Secretary; but
I afked him before, what was become of the
Sheets, he faid he carried them to Mrs. Cellier ;
faid 1, did fhe bring you the Copy ¢ Said he, the
fent 1t fometimes by one Meflenger, fometimes by
another, for fthe fent feveral ; And when 1 came
to her, fhe did tell me it was her Book, and that
fhe kept a Man to write it, and fThe dictated it to
another that fat by her; and fhe ofren owned it
was her Book, and fhe the Author of it.

Celtier. I never faid fo in my Life,

Mr. Stevens. Mus. Cellier, by the fame Token,
when you fent for Bail you had occafion to write
a Note, and I faw you write it, and fud, I now
find ’tis none of your Hand-writing, by the Dif-
ference between the Note and the Copy: Sud
fhe, I know that well enough, but I keepa Man
in the Houfe to write it, and [ dictated to him,
and he wrote. And I have feen there onc Grange
and one Sipgy but Grange hath come to me [eve-
ral times about her’s and other Bufinefs, and fhe

did
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did tell me, fhe did dictate the Book to that Man,
and paid him for writing it.  Says fhe, I am up
very carly every Morning, and preparing and di-

&ating Things for the Prefs, She hath putout ]

two Sheets fince, and this Day at one o'clock fhe
hath invited the Mercuries and the Hawkers to
come and receive a New Pamphlet.

Mr. Bar. Veffon, Do you know her Hand-
writing

Mr. Stevens. 1 have not that Note by me,

My. Bar. 7% ffor. Did you fee the Copy?

Mr. Steveis. Some part of it I did fee.

My, Bar. Heffon. Was any part of it her
Hand-writing ?

My, Stevens. No, I believe it was none of her
Hand.

Mr. Bar. 2Veffon. Was it feveral Hands?

Mr. Stevens. 1 faw but one part of the Copry,
and that was all of one Hand, but not het’s, I
helieve. She faid, fhe kept « Man to write 1,
and fhe had feveral other Things to write to be

printed.

My, Bar. Wefton. Did fhe ever before afhrm her
{elf to be the Author of the Book?

My, Stewzns. She did (if it pleafe you) before
the Secretary, and before the Council; and faid
fhe would anfwer it. And 1 have feen her like-

wife fell feveral of them {everal Days.
Mr. Derner. Did fhe deliver any of thefe Books

that you know of ?

Mr. Stevens. I have {een her deliver them out
feveral times before me my felf, fhe can’t deny i,

Mr. Bar, /V¢flon, Compare the Book with the
Indiftment,

Mr. Dormer, Swear My, Fowler.

[17hich was doue.]
Mr. Bar, WWfton. What is that Fowler ?
Mr, Dorier. Shew him the Book if you pleafe.
[IF.ich was doue.]
Did you buy any of thofe Books of Mrs, Cellier ?

Mr. Fowler. T bought two of them. I went
to her Houfe, and told her I had a Letter from a
Friend out of Oxferdfbire, that defired me to buy
two of her Books.

Mr. Dsrmer. Is that the fame 1n your Hand.

Mr. Fewwler, *Tis the fame as I believe.  Some
Friends came to my Houfe, and told me they had
feen me notorioufly in Printy fo I came to her,
and told her I had a Letter out of Oxfordfbire for
a Book or two of her’s. Sir, fays the, Il fetch
you one prefently 5 fhe comes again with them.
Madam, fays I, I believe you have forgotten me.

Cellier. 1 know vou not, I never {aw you in
my Life before,

Mr, Fewlr. No, I believe not; but yet you
could put me n yOllr Book.

Mr. Bar. #¢fton. Why, What s your Name ?

M. Fowler. My Name 1s Fewler.

Mr. Bar, IVefter. Where do you live ¢

Mr. Iowler, At the Half- Moon Tavern in Ch2ap-
Jide, when I am at Home.

Cellier. Your Name 1s not m the Book.

Mr, Clere. Thereis one F, that keeps the Ha/f-
Meon Tavern in Cheapfide.

Mr. Bar. 7eflos. You {wear you had two Books
of her ?

Mr, Fowler. Yes. Madam, fays I, I fee you
are full of Bufinefs, fo I paid her Four Shillings
for them, and away I came.

Mr. Doriner. Then you had no Difcourfe with
her farther who was the Author, had you ¢

Mr. Fewler. No, notaSyllable farther. 1 had
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only occafion to get a Couple of Books 3 for fome
Perfons of Quality had been at my Houle, and
told me my Name was in it, and were plealed to
: ke with me about it, as particularly Mr. Henry
Killigrets came one Day to my Houfe, and called
me into the Room, fays he, you are notorioufly
in Print, and kuown to be Company for a great
Duke, and great Lords; you fhall drink a Glafs
of Wine now with me, and fo tell me the Story ;
and thereupon I went to her Houlfe tc buy a cou-

ple of Books.
Mr. 4t Gei. You are the Man meant by the

F.).
( D),qr_ Fowlr. 1 keep the Half-Meon i Cheanfide.

M. At. Gen. There 1s fomething {uppofed 1n
this Book to be done by you at your gome to a
Man in Prifon , 1s that true?

Mz, Fosoler, That 1 fuppofe s cleared by an
Oath from Ceirel the Coachman gy but withal, [
gave my QOath for it before my Lord-Mayor my
felf.

Mr., At Ger. Pray, for the Satisfaction of
People, tell us what you know of the Matter.

Mr. Feeicr. The Subftance of my Oath before
my Lord-Mayor was this: That I never was with
any great People, 2s they tax me, i my Life,
with any great Duke or Lord: That I never did
fee any of the Things that they {ay there, that
the Duke fhould draw his Sword, and a Lord
proffer 500/ or I wifper to the Coachman, That
he fhould Name fome great Perfons, and thenhe
and I fhould have Money enough,

Mr. Bar, /Vefion. But I come nearer to you with
a Queftion, Mr. Fowlr,

Mr. Poeler. Yes, my Lord, if you pleafe.

Mr. Bar. 77¢ffon. Was one Csiral 2 Coachman
apprehended for carrying away the dead Body of
Str Edwmuidbuiy Godfiey, at your Motion and Ac-
cufation ?

Mr, Fowler, As to that, Twill tell you the oc-
cafion of all our Difcourfe, if it may not be too
tedious. Upon the Death of Siv Edmundbuiy God.
Jrey, a Coachman was one Day called to carry
fome Gentlemen that were in my Houfe; but they
ftaying a little longer than ordinary, he went a-
way, and, asthey fay, dropp'd them; thereupon
another Coachman was called, which was this
Corial mentioned in this Libel, and he went up
to the Gentlemen into the Rooni, and they, to
engage him to ftay, fecured his Whip; he comes
down and begs a Pipe of Todarco of my Wife in
the Bar: Ay, faid fhe, thou lookeft like a good
honeft Fellow, and I believe thou haft ne hand in
the Plot, (a cafual Word that was paffant at that
time) whereapon he begins to tell her, it was
very well for him, for he had efcaped that Dan-
ger: Lour of them meeting him againft St. Cle-
meif’s Church-Wall, and fwearing damn them he
fhould ftand, and do as they would have him:
and he faw four, and he faw Siv Edimnndbuiy God-
frey’s Body in a Sedan, and he fhamm’d upon
them that he could not carry him, for that the
Axletree of his Coach was broke. I was in a
Room by the Bar, and I overheard the Fellow
talk after this rate, I came out, and afked him,
faid I, are you fureof this? Then he tells me the
fame Story over again ; wherefore I began to afk
him, if he were Mafter for himfelf, or drove for
another ; the Fellow being fenfible he had been
too lavifh n his Difcourfe, pretends to light his
Pipe in hafte, and to run out to fee whether the
Seats of Ius Coach were not flol'n ou-, and I took

a Candle
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lewith me, and went after him to take the
%Ezlbder of his Coach : By that time I got to the
Door, he was driving away, tho’ he had left his
Whip with the Gentlemen as Security for his ftay.
{ came in, fet down the Number of his Coach in
my Book, and drew up the Subftance of their
Difcourfe that happen’d between my Wife and
him; and I was faying to my Wife I ha:d a mind
to ftop this Fellow at the Gate, butit rau_led, and
fo T did not, only kept the Number of his Coach.
The next Day Captain Richardfon and the Secon-
dary of the Campter, were drinking a Glafs of Wine
at my Houfe, where I told them the Story, and
they blamed me that I had not ftopped him,
Whereupon Captain Ricbardfon took the Number
of his Coach, and the next Day fent his Janiza-
ries abroad, and fecured him, and kept him in
Cuftody for two or three Days.

Mr. Bar. Weffon. When was this?

M. Fowler. Two or three Days after the Mur-
der was publickly known of: I think it was Tuef-
day Night that this Fellow told me the Story, to
the belf of my Remembrance; and the next Day

1 told the Captain and the Secondary.
Mr. Bar. Weflon. Was that the next Tuefday af-

ter the Murder, or the Twefday {even-night ?

Mr. Fowler. It was the Tuwefday feven-night af-
ter. ‘They blamed me very much that I did not
ftop the Fellow : I told them how the thing was,
and the Captain fent his People abroad, and took
the Coachman up by what Marks I gave of him.
The next Day I was ordered to wait upon the
Lords at Wallingford-Honfe, where was the Duke
of Buckingbam, my Lord Shaftefbury, the Marquis
of Winchefter, two other Lords, and Major 772/4-
man the Secretary ; where they examined me up-
on this thing, and what I have declared to your
Lordthips, I declared then. And they brought
the Fellow m face to face ; and there he does con-
fefs the whole Matter, and made a great Whining
_and Clutter, that Febn fuch a one, a Coachman,
and Mrs. fuch an one, a Strongwater Woman ;
told him this, and that, and tother. The Lords
fent for two of the Perfons he named, and both
of them being brought before them, the Lords
were very well fatisfied, in that one of them keeps
a ViCtualling-Houfe, and they were both of geod
Reputation, they were fatisfied it was only a Sham,
and that he only named them as the firft Perfons
that came into his Mind. Getting nothing out
of him, my Lord Duke of Buckingham told him,
Sirtah, 1fyou will confefs, there fhall be nothing
of what the King hath promifed but it fhall be
made good to you, you fhall be fure of it, and
you fhall be proteted. My Lord Shafte/bury told
him the fame; but withal, if he would not con-
fefs, and tell him who fet him on Work, then
nothing thould be fevere enough for hims; or
Words to that effec.

Mr. Bar, Wefton. Upon this Accufation was he
fent to Prifon ?

Mr. Fowler. He was re-ordered to Prifon, and
there continued feveral Months.

Mr. Bar, Wefton. Where ? To what Prifon ?

Mr. Fowler. To Newgate.

Mr. Bar. Weffon. Were you ever in Newgate,
and faw him ?

Mr. Fowler, Never, not I.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. Did you never fee him but at

this Chamber wish the Lords, and at your own
Tavern?

Mr, Fowler, Never.
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M. Bar. Wefton. And you never wete in New-
gate 1n your Life with him?
Mr. Fowler. No, not L.

. Mr. Bar. Wofton. Were you ever in Newgate
with him with my Lord Duke of Buckingham, or
my Lord Shaftefoury, or any other Lord ?

Mr, Fowler. No.
Mr. Bar. Wefton. Or any other Duke whatfo-

ever?
Mr. Fowler. No.

Mr. Bar. #effon. Or any Lord or Nobleman
whatfoever ?

Mr. Fowler. No, except four Years ago with
my Lord Petre.

Mr. Bar. 27efton. There 1s no Danger of him,
But as to this Affair, Were you ever with any ?

Mr. Fowler. No.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. Did you fee any Sword drawn,
or Money offered ?

Mr. Fowler. There wasnever any Sword drawn,
nor Money offered. '

Mr. 4. Gen. Did youever fee 500/ laid down
upon a Table ?

Mr. Fowler, There wasnever any Sword drawn
nor Money laid down.

Mr. Bar. Wgfton. He anfwers that very fully ;
for he fays he was never in Newgate with any No-
bleman, but once with my Lord Petie four Years
ago; and if he was with any Nobleman, he s ac-
cufed to be there in the Prefence of a Duke, and
ancther great Earl; and that the Duke drew his
Sword, and the other Nobleman laid down a
great deal of Gold, which he faid did amount to
500 /. and told him it fhould be his, and that if
he would accufe fome other Perfons, they would
maintain him; and then he did draw the Fellow
afide and tell him, Can’t you Name fomebody ?
‘Then you and I may have Money enough. This
1s the Accufation of the Book: But now ’tis de-
nied that ever he was in Newgate with any fuch
Perfons, which is confequently a Denial of the
whole charge.

Cellier. 1 did not write that this was true, but
] writ that the Fellow told me fo.

Mr. Bar. Wefton. We will fee that in the Book
in the Firft Place. We have examined this thing
by the by, and tho’’tis a little out of the way,
yet it may be fatisfattory: Read the Book.

Cl.of Cr. Mualice defeated, &e.

Mr. Bar. Wefton, Compare it with the Record,
g.ur fhe fhall have a fair Trial by the Grace of

od.

Then the feveral Clanfes recited in the Indiftment,
were read cver again by the Clerk out of the Book,
and compared by the Fudge with the Record,

Mr, Bar. #Wefton. Thefe are the Claufes in the
Book that are proved exactly upon you. Now I
muft tell you, becaufe this Book doth caft a very
great Infamy upon onr Religion, and on the whole
Government, it ought to be taken Notice of :
For in the firft Place, to contrive to get a Man
into Prifon, and by Tortures to compe! him even
to commit Perjury: Thento hale another Man
to Prifon, and have him thus barbaroufly ufed, as
to have Nobles to come to him, one with a
Sword drawn, another with Money in his Hand
laymg 1t down as a Temptation, and to force
him to difcover what he was not willing to con-
fefs ; and then to lay Acenfation upon the King
that he makes it a thing of Safety to be the Hang-

man’s
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man’s Hounds, and to be Accufers for Penfions,
and fhall aver, that when it is as free for her to
{peak-Truth, as it is meritorions for them to do
otherwife, the will difcover fuch and fuch Things,
is a Slander that ought to receive a publick Re-
buke: And to fatisfy the World of the Untruth
of it, 1 would have you prove, if Prauce be here
and the Coachman, what Ufage they received, to
avert that publick Calumny that is caft upon the
Nation. For let Mrs. Collier know, fhe hath in-
finuated, as tho’ the Murder of the late King was
a fufficient Ground to pervert her from Proteftan-
tifm, which avowed fuch Pradtices: When all the
‘World knows, that at that time there were Pro-
teftants that were far better Subjeéts, and more
loyal, than ever any Papift was in the World,
and s great Sufferers for their Oppofition to that
dreadful Villainy, nay far more than the Papifts
can boaft of for their Loyalty ; whereas ’tis known
there were Villains under-hand all the while, and
thofe that did encourage all that Roguery, and fet
that Fa&ion on foot which brought Things to
that ill Period they came to.  Therefore you have
fet a fair Outfide upon a damnable Lie. And
that the arranteft rebellionfeft Rogues that ever
lived under Heaven, are great Saints in compart-
fon of Proteftants, no honeft Man will believe.
Cellier. 1 fay, they called themlielves Prote-
ftants, I know the Proteftants were great Suffe-
rers for the King, and I my felffelt it our Fa-
mily, which were Proteftants, were feveral times

fiript and plundered for their Loyalty, I grant
all this.

Mr, Bar, Viftsn. Do you? Then you are an
impudent lying Woman; or you had a villainous
lying Prieft that inftructed you to begin your
Book with fuch a bafe Infinuation againft the beft
of Relicions. But I have no more to fay to that,
for that s fuch a vifible notorious Falfity to the
Knowledge of all Englifbinci, and People of Un-
derftanding, that it needs no greater Conviction
than the particular Knowledge of thofe Men that
lived in that time. Therefore for that Lie, let it
go upon the publick Infamy that attendson your
Party, who ave notorious Liars, and among whom
“alfhood does {o much abound.

Call Corral and Prance.

Mr, At. Gen. We will give that Satisfaction
to the People: But the Jury are to know, that it
does not at all concern the Matter in [flue: For
when all that can be faid by them 15 declared, I
muft fay in point of Law, the pubhfhing of a
Libel, tho'it betrue, yetis a Crime, and deferves
Punifhment,

Mr, Bar, Wefton. 1 told you fo. But, Mr At-
torieyy, we are to fet a Fine; and to inflru& us
for the fetting of the Fine, it will be a Satisfacti-
on to the Court to difprove the Things the al-
ledges, if you have the Witnefles ready ; but if
you are not ready with your Proof, let it a-

lone.

Mr. At. Gen. They are ordered to be here. I

only fpeak that by the way. Swear Mr. Prance.
[/Fhich <was dsiw.] |

Mr, Bar, #7¢ffon. Mr. Prauce, Pray, were you
tortured in Prifon ?

Mr. Prance. No, I never faw any fuch thing
there in my Life.

Mr. Bar. 7Veftonr, How were you ufed ?

M Prouce, Very well, Thad every thing that
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was fitting, Captain Richardfen did take great care
of me.

M. Bar. Wefton. The truth s, the very Book
itfelf imples a Contradiétion, It fays, there was
one tortured in the Prifon, and the Roarings that
they heard, were like the Roarings of a ftrong
Man in Torture : And yet, prefently after it fays,
that the Prifoner comes up in Irons and is exami-
ned, Now could any one having been {o lately
on the Rack, be able to walk and come to be ex-

amined ? Any Man that knows what the Nature
of 2 Rack is, knows alfo, that one that has been
tortured there, would not be able to heave the
Irons upon his Legs, nor be able to ftir or walk
But that isa Thing not ufed amongft us, it was
fome impudent lying Prieft that durft venture to

broach fuch a Calumny.
Cellier. 1 don’t fay it was, butit was report-

ed.

Mr. Prance. Dr. Lioyd was with me many times
for half an Hour together, and if any fuch thing
had been, he would have feen it,

Then Francis Corral was called, dus he did
not agpzar.,

Capt. Richardfon. Corref, they have got away
for I had him laft Night, and he was ordered to
be here to Day, but here 1s his Wife,

[FFho was fwern. ]

Mr. Bar. 77¢ffon. Good Woman, were you e-
ver with your Hufband in Prifon ?

Mrs. Corral. 1 was not {uffered to come neat
him when he was of the Mafter’s-fide.

Mr. Bar. #7%ffon. But when he was out of Pri-
fon, How did he tell you he was ufed? Did he
tell you he was compelled to drink his own Pifs ?

Mrs. Coryal. Sanday Morning it was before I
faw him; nay, I did not fee hum then, but I was
called to bring him Victuals, or he would have
been ftarved s nay, they fay he would be dead
before I brought him. So I carried him Bread
and Things, and I did not fee him then till aJmoft
a Fortmight after; and when I faw him he had
great Fetterson, and I was amazed at them., They
put m fome Charcoal there to warm him, it be-
g very cold ; and, faid I, Lord, what have you
done, you have murdercd fomcbody fure? But
they faid, they put on thofe Things to keep his
Legs warm.

Cellier. Were you ever beaten at any time for
bringing your Hufband Vi&tuals? '

Mrs. Cerral. No, indecd, I was never beaten,
but they would not fuffer me to fee him on the
Mafter’s-fide.

Loid-Mayor. Her Hufband hath deny’d all up-
on Oath before me.

Mr. Bar, Wefton. Was he ever hurt with Screws,
or any fuch Thing ?

Cellier. Had he not Heles in his Tegs?

Mis. Corral, Yes, he had a great many; I did
fee Holes 1n his Legs. i ‘

Mr. Bar, Wefton. 1id you?

Mis. Corral. T did fee onc, and I can bring
them that brought Salve to heal it.
 Captain Richardjon. There is never an Iron
i the Houfe that I keep, that weighs twelve
Pound,

Mr. Bar, 2Vefton. They fay you have Irons cal-
led Sheers, that weigh forty Pou:: L.

Captain  Richardfon. If theve be one, [l be

hang’d for it, beforeI go hence.
” Celiier,
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Ccllier. Thope I fhall be allow’d to make my you know fhe hath fold any of thefe Books ?
Defence, and call my Witnefles, Grange. Yes, I do know that the hath fold fome

Mr. Bar. Wefton. Yes, to be fure, of them.

Cellier., Did not you hear your Hufband tell me Lord-Mayor. There your own Witnefs, Mrs.
how heavily he was fettered and ufed ? That he Cellier, proves it againft you.

was chained to the Floor with a Chain not above =~ Mr. Bar. 77¢ffor. Who would you have elfe ?
a Yard long ? and was forced to drink his own Cellier. 1 defire that Mery Smith may be called

Water ? (which was dowe, but fhe appeared not then.) 1 de-
Mis. Corral. Madam, he 15 not fenfible many fire Fobu Clarke may be fent for from the Goal.
Times what he does {ay. Captain Richardfen. He is in Execution.
Cellier. But did not you hear him tell me {o ? Mr. Bar. 77:ffon. For what?
Mis, Corral. I can’t remember, Captain Richardfon. For Debt.

Cellier. Did not you tell me, that Captain Rich- Mr._ Bar, Wefton, *Tis not out of the Rules of
ﬁ?‘f{/ﬁﬂ drove you away, and would not let you tbe p I'lﬁiln, you may bring him hither, and ’tis no
give Vicuals to your Hufband ? Efcape.

“ Mr. Bar. Wefton. All thisis but overand above,  Captam Richardfon, If your Lordflup orders it
for the great Matter that {ticks upon your Partis, fo, I will bring him.

the Death of Sit Edmundbury Gedfrey, and youare  Loid Mayor. She fhould have brought an Za-
pinch’d there with Prance’s Evidence, and fo you &¢as Corpus, if the would have had hinn.

would make the World believe that he was tor- Mr. Att. Gen. He muft bring him through {ome
tur’d into his Confeffion, and was mad when he Part, I fuppofe, that is not within the Rules, and
did it, that you may the better turn it off from then it will be an Efcape.

your own Party, on fomebody elfe, on whom I Cellier, I pray an Hebeas Corpis to fetch him.
don’t know. M. Bar. WWefton. You might have had one be-

Cellier. Pray, my Lord, hear me one Word ; fore.

As to your faying, Ido it to defend a Party, I  Cellier. This is all becoufe T had no Time to
profefs I ftand fingly and alone; I have been fo prepare for my Defence,

barbaroufly ufed by thole you cail that Party, that Mr. Bar. #efton. You might have moved the
the Proteftants have been abundantly more kind Court for it; they granted you a Copy of your
to me than they. And I would not tel] the leaft Indi@ment.

Lye to do them any good Turn. Cellier. I had it ot till Nine o’Clock to Day,

Mr. Bur. Weffon. “Then you are an happy Wo- and my Council could not nfpect 1t, nor{peak a
man indeed, that are belov’d by both Parties, you Word with me about it.
have not been ferviceable alike to both [ am fure,  Lord Mayor. At what Time fhall we have done,
but that is no great Matter; if {o be the Prote- if we dally after this Rate ?
flants were fo kind, you have requited them ill by =~ Mr. Bar. #%fon. Have you any blank Habeas
{uch a bafe Libel. Corpus ?

Cellier. 1 fay nothing againft them., Cl. of Peace, It could not be feal’d, and be-

Mr. Bar. Weftor. Can you fay any Thing that ﬁdes, they fhould fetch it out of the Crown-Of-
you did not make this Pamphlet ? .

Cellier. My Lord, I ben’tbound to accufe my.  Cellier, I defire to have him come, in order to

felf, 1defire it may be prov’d. the Defence of fomething in my Book.
Mr. Bar. Wifton, 1 think it is fully prov’d. Mr. Bar. 7Vifton. What would he prove ?
Celer, 1 cannot fay any thing without my Wit- Cellier. ‘That I have not belied the Govern-
nefles, I defire I may call them. ment.
Mz, Bar. #eften. Call whom you will. Mr. Bar, Wefton, In what ?

Cellier. 1 defire George Grange may be calld. Cellier. That he was fheer'd with long Sheers,
[#Who was fwern, and unreafonable Irons.
Mr. Bar. Wefton. What can you fay for Mrs.  Mr. Collins. You cannot do yourlelf greater
Cellzer 2 Tell me what Queftions you will afk Wrong than by fuch Talk as this.
him, Lord Mayor. You are not indiGted for your
Cellier. I defire to know whether I did not fend whole Book, but for fome part of it. '
him to find Witnefles? Who he went for? What ~ Cryer. Here is Mrs. Smith now. [Who aas

Anfwersthey return’d ? And where they be ? Sworn,
Mr. Bar. Wefton. Well, what Witnefles were  Cellier. What have you heard Corral the Coach-
you fent to look for ? man fay, about his Ufagein Prifon ?

Graige. T went to look for one Mirs, Sheldn, ~ Mr. Dormer. I think that Queftion is not to be
that lives in Sir Fofeph Sheldon’s Houfe, and they admitted.
told me the was in Effex. I went to the Coachto  Mr. Bar. Wefton. What 1s 1t you wonld have

{end for her. her afked ?

M. Bar. Wefton. Why Scoggin looked for his  Cellier. What fhe heard the Coachman fay, for
Knife on the Houfe-top. I only fay he told me fo.

Mr. Stevens. This Man did fee her fell thefe ~ Mr. Dormer. I am in your Lordfhip’s Judg-
Books, ment, I think it is not Evidence.

Mr. Bar, Wefton. Who did you look for be-  Mr. Att, Gen. She keeps the Coachman away,
fides ? and now will tell you what he faid.

Grenge. One Mr. Cursis.  And his Wife faid,  Mr. Bar. Wefton. That is no Evidence, for the .
She had not feen him fince yefterday Morning. ~ Coachman might have been here, if you had not

Mr. Bar. WWefton, What were they to prove ? fent him away.

Grange. Truly, my Lord, I don’t know. Cellier. Let his Wife {peak that, becaufe fhe

Mr. Dorser. By the Oath you have taken, Do can teftify I did not fend him away,
Vor, III. | O ' Cap-



